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Financial Highlights
B 159 2

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—-BLFE

2019 2018
—®-nE  —TNF
RMB’'000 RMB000

AR®T R ARBETT

Revenue g A 2,367,151 2,848,016
Profit attributable to the Owners of the Company RNATIEBE ANFERNESEEK B 82,184 109,358

RMB (cents) RMB (cents)
AR (5) AR (5)

Dividend per Share FREIE B 3.00 10.00
Return on Equity Attributable to the Owners NN T A JE(ERE S B ==
of the Company 8.88% 12.24%
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
REVENUE THE OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
A FLTRREAFAEEZ AR
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETTT ARBET T

RETURN ON EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO
THE OWNERS OF THE COMPANY DIVIDEND PER SHARE
ELFRBARGESOERE 1
% RMB (cents)
AREE(H)

10.00

10.96
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Chairman’s Statement
EERME

il

Dear Shareholders,

HEBWRR :

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present the annual results
report of Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited (the “Company” or “Zhengye
International’, together with its subsidiaries, our "GFOUP” or the “Group”) for the year ended 31

December 2019 (the “Year").

AANEZERKREFS((EBE))  MBUR2EXRBFZERBRAR (A28 ] 3

[IEXEBEE]) -
TERDHEFERERS -

In 2019, the paper and paper-based products industries entered the
industry’s active destocking cycle, and the actual demand for packaging
paper was affected by both inventory and terminal demand. When the
downstream industry chain had high inventory and entered the destocking
cycle, the actual demand for packaging paper fell. In the second and third
quarters, the corrugated medium paper and paper-based packaging
products markets continuously showed a downward trend. During the
reporting period, the Company faced the pressure in sales, which
experiencing overall revenue and performance slowdown in the second
and third quarters for the industry after all; the industry showed a recovery
rebound in the fourth quarter with entering the traditional peak season of
the industry and the low levels of downstream industry chain inventory.
Order demand was gradually released, and the prices of base paper and
paper-based products kept rising slightly to the end of the year, and the
sales situation of the Company also improved.

Sino-U.S. Trade frictions are stalemate, the economy continues to be in a
slump as retail sales of consumer goods are showing signs of weakness,
which resulted the pressure in the prices of upstream and downstream
products across the industry continuously. Therefore, the turnover of the
Group was approximately RMB2,367,151,000, a decrease of 16.88% year-
on-year (for the year ended 31 December 2018: RMB2,848,016,000). Driven
from the benefit from the Group’s active improvement of production
efficiency and efforts to reduce cost consumption the gross profit margin
increased to 18.96% during the year (compared with 17.9% in the last year).
Profit and comprehensive income attributable to equity owners for the
period amounted to RMB82,184,000, a year-on-year decrease of 24.85%.
Basic earnings per share was approximately RMB16 cents. In order to cope
with the complex market uncertainties and enhance the ability to resist risks
of the Group, the Board has recommended declaring the payment of a
final dividend of RMB3 cents per share (a dividend payout ratio of about
19%).
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Chairman’s Statement

s=5RHE

At the beginning of 2020, China and other parts of the world were affected
by the new COVID-19 pneumonia epidemic, and global economic growth
inevitably slowed down or even declined. The new COVID-19 epidemic has
also impacted the supply and demand of commodities, and its impact on
demand is far greater than the disturbance to supply. Due to the extensive
and severe social alienation, many optional consumption and investment
activities are nearing stagnation and have caused significant stockpiles. As
the epidemic spreads in many countries, a severe global economic
downturn may be unavoidable.

The industry chain where paper and paper-based packaging products are
located will also be severely impacted. The Company has responded
prudently and actively deployed its business strategy. The Group has
strengthened control over the supply chain to further reduce procurement
costs; improved technology and production processes to reduce
production costs and save energy consumption; ensured stable supply of
raw materials, and worked hard to expand sales. Zhengye International is
also looking for opportunities in crisis. The Group has completed the
acquisition of 80% equity of Jiangxi Yudu County Zhengyi Paper Products
and Paper Company Limited* (T 78 T &0 EER mBEEBR A
March 2020, to further expand the scale and sales scope to strengthen the

)on 1

regional sales strength. The Group will also continue to conduct in-depth
research and develop more products in order to deal with the impact of
the economic downturn.

The new COVID-19 pneumonia epidemic is a short-term impact on China’s
economic development and will not change the trend of long-term stability
and development of the Chinese economy. Zhengye International will unite
its efforts to move forward, prepare for changes and challenges, and seize
more opportunities for development. On behalf of the Board, | would like
to express my sincere gratitude to the employees, customers, suppliers,
and shareholders for the trust and support of Zhengye International.

Hu Zheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 April 2020

* For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIS T

Business Review

The Group is principally engaged in the production and sale of corrugated
medium paper from recycled waste paper as well as the production and
sale of paper-based packaging products used in consumer products such
as household air conditioners, food seasonings and small household
electronic products. The Group also provides customer with services for
packaging design, printing, logistics, etc. of paper-based packaging, and
provides customers with integrated packaging solutions. The Group is
committed to become China’s leading pioneer of environmental packaging
enterprise. The Group's products mainly include corrugated medium paper
and paper-based packaging products (i.e. watermark cartons, colour
printing cartons and honeycomb paper-based products). The Group's main
production bases are located in Zhongshan, Zhuhai in Guangdong
Province, and Wuhan, Zhengzhou in Central China, and Shijiazhuang in
Northern China. The Group is currently comprised with the operation of six
wholly-owned subsidiaries and one holding company in the above regions.
The Group's paper packaging products have a high market share in sub-
segments such as air-conditioning packaging and condiment packaging,
and have won the trust of many well-known domestic and foreign brands
that provide customers with quality products and services. The low-weight
and high-strength corrugated medium paper products produced by the
Group have won the favor of customers in the Pearl River Delta market in
Guangdong, leading to a steady increase of its market share.

In 2019, the Group's papermaking segment was affected by Sino-U.S.
Trade frictions and the downturn of the international and domestic
economies during the year, which downstream orders in the packaging
carton industry decreased significantly, and the price of raw paper fell
sharply. Under the difficult market situation because of the oversupply in
the domestic paper industry, the Group continued to strengthen research
and development of new products during the period, which successfully
produced 48 g/m? AA grade low-quantity high-strength corrugated
medium paper to increase the marketing efforts to successfully open new
customers. At the same time, it improved equipment production efficiency,
increased product capacity, reduced unit cost consumption in order to
premise of stable product quality to achieve the increase about 1.60% in
sales volume of the papermaking segment compared with the same period
last year. However, due to the unit price of sales decreased by 16.44%
compared with last year, it recorded the revenue of RMB1,559,861,000
during the year, which decreased by RMB282,942,000 compared with the
same period last year; the profitability increased by 13.27% compared with
the same period last year by contrast, which is better profit level in the
industry. During the period, the Group signed a sale and purchase
agreement to acquire a paper mill in Jiangxi in January 2020, and
completed the transaction on 1 March 2020. This paper mill owns 200,000
tons of paper production capacity approval and which has been completed
into production of 100,000 tons, this paper mill will be another new
momentum to the future development of the Group’s papermaking
segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB R i S AT

The packaging segment of the Group was greatly affected by the
contraction of orders from downstream customers in 2019, which decreased
by 14.81% approximately during the year, the unit price of products also
fell by around 4.57% simultaneously. The revenue in the packaging
segment recorded RMB807,290,000, a decrease of RMB197,923,000
compared with the same period last year, its profit also decreased by
approximately 70.02%.

Product Introduction

Corrugated Medium Paper

The Group produces 48 to 140 g/m? of high-strength corrugated medium
paper. Except for some of the Group's paper-based packaging products as
raw materials, it is mainly sold to paperboard manufacturers and carton
packaging manufacturers in the Pearl River Delta region of Guangdong.
The total number of customers currently serving exceeds 120. The Group
has been committed to the research and development of low-gram-weight
high-strength corrugated medium paper products in order to achieve win-
win cooperation with downstream packaging companies that customers
can reduce cost to buy base-papers and jointly resist market competition
pressure. The Group successfully developed 48 g/m? low-gram-weight
high-strength corrugated medium paper products in 2019. This product
has won customer recognition for its market scarcity and high cost
performance. The gross profit margin of corrugated medium paper
products in 2019 was approximately 18.44%, an increase of 2.28 percentage
points from 16.16% as compared to the same period last year.

Paper-Based Packaging Products

The Group's paper packaging products use containerboard and corrugated
medium paper as the main raw materials, including watermark cartons,
colour printing cartons and honeycomb paper-based products. In 2019, the
revenue in paper-based packaging products of the Group’s was
RMBB807,290,000, representing a decrease of RMB197,923,000 or 19.69% as
compared with 2018, it was mainly due to downstream customers’ orders
falling by 14.81% because of the economic downturn and unit price of
products falling by 4.57% at the same time. The gross profit margin of
paper-based packaging products in 2019 was approximately 19.96%, down
by 1.13% percentage points from 21.09% as compared to the same period
last year.

Watermark Cartons

The Group'’s watermark cartons are mainly used for household air-
conditioning packaging, small household appliance packaging, household
electronic consumer products, and food seasoning product packaging. The
Group continues to ensure high-quality product supply and quality after-
sales service, and enhance customer trust and access. Many brand
customers favour and maintain long-term stable cooperation.

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B R wm D T

Colour Printing Cartons

In order to meet customers’ requirements for different product packaging
quality, the Group also provides high-quality colour printing cartons for
household air-conditioning packaging, small household appliance
packaging, household electronic consumer products and food seasoning
product packaging.

Honeycomb Paper-Based Products

The honeycomb paper-based products produced by the Group mainly
replace the plastic cushioning packaging materials and the alternative foam
cushioning products used in the protection of the original various types of
cartons. They are environmentally-friendly and energy-saving materials with
light capacity, smooth surface, non-deformation and good cushioning
performance; it can buffer the packaging for a variety of industries. The
honeycomb paper products currently produced by our group are still
mainly provided for the Group's floating watermark cartons and colour
printing cartons.

KN
AEBRBHEEPHNTRAERBERENZRIFREMH
BENARKAZHEE  NIREEREER  KAE

FHEBEMARRMAREERBRESTENFRENAA -

EEARM
7«1&&li?ﬂ’]ﬁﬁ%%%f%%ﬁ?xiﬁﬁﬁéqﬂFHJB"M%

ENZEREEFEREMAURERORBRER  =RFE
$“‘ RETE - TRE - ZE T HRREGREM K -
ROARZETENETEE REERLENEER
RN EERRNEBFKENARME M ENAME T PIRHE
o

Breakdown of the Group’s Principal Activities REEFE X PH
2019 2018
S —NE
Percentage Gross Percentage Gross
of total profit of total profit
Turnover revenue margin Turnover revenue margin
L fhRs
S Aok EF=X HERR Bl ERE
RMB'000 % %  RMB'000 % %
AR®TF R (%) (%) AR¥ETFT (%) (%)
Corrugated medium paper RS
AA grade AARR 1,559,861 65.90 1,842,803 64.70
Subtotal NEE 1,559,861 65.90 18.44 1,842,803 64.70 16.16
Paper-based packaging Products MELEEE
Watermark cartons MoE @ 4558 495,384 20.93 627,663 22.04
Colour printing cartons Pgr inc] 139,221 5.88 149,165 5.24
Honeycomb paper-based products & 41 &) 7 172,685 7.29 228,385 8.02
Subtotal e 807,290 34.10 19.96 1,005,213 35.30 21.09
TOTAL “st 2,367,151 100.00 18.96 2,848,016 100.00 17.90
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB R i S AT

Turnover by Customer at Paper-Based Packaging Products

MARREREERERIN

2019
—E-hEF
Percentage
of total
RMB’000 revenue (%)
L4z

AR®T T B2 (%)

2018
—T-N\F
Percentage
of total
RMB’000 revenue (%)
(=EGEE

ARETT B L (%)

Household air conditioners and

ol

AR EREEER

small home appliances manufacturers 592,774 73.43 796,141 79.20
Food and seasoning manufacturer BmAREIAERD 163,191 20.21 194,805 19.38
Other Hip 51,325 6.36 14,267 1.42
TOTAL st 807,290 100.00 1,005,213 100.00
Capacity and Capacity Utilisation Rate EEEREREFERAR

The Group provides one-stop service solution to its customers covering
from recycling of waste paper, manufacturing of high-strength corrugated
medium paper, production of corrugated cartons and honeycomb paper-

based products to packaging services, making full use of our vertically

integrated industrial chain.

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
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Corrugated Medium Paper

The main production base of corrugated medium paper is located in
Zhongshan. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had 7
corrugated medium paper production lines with a total designed annual
capacity of 800,000 tons, making the Group one of the leading corrugated
paper producers in Guangdong region. The Group always attached

AR S

EBCHRONIEEEEMURAPTIL  BE_FT—-hF
TZA=FT—HIEFE - K%@Tzﬁﬁtﬂmﬁﬁwﬁ&iﬁ
8 - HBRRAET AR EEREIE 800,000 M8 /4 B [ <8 5k BY FLAS
BHREERZ —  SE-BEERRITEERERELRK
FEENTHE RFEA- FEKRDERTEBERER

emphasis on improvement of production efficiency and optimization of EERENKLERS Ba TESUAREMERE -
plant management. During the Year, the Group adopted the performance
indicator approach to management the corrugated medium paper
production lines, successfully improving production volume and capacity
utilisation rate.
2019 2018
—E-_HE —T-N\F
Planned Actual  Effective Planned Actual Effective
operation operation rate  operation  operation rate
(hours) (hours) (%) (hours) (hours) (%)
HEEST BEREF BRE FEE?T  ERES ARx
(M) (/INBF) (%) (/)N (/)N (%)
Zhongshan Yong Fa =P S
No. 1 paper machine 1SR E A 8,634 8,106 93.88 8,525 7,922 92.93
No. 2 paper machine 2R E A 8,633 7,907 91.59 8,481 7,841 92.45
No. 3 paper machine 35E s A 8,216 7,633 92.90 8,482 7,894 93.07
No. 5 paper machine 5 8 3 A i 8,554 7,963 93.09 8,557 7,813 91.31
Hung Hing 75
No. 1 paper machine 1SR iE AR 8,437 7,783 92.25 8,343 7.915 94.87
No. 2 paper machine 25 B A 8,498 7,510 88.37 8,320 7,876 94.66
No. 3 paper machine IIEAR I 8,382 7,729 92.21 8,344 7.913 94.83
Paper-Based Packaging Products EHEELER

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 13
production lines (including 8 corrugated cartons production lines (1
production line is under optimization) and 5 honeycomb paper-based
products production lines) which are mainly located in five cities including
Zhongshan, Zhuhai, Wuhan, Shijiazhuang and Zhengzhou. The Group's
total designed annual capacity for corrugated cartons reached 621,216,000
square meters, whereas that for honeycomb paper-based products was
25,581,000 square meters. The Group made persistent efforts to improve
production deployment, and carried out upgrading and transformation on
certain production facilities during the Year, effectively improving the
production volume and capacity utilisation rate, which in turn enhanced the
overall operational efficiency and cost advantage of the Group.
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2019 2018
—E-NE —Z-N\5
Capacity Capacity
Design Actual utilization Design Actual utilization
capacity capacity rate capacity capacity rate
RETER BRESE ERFERE RETER BREE EfERE
'000 sgq.m. 000 sq.m. (%) '000sq.m.  '000sq.m. (%)
FEHXK FEHXK (%) FERK FEAK (%)
Zhongshan =il
No. 1 corrugated cartons production line 155 FLAF 488 £ E 4R 38,880 9,887 25.43 38,880 20,686 53.21
No. 3 corrugated cartons production line 35t FLASARAE £ E AR 38,880 318 0.82 38,880 3973 10.22
No. 7 honeycomb paper-based THREBHRREER
product production line 4,312 3,672 85.17 4,312 3,703 85.88
No. 8 honeycomb paper-based SR EEMRREER
product production line 3,525 3,169 89.89 3,525 2,981 84.57
New No. 2 corrugated cartons 2R R REEER
production line 184,140 57,362 31.35 184,140 61,840 33.58
Zhuhai %
No. 5 corrugated cartons production line 55t LIS AR AE £ E % 72,900 44,067 60.45 72,900 38,150 52.33
No. 6 corrugated cartons production line 655 FLAF 448 £ &= 4R 45,360 20,866 46.00 45,360 29,289 64.57
No. 11 corrugated cartons production line 1157 FLAE 446 £ E 47 150,660 7,124 473 N/ATER NATER NAT#EA
No. 15 corrugated cartons production line* 15%% FLIS 4% 48 4 B4R * NATRER NATER NATER NATER NATER NATER
Shijiazhuang ARE
No. 9 corrugated cartons production line 5% FLABALAH £ 4 90,396 11,135 12.31 90,39 17,793 19.68
No. 10 honeycomb paper-based 0 BEBREREER
product production line 6,696 4,245 63.40 6,696 6,515 97.30
Zhengzhou I
No. 12 honeycomb paper-based 125 EBREREESR
product production line 4,352 3,479 79.93 4,352 4,332 99.54
Wuhan HE
No. 14 honeycomb paper-based UHREBREREER
product production line 6,696 4,086 61.03 6,696 4131 61.69
TOTAL corrugated cartons s RIBAAE 621,216 150,759 24.26 470,556 171,731 36.50
honeycomb paper-based product [egeg ST 25,581 18,651 72.91 25,581 21,662 84.68

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
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Acquisition of 80% of Equity Interest in Zhengyi

On 3 January 2020, the Group announced the acquisition of 80% of equity
interest in Yudu County Zhengyi Paper Products and Paper Industry
Company Limited* (T #8 & IE 18 & @ 48 % B R 2 7)) (“Zhengyi”) at a
consideration of RMB640,000,000. The acquisition has been completed on 1
March 2020. Zhengyi located in Jiangxi Province, operates the manufacture
and sale of corrugated papers and waste paper recycling, with a designed
production capacity of 100,000 tons per annum. The Company is optimistic
in the high-end corrugated medium paper industry and believe that there
is a large demand for high-end corrugated medium paper in the market.

Financial Review

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the revenue of the Group was
approximately RMB2,367,151,000 (2018: RMB2,848,016,000), representing a
decrease of approximately RMB480,865,000 or 16.88%, of which the
revenue of paper-making segment decreased 15.35% and its sales volume
of products increased by 1.60% compared with last year, and the sales unit
price decreased about 16.44%; the revenue of packaging segment
dropped 19.69% because of the decrease in the sales volume and selling
price per unit by approximately 14.81% and 4.57% respectively. The
Group's gross profit margin for the year of 2019 was 18.96% (2018: 17.90%),
an increase of 1.06 percentage points as compared with the same period
of last year, it is mainly due to the gross profit of paper-making segment of
the Group increased 2.28 percentage points from 16.16% last year to
18.44% in the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the profit and total comprehensive
income for the Year attributable to owners of the Group was
RMB82,184,000 (2018: RMB109,358,000), representing a decrease of
RMB27,174,000 or 24.85% as compared with the same period last year, it
was mainly due to both decreases in sales volume and selling price per unit
of the packaging segment, which results the profit of packaging segment
decreased about 70.02% as compared to the same period last year.
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Group's Profit

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group's profit before tax was
approximately RMB119,180,000 (2018: RMB154,014,000), representing a
decrease of RMB34,834,000 or 22.62% as compared with the same period
last year.

The finance costs were approximately RMB45,835,000 (2018:
RMB46,295,000), a slight decrease 0.99% at the same period last year. As at
31 December 2019, the balance of bank borrowings, other borrowings and
obligations under a finance lease of the Group amounted RMB873,312,000,
represented a decrease of RMB91,605,000 to RMB964,917,000. Interest
expenses in finance costs reduced RMB4,268,000 in the year. However, to
the implementation of the initial application of HKFRS 16 — Leasing in
2019, this calculated present value of lease liabilities in finance costs,
affecting the amount of RMB3,808,000, the finance costs lowered
RMB460,000 as compared to last year only.

The income tax expense was approximately RMB18,152,000 (2018:
RMB23,301,000), representing a decrease of RMB5,149,000 as compared
with the same period last year.

Prospects

In 2020, it is expected that the trade friction between China and the United
States and the outbreak of the new novel coronavirus (COVID-19) epidemic
will cause the Chinese economy to be oppressed and make Chinese
enterprises encounter unprecedented difficulties. However, the economic
fundamentals of China remain stable while China’s industrial economy is
still making progressing in transformation. China’s status as the world’s
largest consumer, exporter, and consumer product manufacturer remains
unchanged, and it has further strengthened that Chinese enterprises
continue to move towards reform and innovation. The two major paper
production bases of the Group will ban the burning of raw coal and use
clean energy such as natural gas in accordance with government
requirements in 2020. It is expected that it will have a certain impact on the
Group's operating efficiency in the short term. However, for the long-term
growth and development, the Group will face difficulties and turn crisis into
opportunities, vigorously promote technological research and
development, improve equipment operation efficiency, and improve the
overall competitiveness and profitability of the Group with products that
better fulfill market demand and more comprehensive and high-quality
services. At the same time, the Group will also continue to pay attention to
investment projects with development prospects, and develop steadily
while maintaining the capital structure, and strive to create higher returns
for shareholders.
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Partial Financial Statement Analysis

Cost of Sales

The Group's cost of sales increased from RMB2,338,314,000 in 2018 to
RMB1,918,338,000, representing a drop of 17.96%.

Corrugated Medium Paper
The cost of sales of corrugated medium paper were RMB1,272,188,000
(2018: RMB1,545,070,000), representing a decrease of 17.66%.

Paper-Based Packaging Products

The cost of sales of paper-based packaging products were
RMB646,150,000 (2018: RMB793,244,000), representing a decrease of
18.54%.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit recorded for the Year is RMB448,813,000, representing a
decrease of 11.95% as compared with RMB509,702,000 in Year 2018. The
average gross profit margin increased from 17.90% in Year 2018 to 18.96%
for the Year.

Corrugated Medium Paper

The gross profit from corrugated medium paper for 2019 was
RMB287,673,000 (2018: RMB297,733,000), representing a drop of 3.38%.
The overall gross profit margin for 2019 was 18.44% (2018: 16.16%), up by
2.28 percentage points.

Paper-Based Packaging Products
The gross profit from paper-based packaging products for 2019 was
RMB161,140,000 (2018: RMB211,969,000), representing a decrease of
23.98%. The overall gross profit margin for 2019 was 19.96% (2018: 21.09%),
declined of 1.13 percentage points.

Other Income, Other Gains and Losses

Other income, other gains and losses mainly included income from interest
RMB6,224,000 (2018: RMB2,388,000), government subsidies RMB5,262,000
(2018: RMB6,100,000) and net amount of exchange losses RMB932,000
(2018: RMB1,594,000).

Distribution and Selling Expenses

The distribution and selling expenses of the Group decreased by
approximately 1.98% from RMB74,472,000 for the Year 2018 to
RMB72,994,000 for the Year. The distribution and selling expenses during
the Year mainly included salaries of salesmen, transportation costs and
business promotion expenses. The decrease of distribution and selling
expenses is mainly due to the decrease in transportation costs in order to
decline in sales.
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Administrative Expenses

The Group's administrative expenses decreased by approximately 4.04%
from RMB143,656,000 for the Year 2018 to RMB137,858,000 for the Year.
The administrative and other expenses during the Year mainly included
salaries of management, staff welfare, rent and depreciation. The decrease
of administrative expenses is mainly due to the decline in salaries in relation
to payment of performance bonus to certain management personnel for
the Year.

Finance Costs

Finance costs of the Group decreased by approximately 0.99% from
RMB46,295,000 for the Year 2018 to RMB45,835,000 for the Year.

Interest rates of bank borrowings were at variable rates ranging from 3.85%
to 5.66% for the Year, as compared with 4.35% to 6.18% for Year 2018. The
weighted average interest rates under bank borrowings in fixed rate, bank
borrowings in variable rate, lease liabilities/obligations under finance leases
in fixed rate and other borrowings in variable rate during the Year were
4.01%, 4.83%, 5.78% and 11.39% respectively (2018: 4.90%, 5.27%, 6.12%
and 9.28% respectively).

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses of the Group decreased by 10.78%
from RMB95,239,000 in the Year 2018 to RMB84,970,000 for the Year. The
research and development expenses was mainly due to our goal to
improve the competitiveness of the Group’s products and to develop new
products in response to demand from customers, for which the Group
conducted research on new technology and new process to enhance
production efficiency and product quality.

Profit and Total Comprehensive Income

The Group's profit and total comprehensive income for the Year was
RMB101,028,000. The profit and total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to owners of the Company was RMB82,184,000, representing a
drop of 24.85% to RMB109,358,000 to the profit and total comprehensive
income attributable to owners of the Company for Year 2018, it is mainly
due to decreases in sales volume and selling price per unit of the
packaging segment to resulted a significant drop in profit from packaging
segment about 70.02%.

Dividend Policy

The declaration, form, frequency and amount of any dividend payout of the
Company must be in accordance with relevant laws, rules and regulations
and subject to the Bye-laws of the Company. Subject to compliance with
applicable laws, rules, regulations and the Bye-laws, in deciding whether to
propose any dividend payout, the Board will take into account, among
other things, the financial results, the earnings and distributable reserves,
the operations and liquidity requirements, the debt ratio and possible
effects on the credit lines, and the current and future development plans of
the Company.
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Dividends

In the highly volatility of the current domestic and international market
under the outbreak of novel coronavirus (COVID-19) epidemic at China in
early 2020 would cause a lot of uncertainties. Therefore, the Board has
recommended, subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting (the "AGM"), the payment of a final dividend of RMB3.00
cents (equivalent to HKD3.246 cents) per Share for the Year (2018: a final
dividend of RMB10.00 cents per Share) to those Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Friday, 3 July 2020.
The recommended final dividend, if approved at the AGM on Friday, 26
June 2020. The recommended final dividend will be paid in Hong Kong
dollars. The RMB to Hong Kong dollar exchange rate for the final dividend
calculated using the opening indicative counter buying telegraphic transfer
rate for off-shore RMB of The Hong Kong Association of Banks announced
on 27 March 2020. The final dividend is expected to be paid on or around
Wednesday, 15 July 2020.

Closure of Register of Members

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 22 June
2020 to Friday, 26 June 2020 (both days inclusive). During the period, no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify to attend and vote
at the AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company's branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 19 June 2020.

For determining the entitlement of the recommended final dividend, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 6 July
2020 to Tuesday, 7 July 2020 (both days inclusive). During the period, no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify to the
recommended final dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 3 July 2020.
The final dividend will be paid to shareholders on or around Wednesday,
15 July 2020.
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Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure
In 2019, the Group's main sources of funding were cash generated from
operating activities and bank loans

RBEL  MBRERRELREGR
R-Z-NFEAEENESOREERELEDAHE
ERMRS RRTER -

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FH&T

Net assets BEFERE 1,124,407 1,073,379
Bank balances and cash SRITEB LIRS 231,089 258,981
Total borrowings N k] 873,312 957,471
Equity attributable to the Owners of the Company NABVER ANE(EREZS 925,909 893,725
Current ratios BN R 1.13 1.05
Net gearing ratio* FEERGL X 54.25% 65.97%

* The net gearing ratio is calculated as net borrowings divided by equity attributable

to the Owners of the Company, in which the net borrowings are calculated as total

bank and other borrowings less pledge deposits and bank balances and cash.

Cash Flow
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a net cash outflow of
RMB27,892,000.

The net amount of the cash outflow generated from investing activities for
the purchase of property, plant and equipment in amount of
RMB86,052,000, and the deposit paid for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment in amount of RMB6,785,000.

Inventories

The inventories decreased by 15.15% to RMB137,275,000 as at 31
December 2019 as compared to the inventories balance of RMB161,778,000
as at 31 December 2018. During the Year, the inventory turnover day was
extended up to 28 days (2018: 25 days), remaining at a normal level.

Trade Receivables

As at 31 December 2019, the trade receivables amounted to
RMB429,804,000 (as at 31 December 2018: RMB502,272,000). We generally
granted credit period of 30 to 120 days to our paper-based packaging
products customers and credit period of 30 to 75 days to our corrugated
medium paper customers. The trade receivables turnover days delayed to
72 days (2018: 66 days).

Trade Receivables Backed by Bank Bills Receivables

As at 31 December 2019, the trade receivables backed by bank bills
receivables amounted to RMB298,640,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB423,006,000).
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Trade Payables

As at 31 December 2019, the trade payables amounted to RMB156,003,000
(as at 31 December 2018: RMB205,383,000). The Group managed to obtain
a credit period of 30 to 120 days from the majority of its suppliers. The
trade payables turnover days was shortened to 34 days (2018: 37 days),
which was mainly due to the Group continued to convert settlements to its
suppliers from using bank acceptance bills to cash settlement to reduce
the purchase of cost of raw materials from said suppliers continuously.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s bank borrowings and other
borrowings balance amounted to RMB873,312,000 (as at 31 December
2018: RMB957,471,000).

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2019, the gross gearing ratio was approximately 36.02%
(as at 31 December 2018: 37.43%), which was calculated on the basis of the
total amount of bank borrowings and other borrowings as a percentage of
the total assets. The net gearing ratio was 54.25%, which was calculated on
the basis of the amount of bank borrowings and other borrowings less
pledged bank deposits and cash and bank balances as a percentage of the
shareholders’ equity (as at 31 December 2018: 65.97%).

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2019, the Group pledged certain assets with carrying
value of RMB789,547,000 as collateral for the Group’s borrowing (as at 31
December 2018: RMB936,377,000). As the Group shifted the original
settlement of bank acceptance bills to cash settlement during the year, the
discount on bank acceptance bills was decreased compared with last year,
resulting in a decrease in the amount of collateral borrowed by the Group
during the year. Please refer to note 39 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company for details.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's capital commitments (including the
engaged and authorized capital commitments) were RMB23,275,000 (as at
31 December 2018: RMB12,855,000). All the capital commitments were
related to purchase of properties, plants and equipment.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group had no significant contingent liabilities or litigation or arbitration
of material importance as at 31 December 2019.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group collects most of its revenue and incurs most of the expenditures
in RMB. Although the Group undertakes certain transactions denominated
in foreign currencies, mainly the currency of United States and the currency
of Hong Kong, the exposures to exchange rate fluctuations is minimal. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. The
Directors, however, will monitor foreign exchange rate closely and consider
entering into foreign currency hedging arrangement should the need arise.
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Human Resource Management

The Group had 2,684 employees as at 31 December 2019 (as at 31
December 2018: 2,956 employees), in which approximately 473 were
engineers and technical staff or employees with higher education
backgrounds. The staff costs amounted to RMB239,911,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (for the year ended 31 December 2018:
RMB261,922,000). The table below shows the number of employees of the
Group by function as at 31 December 2018:

ADERERE

RIE—NF+-_A=+—HB AEBEFA264KET
(RZE—N\F+ZA=+—H:2956%ET) EF4
A3 ATIRMEBMAESEESSHEESNES -
BHE_Z—-NF+-A=1+—HLFENEETRAE
AREE239911,000(HE=F—N\F+_A=+—H
IEFE - ARME261,922,0007T) © TREFAZZ—N
F+ZA=Z+—HREERBEZONEEHE

Percentage

of total

Number of number of

Function employees employees

HEEAH

BinE EEHE WEDL

Management and Administration BB NRITHR 463 17.25%

Sales and Marketing SHE N 83 3.09%
Research and Development in Technology R R T R T2

and Engineering 316 11.78%

Production and Quality Control HENE S 1,822 67.88%

Total &=t 2,684 100.00%

Our remuneration is determined by reference to the employees’
experience, qualification and overall market situation, while the bonus is
related to the financial performance of the Group and the individual
performance. The Group also undertakes to provide proper trainings and
sustainable professional development opportunities for the employees if
needed.

The Company has also adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) and a share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) with a
primary purpose of motivating our employees and other eligible persons
entitled under the Share Option Scheme or the Share Award Scheme to
optimize their contributions to the Group and to reward them for their
contribution to the Group.

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
EEFBIZRAER AR

AEENHIMGTELSEENEINERIEE REBE
MSLME  /EAT AR BRI K48 R BRI REHEE -
AEBTRESGREMEEENTRARSRIEEEN
BRI R EE X RS -

ARRIREERAERER S ([ ERET8)) kA2
Bt (R EBEE ) T2ANERBBERETS
B RE RSB E TR EMAERAL  BITHE
AEENER - RRKFBENERS T EE -

Annual Report 2019
—EnEEHR



Management Discussion and Analysis

BB R i S AT

Major Risks and Uncertainties
In order to achieve stable business operations, the management of the

Company pays close attention to the risk factors that the company may

face. Based on the key risk indicators, after evaluation and analysis, the risks

faced by the Company mainly include:

1.

Operational Risks from Macroeconomic Control:

Due to macroeconomic policy adjustments, certain impacts on the
upstream and downstream customers of the Group will indirectly
affect the sales and profits of packaging and papermaking
enterprises (including the Group). Due to the tightening of the
environmental protection policy, the cost of the paper packaging
industry will increase and there will be certain operational risks.

Business Risks Arising from Fluctuations in Raw Material
Prices:

Since the costs of raw material account for a relatively high
proportion of production costs, fluctuations in raw material prices
have a certain impact on profits.

Risks from Market Competition:

The Group's packaging business has a low concentration. The
enterprises with certain scale and strength in the industry are mainly
expanding their production capacity and increasing their market
share. The market competition is fierce. The papermaking business
of the Group faces leading enterprises in the industry to compete in
the same region and the competition is fierce.

Quality Risks:

Due to the inability to meet the product quality standards in the
industry, the mass quality problems caused by customers’ demand
cannot be met, which resulting in losses from batch waste or
inventories.
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Corporate Governance Report

Corporate Governance Structure

» Shareholders
%

The directors of the Company (the "Directors”) are pleased to present the
corporate governance report in the annual report of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year”).

The Company has consistently adopted the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Code”) promulgated by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) as guidelines to reinforce our corporate
governance principles. This report describes how the Company has applied
the principles during the year.

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the Code
as stated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31
December 2019.
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Board of Directors

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company has a balance of skill
and experience and a balanced composition of Executive and Non-
executive Directors, the overall management of the Company’s business
was vested in the Board. The Board has delegated the day-to-day
management of the Company’s business to the executive management
team, and focuses its attention on matters affecting the Company’s overall
strategic policies, finances and shareholders. As at 31 December 2019, the
Board comprised seven members, consisting of three Executive Directors
namely, Mr. Hu Zheng (Chairman), Mr. Hu Hancheng (Co-Chairman) and
Mr. Hu Hanchao, one Non-Executive Director namely, Mr. Chen Riyue and
three Independent Non-executive Directors namely, Mr. Chung Kwok Mo
John, Mr. Liew Fui Kiang and Mr. Shin Yick Fabian. The Directors are well-
versed in respective areas such as knowledge and technical know-how of
paper-making and packaging industries, accounting and finance and
business management. The Board as a whole has achieved an appropriate
balance of skills and experience. The profiles of all directors and the
relationship among members of the Board (including financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships, if any) are set out on
pages 53 to 59.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Five Board meetings were held during the financial year. All the Directors
actively participated in each meeting in person, via telephone or
videoconferencing. They gave and received reports on the activities of the
operating divisions and presented papers supporting decisions which
required the Board approval. The Board consents were given by-vote at
the Board meetings.

The dates of the 2019 regular Board meetings were determined according
to the requirement of the Bye-laws and any amendments to this schedule
were notified to all the Directors at least 14 days before the meeting.
Suitable arrangements were in place to allow the Directors to include items
in the agenda for regular Board meetings.

If a Director had a conflict of interest in a transaction or proposal to be
considered by the Board and which the Board has determined to be
material, the individual Director would declare his interest and was required
to abstain from voting. The matter would then be considered at a Board
meeting attended by independent Directors who had no material interest
in the transaction.
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Details of the attendance of Directors at these Board meetings and at the
meetings of five Board committees (the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Risk
Management Committee and the Budget Management Committee) and
the annual general meeting (the “AGM") are set out in the following table:

TREAEFHFESE AN MEEFRES (FRZ

T FMEES REZES RAREEZESLE

:tﬂ]]k pill

BEEZEE) MERBFAS(([RREFAE)NHE

LA

Meetings Attended/Meetings Held

HEEE/ BEEY
Risk Budget
Board Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination Management Management
Name of directors Meeting ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee AGM
£ HH R% ERER REEE BR

Bspg 31 ZE% Z8%g ZE8 Z8g ZEg BEAE
Executive Directors YTES
Mr. Hu Zheng MERE 5/5 N/ATER 212 2/2 n n mn
Mr. Hu Hancheng Rt 55 NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER 10 10
Mr. Hu Hanchao BERLE 55 NATER  NANER O NATER  NATER 1 1/1
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Chen Riyue (appointed on 31 May 2019) ~ BRR A4

(RZZE-NERR=T-RZH) 23 NAMER O NAMER  NATER O NATER O NATER  NATER
Mr. Hu Hanxiang (retired on 31 May 2019) EREL

(WZZ-NERA=T-BEHE) 02  NATEER NATEE  NATEE  NATER  NATER 1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYEHTES
Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John EEREE 5/5 22 22 212 "M NARER 1N
Mr. Liew Fui Kiang (appointed on 31 May 2019) 2|85 4

(WZZ-NERA=T-BZH) 33 n N N M NATER NATER
Mr. Shin Yick Fabian (appointed on 31 May 2019) %5 % 4

(RZZ-NFRA=T—HZEF) 33 n n n 1 N/ATER N/ARER
Mr. Wu Youjun (retired on 31 May 2019) RREEE

(RZZ-NERA=T—HER) 112 [l 17n 7 NATER  NATER on
Prof. Zhu Hongwei (retired on 31 May 2019)  REEHRK

(R=Z-NEFRA=T—HEL) 212 n n n NATER NATER 1n

Mr. Hu Hanxiang and Mr. Wu Youjun did not attend the 2019 AGM as he
had other prior business engagement.

All Directors had access to the services of the company secretary who
regularly updated the Board on governance and regulatory matters. Any
Director, wishing to do so in the furtherance of respective duties, might
take independent professional advice (through the Chairman) at the
Company's expense. The availability of professional advice extended to the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee, the Risk Management Committee and the Budget
Management Committee.

Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board committees, together

with any supporting documents, were available to all Directors. Draft and
final versions of the minutes were sent to all Directors for their comment

and record respectively.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) which
sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in
order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional
experience, industry experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Board recognised the benefits of diversity in the Board in enhancing
the Board effectiveness and corporate governance. The Nomination
Committee will give consideration to a number of factors as set out in the
Policy when identifying suitably qualified candidates to become members
of the Board, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, industry
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Board is
considered well balanced and of a diverse mix appropriate for the business
of the Company. The Company will also take into account its own business
model and specific needs from time to time to determine the optimum
composition of the Board. The Company will review the Policy on a regular
basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.

Board Committees

The Board has established five committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Risk
Management Committee and the Budget Management Committee,
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019. During the year, these
committees adhered to their principles, procedures and arrangements set
out above. The respective committee secretary or designated person took
full minutes of the meetings of these committees and the work of these
committees was reported to the Board regularly.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO")

Under the Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and CEO should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the Chairman and CEO should be clearly
established and set out in writing.

During the year, Mr. Hu Zheng was the Chairman, Mr. Hu Jianpeng was the
CEO of the Company for purpose of maintaining and a more balanced
basis for judgments and decisions. The Board viewed that, under the
leadership of Mr. Hu Zheng as the Chairman of the Company, taking up
the role of providing leadership for the Board and ensures that the Board
works effectively and discharges its responsibility properly. It can also
ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the Company and the
Group.
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Mr. Hu Jianpeng as CEO of the Company, were delegated with the
authority and responsibility to operate the Group'’s business and day-to-
day operation, and implemented the Group's strategy with respect to the
achievement of the business objectives with the assistance of the Executive
Directors and the senior management.

Responsibilities of and Delegation by the Board
The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, overseas
the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business and performance.

The management, consisting of executive Directors along with the senior
executives, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing the strategy
and direction as adopted by the Board from time to time, and conducting
the day-to-day operations of the Group. Executive Directors and the senior
executives meet regularly to review the performance of the businesses of
the Group as a whole, co-ordinate overall resources and make financial and
operational decisions. The Board also gives clear directions as to their
powers of management including circumstances where management
should report back, and will review the delegation arrangements on a
periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of the
Group.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of the
Company and its Shareholders at all times.

Non-Executive Directors

Each of Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Director
was appointed with specific terms. Each of them had signed a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of 1 year commencing from 1
January 2019 and 31 May 2019 respectively, and is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”).

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, the
Company confirms that all Directors have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2019.
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Directors and Officers Liability Insurance

Liability insurance for Directors and senior management of the Company
was arranged by the Company with appropriate coverage for certain legal
liabilities which may arise in the course of performing their duties.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board has adopted the terms of reference on corporate governance
functions on 23 March 2012. The terms of reference of the Board in respect
of corporate governance function are summarized as follows:

(@) to develop and review the Company'’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices to
ensure compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e)  toreview the Company’s compliance with the code provisions set out
in the Code and Corporate Governance Report contained in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules and its disclosure requirements in
the Corporate Governance Report.

The work performed by the Board on corporate governance functions
during the year ended 31 December 2019 included developing and
reviewing the Company'’s policies on corporate governance and making
relevant recommendations.

Continuous Professional Development

Under A.6.1 and A.6.5 of the Code in relation to Directors’ training. All
Directors namely Mr. Hu Zheng, Mr. Hu Hancheng, Mr. Hu Hanchao, Mr.
Chen Riyue, Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John, Mr. Liew Fui Kiang and Mr. Shin
Yick Fabian have completed continuous professional development training
by attending the in-house training of “Boards that Deliver” organized by
the Company.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee for the purposes
of making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee presently comprises one Executive Director,
namely Mr. Hu Zheng and three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John, Mr. Liew Fui Kiang and Mr. Shin Yick
Fabian. The chairman of the Committee is replaced by Mr. Shin Yick Fabian
after the retirement of Prof. Zhu Hongwei at 31 May 2019. The
Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year and details of
attendance are shown in the table on page 24 of this annual report. The
work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31
December 2019 included the following matters:

o make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of
Executive and Non-executive Directors for the years ended 31
December 2020. The Remuneration Committee has considered
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the directors, employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-
based remuneration;

o review and approve remuneration and performance-based
remuneration scheme of Executive Directors from time to time by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time;

J formation of share awards scheme for the eligible senior
management; and

. ensure that no Director or any of respective associates is involved in
deciding their respective remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model that it will review
the proposals made by the management on the remuneration of executive
Directors and senior management, and make recommendations to the
Board. The Board will have final authority to approve the recommendations
made by the Remuneration Committee.
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The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Option Scheme”)
whereby the Board may at its discretion grant options to such eligible
participants (as defined in the Option Scheme) to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The principal terms of the Option Scheme are set out in
Appendix V to the prospectus of the Company dated 24 May 2011. The
Company has also adopted a share award scheme (the “Award Scheme”)
whereby the Board may at its discretion grant shares to such eligible
participants to award the shares of the Company. The principal terms of
the Award Scheme is announced the announcement of the Company
dated 23 April 2019. The purposes of the Option Scheme and Award
Scheme are to enable the Company to grant options or award shares to
selected eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
to the Group.

Nomination Committee

According to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall have power from time to
time and at any time to appoint any person as a director either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. A director appointed by the
Board is subject to re-election by shareholders at the next following
general meeting of the Company. The nomination of a director should be
taken into consideration of the nominee’s skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the Company'’s business.

The Company has established a Nomination Committee for the purpose of
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors.

The Nomination Committee presently comprises four Directors, including
Mr. Hu Zheng, an Executive Director, and three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John, Mr. Liew Fui Kiang
and Mr. Shin Yick Fabian. The Committee is chaired by Mr. Hu Zheng.

The Board delegates the responsibility of appointing and re-electing
Directors to the Nomination Committee and they are responsible for
considering the suitability of a candidate, and approving and terminating
the appointment of a Director. Reviews of the plans for orderly succession
for appointment to the Board and its structure, size and composition are
done on a regular basis by the Nomination Committee. They are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and external consultants
may be engaged, if necessary, to access a wider range of potential
candidate(s).

In evaluating whether an appointee is suitable to act as a director of the
company, the committee will review the professional knowledge, industrial
experience and personal skills of the appointee as well as personal ethics
and integrity of the appointee.
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According the Bye-laws, at each AGM of the Company, one-third of the
Directors shall retire from office by rotation and every Director shall be
subject to retirement at least once every three years. Director(s) newly
appointed by the Board shall hold office until the next following general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at the
meeting.

The Board considers that it is the responsibility of the existing Directors to
give an induction on the information of the Group to the newly appointed
Director and present a manual on the duties and responsibilities as a
director of a listed company to enable the newly appointed Director to
have a proper understanding of the business.

Three Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Hu Zheng, Mr. Hu Hancheng and
Mr. Hu Hanchao had entered into a service contract with the Company for
a period of three years commencing from 1 January 2018, unless
terminated in accordance with the terms of the service contract. The Non-
executive Director and each of the Independent Non-executive Directors
had signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of one
year commencing from 1 January 2019 (Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John) and 31
May 2019 (Mr. Chen Riyue, Mr. Liew Fui Kiang and Mr. Shin Yick Fabian)
respectively and is renewable upon its expiration and may be terminated in
accordance with the terms of the letter of appointment. During the financial
year ended 31 December 2019, there was two meetings held by the
Nomination Committee. Details of attendance are shown in the table on
page 24.

The work of the Nomination Committee during the year ended 31
December 2019 included the following matters:

o to make recommendation to the Board on the acceptance of
retirement from Mr. Hu Hanxiang as a non-executive Director and
Mr. Wu Youjun and Prof. Zhu Hongwei as independent non-executive
Directors of the Company with effective from the end of AGM held
on 31 May 2019,

o to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment of Mr.
Hu Hanxiang as a non-executive Director and Mr. Liew Fui Kiang and
Mr. Shin Yick Fabian as independent non-executive Directors of the
Company with effective from the ordinary resolutions passed on the
AGM held on 31 May 2019;

o to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment of Mr.
Hu Jianpeng as alternate Director to Mr. Hu Zheng (an executive
Director), Mr. Hu Jianjun as alternate Director to Mr. Hu Hancheng
(an executive Director) and Mr. Tan Xijian as alternate Director to Mr.
Hu Hanchao (an executive Director) of the Company with effective
from 1 January 2020;

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
EEFBIZRAER AR

REARRWAR  EARBBERRBFRE L =
DZ—HWERAMEER BESREFRAELIE=F3F
BR—R-BEFGHEZENEFEEIRERARA T —ER
RRE ERBEERRE LERSE-

EFxeRA
150 Wief—
é?%ﬁ%?fﬁééggﬁﬁgﬁfiﬁ}irﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%f%

ﬁ&%%ﬁf&#%%&%%A”$%l

—HRRTESNRERLLE  HEREERPELLED
HARRFL=FORBHE BT N\F—-H—H
T - HERBERIS HEIRFRILERRIN - FMITES
REBUIFNTESCHEARRRTZER  EHDH
H-ZE-AF-A-REEREL) N _F-NFHHA
=t—HRAARE  BERELERAS L) ERY
—F - WHESRREHET - B RBEREHOERT

&I - RBE-ZE-NFT A=t —HLEVRFE
HiE REZESRTMASH SILEFIBNFE24
BHRIBHR

BE-_ZT-NE+-_A=1+—BILEE ELKZEE
TYEFIBWT :

ma>

i)

s MEFERAZMPARELEREARRFNT
EEZNRREAEEMREEHIRIRRARNRREIL
FRTESR R-T-AFRAA=T-BRITHK
RBFEREGRER

. MEESSEZEMNZIRBE AEEBERARIEY
TEERZAREEEEMAES EEBEARABE
VIENTES AT NFREA=T—HEIH
BREAFAG AL BRERBIBEEN

s MEFEE: &%?Eﬁﬁ%%i%ﬁﬂé%ﬂ
ERAE - tAREBEERRNTESHER T ERLES
L BNERARENETARRBHES E@:; -
TE-A-RRERER:

Annual Report 2019
—EnEEHR



Corporate Governance Report
EERTRE

>

to make recommendation to the Board on renew services contracts
of non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors;
and

to assess the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors.

Auditors’ Remuneration
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the fees charged by the Company’s
auditors in respect of audit amounted to approximately RMB1,748,000.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee for the purposes of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Company'’s financial reporting
process and internal controls.

The Audit Committee presently comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company, namely Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John,
Mr. Liew Fui Kiang and Mr. Shin Yick Fabian and is chaired by Mr. Chung
Kwok Mo John.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year and details of
attendance are shown in the table on page 24. The work of the Audit
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2019 included of the
following matters:

o provide recommendation to the Board on the reappointment of
external auditors, and approve the audit fee and terms of
engagement of the external auditors;

o review and monitor external auditors’ independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standard, and discuss with external auditors before audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit and reporting

obligations;

o monitor integrity of financial statements, interim report and annual
report, and review significant financial reporting judgments contained
in them;

o review financial controls, internal controls and risk management
systems;
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discuss with management regarding the system of internal controls
and ensure that management has discharged its duty to have an
effective internal control system including adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes and budget;

. ensure co-ordination between internal and external auditors, and to
ensure that internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and monitor
the effectiveness of internal audit function;

o review financial and accounting policies and practices; and

o review external auditors’ management letter, any material queries
raised by auditors to management in respect of accounting records,
financial accounts or systems of control and management's response.

Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibilities for Accounts
The Directors acknowledge the responsibilities for preparing the accounts
of the Company. The external auditors’ statement about their reporting
responsibilities is set out on pages 76 and 77.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the Group
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Internal Controls

The Board has kept the Company’s system of internal controls under review
to ensure its effectiveness and convened meetings regularly to discuss
financial, operational and risk management control.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee was set up on 18 December 2015 and
currently comprises ten members, including the Mr. Hu Zheng, an executive
Director, three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chung
Kwok Mo John, Mr. Liew Fui Kiang and Mr. Shin Yick Fabian, and six senior
management, namely, Ms. Chen Wei, Ms. Hou Lusi, Ms. Cai Yan, Mr. Ye
Ningfei, Ms. Zhang Zheng and Mr. Liang Nianlin. The chairman of the
Committee is replaced by Mr. Liew Fui Kiang after the retirement of Mr. Wu
Youjun at 31 May 2019.
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The Risk Management Committee is established to, without limitation,
assist the Board to evaluate and determine the nature and extent of the
risks the Board is willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic
objectives, ensure that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems, and assist the
Board to oversee the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management system carried out by the management on an ongoing basis.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Risk Management Committee
held a meeting to discussed and reviewed areas including but not limited
to the key risks faced by the Group, risk management policy and practice
annually as well as the appointment of senior managements in taxation and
information technology as members of the Committee.

Budget Management Committee

The Budget Management Committee was set up on 1 September 2018 and
presently comprises three executive Directors of the Company, namely Mr.
Hu Hanchao, Mr. Hu Zheng and Mr. Hu Hancheng and is chaired by Mr. Hu
Hanchao.

The responsibilities of the Budget Management Committee is established
to, without limitation, assist the Board to monitor and review the
effectiveness of the Group's annual business plan and financial, to review
the implementation of the Group’s budget in existing or potential
investment projects and make recommendations, and also give the
recommendations to the Board on the capital expenditures.

Company Secretary

Mr. Kersen Chan has been engaged by the Company as the company
secretary since March 2015, her biographical details are set out in the
in this
annual report. Mr. Chan has complied with the requirement under Rule 3.29

section headed "“Profiles of Directors and Senior Management”
of the Listing Rules during the year.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company endeavors to maintain an on-going dialogue with its
shareholders, and in particular through annual general meetings or other
general meetings to communicate with the shareholders and encourage
their participation. The Chairman of the Board will make himself available
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on Friday, 26 June
2020 to answer any questions from shareholders.

The Group's official website http://www.zhengye-cn.com contains an
‘Investor Relations’ section which offers timely access to the Company's
press releases, financial reports and announcements.

The Company will continue to maintain an open and effective investor
communication policy and to update investors with relevant information of
the Group in a timely manner.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Right to Convene Extraordinary General Meeting and
Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings
Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company and Bermuda Companies Act, in
addition to regular Board meetings, the Directors of the Company, on the
requisition of shareholders of the Company holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid-up capital of the Company, can convene a special general
meeting to address specific issues of the Company within 21 days from the
date of deposit of written notice to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong. The same requirement and procedure also
applies to any proposal to be tabled at shareholders’ meetings for
adoption.

Right to Put Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong. The address is set out in the “CORPORATE
INFORMATION" section of this annual report for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

Constitutional Documents
There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report Guide (R  HERERBEEIINREERS
Content Index
Major Aspect Content Page Index
FTEHE RE BEBES
A1 Emissions
A1 BERRY
General disclosure Information on: 38-43
(@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impact on the issue
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste
— AR EE BREERSORERBHN  MKELHHEDS AELNBEEZYNELS
Hy -
(@) B
(b) ETY éﬁ)\ﬁéﬁ%%ﬁ’ﬁﬁE@iﬂ%&%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ’ﬂﬁﬂ °
A2 Use of Resources
A2EREEM
General disclosure Policies on efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw 43-44
materials
— AR EE BRERER (BIERIR « KREARME) BECR o
A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
A3RERRAER
General disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and 45
natural resources
— AR EE MEETAHRELRRAERERERZENBER -
B1 Employment
B1{E (%
General disclosure Information on: 45-49

— R

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impact on the issue

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other

benefits and welfare
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Major Aspect Content Page Index
FTEHE RE BEBES
B2 Health and Safety
B2 ERZ 2
General disclosure Information on: 45-47
(@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impact on the issue
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards
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B3 Development and Training
B3 /& R IEH
General disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties 48-49
at work. Description of training activities
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B4 Labour Standards
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General disclosure Information on: 49
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(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impact on the issue

relating to preventing child and forced labour
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Major Aspect Content Page Index
FTEHE RE BEBES
B5 Supply Chain Management
B5 L fESEE IR
General disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain 50
—RIRE BT HEE R IRIE At & BB BUR
B6 Product Responsibility
B6EMEE
General disclosure Information on: 51
(@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impact on the issue
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress
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Hy -
@@ WX X
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B7 Anti-corruption
B7 &S
General disclosure Information on: 51
(@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impact on the issue
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering
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B8 Community Investment
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General disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the 52
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communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests
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About the Group

Established in 1999, Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
(“Zhengye International” or the "Group”) is a large-scale conglomerate
engaged in the production of packaging materials, providing customers
with one-stop solutions covering services like recycling of waste paper,
production of paper products and packaging of products.

Zhengye International is engaged in the production of paper-based
packaging products and corrugated medium paper, with 13 and 7
production lines respectively located in five cities including Zhongshan,
Zhuhai, Wuhan, Shijiazhuang and Zhengzhou. The paper-based packaging
products offered by the Group include corrugated cartons and honeycomb
paper-based products. The major customers are mainly domestic
manufacturers of small home appliances and air conditioners; and
corrugated paper is mainly supplied to upstream manufacturers of
corrugated medium paper-based packaging products.

Zhengye International’s main production base of corrugated medium
paper is located in Zhongshan. The Group currently uses recycled waste
paper as the raw materials for corrugated medium paper production. The
production lines have a total annual design capacity of 800,000 tonnes,
making the Group one of the leading corrugated medium paper producers
in the Guangdong region.

Core Structure of the Group

Zhengye
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About this Report

This report is the first environmental, social and governance (ESG) report
published by Zhengye International which discloses the Group's actions
and performance on sustainability issues in a transparent and open manner
to increase confidence in and understanding of the Group among its
stakeholders.

Reporting Period

All information herein relates to performance of Zhengye International in
environmental protection and community investment during the period
from January 2019 to December 2019. In the next years, the Group will
publish ESG reports on annual basis for inspection by the public and
continuous improvements of transparency and accountability in information
disclosure.

Scope of the Report

With a focus on corrugated medium paper production business of Zhengye
International, this report covers its key places of operations namely two
production plants (the “Plants”) in Zhongshan respectively operated by
Zhongshan Yong Fa Paper Industry Company Limited (“Zhongshan Yong
Fa") and Zhongshan Rengo Hung Hing Paper Manufacturing Company
Limited (“Hung Hing"). The scope of disclosure will be extended to fully
cover all operations of the Group as and when the Group has improved its
data collection system and deepened its ESG work. This report does not
cover the disclosure of key performance indicators in environment. The
Group plans to conduct a carbon assessment next year to further refine
and standardise the indicators to be reported.

Reporting Guideline

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “Guide") issued by The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), and summarised the ESG
performance of Zhengye International. Information herein is derived from
the Group's official documents and statistics, as well as the compilation of
monitoring, management and operational information provided by
subsidiaries pursuant to relevant rules of the Group. A complete index is
available in the last chapter hereof for readers to make quick queries. This
report is made both in Chinese and English, and has been uploaded to the
Group's website (www.zhengye-cn.com). In case of any conflict or
inconsistency between the Chinese and English versions, the Chinese
version shall prevail.
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FEEDBACK
BERRER

Your valuable comments on our performance and reporting format are essential for our continuous progress. You are welcome to
e-mail any question or suggestion on this report to info@zhengye-cn.com, which will enable us to continuously improve our ESG
practices.

BMOBEELSERETHRMORERERF ZHREEER - B THREEEMAAMALESR  BUOBERLEHREXE
info@zhengye-cn.com - @& EEUNEHREZRE  d B RERLE -

Annual Report 2019
ZE-NEFFR

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
EXEBBZRAER AR



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRI g MERwRE

Communication with Stakeholder

The Stock Exchange has put forward four reporting principles in the Guide,
namely materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency, as the
preparation basis of this ESG report. As the Stock Exchange advised,
participation of stakeholders is the method used to assess the materiality.
Through communication with stakeholders, companies can hear the voice
of stakeholders and identify important environmental and social issues.

As for Zhengye International, stakeholders are groups and individuals that
are significantly important to or might be affected by the Group's business.
The Group's stakeholders include not only employees, but also customers,
business partners, investors, regulators and various community groups. In
the past year, the Group communicated with key stakeholders through
different channels. In preparing this report, the Group engaged a
professional consultant to conduct a materiality analysis through
management interviews, and clarified important reporting issues by
reference to expert opinions to direct the Group's sustainable
development roadmap

Communication Channels with Stakeholders during the
Reporting Period

Internal Stakeholders

K EBE
BRAECGHESD PRE TERNMOBARR 8% 88
- Bt FE R34  (EARECGRE e kER
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ETERREBT  BERREEP XBEH RELE B
ERBELEEENHRERE - EREN—F  KEES
TRREEBRISNERE TABENEHBRED
EERNEEEEEMRARNERENAOTNETE
BEMUNN > THAEXEMNERESERNESHE
SALLVE R R B T R B R IR M B HI5E -
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External Stakeholders

REBREF & S E

. Board of Directors . Banks

s EF® o IRTT

. Management and executives . Investors
s EEERTRAER s  KREE

Communication channels:

BEAR

Board meeting, weekly meetings, shareholders’ meetings, telephone inquires and personal visits

Exg gEflg KREXE-
Zhengye International’s business has an impact on different stakeholders
who have different expectations for the Group. In the future, the Group will
continue and enhance communication with its stakeholders and collect
opinions of a wider range of stakeholders through various means to
improve the materiality analysis. The Group will also upgrade the principles
of quantitative, balance and consistency in an effort to define content of
the report and presentation of information in a way better meeting
expectation of stakeholders.

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
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Environmental Protection

Climate changes have brought unprecedented challenges to global
economic development. The extreme weather resulting from climate
changes directly or indirectly has affected the ability of various corporations
to access resources and sustain operations. During the Sustainable
Development Goals Summit 2019, all United Nations members including
China agreed the 2030 Agenda to fight inequalities ad tacking climate
change.

RERE
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""""" BRI R RER LM ENE EE TRARELE
ERERMERFLENE) E_T-NFHEER

Eﬁ%‘iéﬂﬁé‘% CERTEEANBABEEZERERE
BBT=2FHE O HBR T TERRABERIREL

At the Sustainable Development Goals Summit 2019, members of the United Nations unanimously <The 2030 Agenda>, desire to
achieve "fighting inequalities and tackling climate change, while ensuring that no one is left behind.”
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We understand that the establishment of organisation and management
approach for internal environmental management is the primary task to
address the challenges against sustainable development. By reference to
ISO14001 environmental management system, Zhongshan Yong Fa and
Zhongshan Rengo Hung Hing developed their first HSE (Health, Safety and
Environment) Management Manual (“HSE Manual”) and Quality
Environment Manual respectively in 2015 and 2009, to define the
commitments, policies, objectives, division of responsibilities, control
procedures and monitoring and auditing systems in environmental
management. Under the management system comprising the manuals, the
two Plants detailed respective operational and management procedures,
covering such areas as environmental hazards and risk identification, target
management, energy use, environmental monitoring, etc. During the year,
both Zhongshan Yong Fa and Hung Hing held 1ISO14001:2004 certificates
in force issued by a third-party certification authority.

Emissions

The Plants’ production process involves multiple steps like pulping, sand
removal, screening, slushing, grinding, moulding, pressing, drying and
packaging, where sewage, exhaust gas and solid waste are three major
types of emissions. The Plants adopted management measures specific to
source and type of the emissions

Sewage from the Plants mainly derived from pulping, screening,
concentration and pressing steps (commonly known as “white water”).
With sewage station in place at the Plants, white water must be processed
by neutralisation, precipitation, anaerobic and aerobic treatment
procedures before discharged to the designated emission points. The
Plants also regularly tested the sewage after treatment to ensure
compliance with the Water Pollutant Emission Standards on Pulping and
Papermaking Industry, Guangdong Provincial Water Pollutant Emission
Limits and other applicable national standards.
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In addition to the purchased electricity, the Plants have thermal power sub-
plants to generate power and steam for own use, where the coal-fired
boilers produce soot, sulphur dioxide, nitrogen oxides and other air
emissions. Under internal standards on acceptance inspection of raw coal,
both Plants adopted visual inspection, photographing, sampling
inspection, third-party testing and other means to ensure that moisture,
ash content, volatile substance and sulphur content of raw coal are in
accordance with their requirements. Boiler flue gas from the Plants must be
processed by denitration, electrostatic precipitator, bag-hose precipitation
and desulphurisation procedures before emitted to atmosphere. Both
Plants have automatic monitoring devices installed at their boiler discharge
outlets to monitor types and emission volume of pollutants, thus ensuring
that the exhaust gas emissions meet the Air Pollutant Emission Standards
on Thermal Power Plants and other applicable national standards.

The Plants mainly generate general wastes, including coal fly ash, gypsum,
waste residue, sludge, etc. from papermaking, which are classified as
industrial waste other than hazardous waste. Such wastes are categorised
into reusable and non-reusable for processing respectively. For example,
Zhongshan Yong Fa sold coal fly ash to cement manufacturers, and
delivered waste residue, sludge and gypsum to local sanitation authorities
and qualified contractors for processing respectively. Both Plants have
management accounts in place for continuous record of waste generation,
delivery date and destination.

Zhengye International is committed to ensuring its Plants to operate in
compliance with applicable environment laws including the Law of the PRC
on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the Law of the PRC on Air
Pollution Control, and the Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste. During the reporting period, none
of the Plants was found of any non-compliance case involving emissions or
environmental impact.

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
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Summary of Emission Performance Indicators of the Two Plants

MEREERERERRAE

Soot tonne
38.1
yedi3 TR
Sulphur dioxide tonne 539
Boiler flue gas {7 U ’
RIEER Nitrogen oxides tonne 2589
BRED L ’
Carbon emissions tonne
s 702,822
Lirgz 3 7]
Sewage Total emission tonne
— - 2,891,286.9
a7k BHKE IR
Coal fly ash tonne
48,122.9
IR g
Cypsagm tonne 5.520.1
Harmless wastes 7R WA
BEERY Papermaking waste residue tonne 70.513.0
EREES L T
Papermaking sludge tonne
= 2,946.5
TR A
Use of Resources BEREA
To save water and reduce emissions, white water is reused as far as A TEIZHANK - BN BMEHZEREEFERA

possible in production process of the Plants. At Zhongshan Yong Fa, for
example, there is a process consisting of a white water tank to recycle white
water from pulpers, desanders, thickeners and fourdrinier units for reuse in
disintegration, pulping, and paper machine spraying processes.

Energy sources used in papermaking process mainly include electricity and
steam used in disintegration, pulping and paper manufacturing steps.
Cogeneration units are adopted by the Plants to supply coal-fired power as
well as residual heat for generating steam for production purposes.
Compared to the traditional coal-fired power generation model,
cogeneration technology can reduce the energy loss in the form of heat,
and hence equivalent amount of coal can contribute higher energy
efficiency. In order to coordinate with the development of national policies
this year, Hung Hing and Zhongshan Yongfa have completed the coal-to-
gas conversion project, and began to use clean energy from natural gas
boilers in 2020 to replace coal furnaces for production.
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During the reporting period, Zhengye International adopted the
performance indicator method to manage its corrugated medium paper
production lines, and succeeded in improving their production efficiency as
a whole. The Performance Programme was developed by both paper mills
to incorporate resource utilisation requirements into departmental
performance indicators. For instance, if the Thermal Power Department
and the Raw Materials Department can reduce monthly steam and waste
paper consumption by a certain quantity, corresponding bonuses will be
granted according to the policies to further incentivise the departments to
save resources. Such management model will be promoted across the
Group to optimise production line efficiency for corrugated cartons and
honeycomb paper-based products, with an aim at continuous
improvements in the Group's core competitiveness.
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Summary of Resource Utilisation Performance Indicators of the Two Plants
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Total water consumption tonne
2,670,903.6
BFEKE U
Accumulative sewage recycled volume tonne
Use of water resources L 6,060,763.9
KB JEAE Zit5KEAE WA
) . tonne of water/
Water consumption density
tonne of paper 1195
KEBEE WAZK,WAAR
f Coal tonne
Use o e:;(frgy resources 458.831.2
BEIR{E A e L7
Waste paper tonne
529,583.1
Use of raw materials [EE 4K L
R RHE Starch tonne
30,002.6
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The Environment and Natural Resources

Zhengye International seeks to monitor and enhance environmental
performance of its Plants in operation. Departments at the Plants
collaborated to measure and record various emissions and consumption of
resources. In the future, the Group will benchmark against such statistics to
set quantitative targets on emission reduction and resource saving in a
drive to boost efficiency of its day-to-day operations. The Group will further
commit resources in research and development, seeking to introduce more
advanced environmentally friendly production technologies and
equipment.

Zhengye International commits itself to avoiding fire, explosion, chemical
leakage, significant water and electricity supply disruption and other
potential accidents. To this end, the Plants developed respective
emergency response plans to define the accident reporting and control
procedures, avoid diffusion of pollution sources, and manage the impact of
accidents on environment and the surrounding communities. Zhongshan
Yong Fa also maintained green plants outside of its coal bunker and
alongside roads to green the plant area.

Care for Employees

Health and Safety

As a producer, Zhengye International attaches extra importance to
sustaining a healthy and safe workplace. Under the Production Safety
Accountability System and the Production Safety Management System
formulated respectively by Zhongshan Yong Fa and Hung Hing, a
management framework comprising management executives of the Plant
as well as heads of engineering, equipment, production, safety office and
other departments is in place to define duties of personnel and implement
the managerial initiatives. At Zhongshan Yong Fa, efforts were taken to
further standardise the planning, implementation, inspection and
improvement procedures in its safety management programme through
the HSE Manual with reference to OHSAS 18001-2007 standards.

Zhengye International provided employees with safety training to enhance
their safety awareness. The Plants provided new staff with training courses
and assessments at three levels namely company, department and work
group, covering safety regulations, equipment operation, case study, etc.
Employees engaged in special work such as electrical, lifting, boiler and
welding must receive additional professional training, pass the examination
and obtain an operational certificate before performing their respective
duties. The Plants regularly organised safety education in various forms. At
Hung Hing, for example, morning and evening meetings were held from
time to time to explain to the staff the safety and health issues identified in
inspection to enhance their safety awareness.
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Post-specific safety guidelines, protective gears and health support were
provided to employees. Zhongshan Yong Fa also developed safety
management guidelines for thermal process, electrical work, aerial work
and confined space work to illustrate the post-specific safety matters to be
noted. Safety helmets, work shoes, gloves, protective glasses, earplugs and
other protective gears suitable for the post were provided to employees.
Hung Hing introduced a mechanism linking usage of protective gears to
safety bonus to incentivise employees in self-discipline and proper use.
Each year physical examination is provided to employees, and job transfer
and re- examination are arranged to the employees with suspected
symptoms of occupational disease to follow up their health status.

During the reporting period, none of the Plants was found of any non-
compliance case against the Production Safety Law of the PRC, the
Occupational Disease Prevention and Control Law of the PRC and other
safety regulations or any work-related death, except for 13 work-related
injury cases. Based on the amount of employee medical expenses or the
number of rest days caused by work-related injuries, the Plants classified
work-related injury accidents into four categories i.e. minor, general,
serious and extra serious. The four cases of Hung Hing were classified as
minor or general work-related injury accidents. Zhongshan Yong Fa
involved nine minor or general work-related injury accidents.
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Targets of Zhongshan Yong Fa and Hung Hing in 2020:
° Zero work-related death accident

° Not more than one serious accident

° Not more than four general accidents

° Note more than seven minor accidents
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All such work-related injuries were investigated and analysed to identify
and record occurrence time, place, sequence of events, casualties, etc.,
and circulated to all departments of the Plants. Based on the findings, the
Plants imposed punishment on the persons liable and implemented the
remedial measures pursuant to the established regulations. Zhongshan
Yong Fa and Hung Hing did not have any serious work-related injury case
during the year. For other minor and general accidents, the Plant also took
corrective actions including more frequent equipment inspections,
updating safety operating procedures, strengthening staff training,
replacing or installing protective equipment, etc.

In view of the relatively high incidence of occupational injury at the Plants,
Zhengye International will strengthen its supervision on implementation of
the safety management systems of the Plants. The Plants will also clearly
define the work-related accident indicators in their safety targets for the
coming year.
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Overview of the Health and Safety Performance Indicators of the Two Plants

MEFRERZEEANERRAE

Rate of
work-related

Number of accidents Rate of lost Number of  Total number
work-related per 1,000 Lost days due Number of  days due to hours of ~ of working Overall rate of

accidents employees to work injury working days ~ work injury  absenteeism hours  absenteeism

HIZs STEEFH RBIBEX RIGEX

BREF IHEN=E IfkB¥ IfkRE IHBEAL HARIBE AIESBY BREE
Male E13 9 442 288,132 . 63,589 2,167,776 0
Female pegcs 4 10.22 386 71,247 0.25% 14,264 480,120 294%
Employment Systems ERESIE
Zhengye International respects each of its employees. In terms of [FEXBEBRBEEF—(ET - EHMEF - TRHIE - K

remunerations and benefits, working hours, rest time, performance
appraisal, career development, recruitment and selection, etc., Zhongshan
Yong Fa and Hung Hing have open and transparent employment systems
in place, and the relevant requirements are set out in the Human Resources
Cycle Management Policy, Labour and Personnel Management Regulations
and Code for Employees. The plants attach importance to the principle of
open and fair staff recruitment and select the best candidates based on job
requirements. While the plants have yet to formulate staff policies on
diversification, equal opportunities and anti-discrimination at present,
research will be conducted in future to incorporate the relevant
requirements into the existing systems.

The plants have set up mediation committees for employees to lodge oral
or written complaints on employment systems. The committees will assist
the parties in dispute to arrive at a settlement, failing which the parties
concerned may choose to make an application to the local labour
supervision authorities for arbitration. The Group strictly comply with
relevant employment laws, including the Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China and the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China. During the reporting period, the two plants were not aware of any
cases of irregularity related to breach of employment and labour standards,
and did not receive any cases of compliant in relation to discrimination and
sexual harassment.
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Overview of the Employment Performance Indicators of the Two Plants

MEEEREREEEE
Aged below 30 Aged 30-50 Aged over 50 To::]::‘:::; of f:;:refmn;ie ::s
0BT 30-50 850 i o me ey
B . BETAN | BEATARHS
Number of employees Mal
BIAY E,‘g 199 605 214 1,018
73
4.0:1
Female
. 53 197 4 254
Aged below 30 Aged 30-50 Aged over 50 T‘c;talenmugge;:: Ra:::f_::w
0BENT 30-50% BB50% NP i
Number of new RAETHT MELLLA
recruits Male
2 92
FARAT L ’ ’ " .
Female A " 0 15 -
zit
Aged below 30 Aged 30-50 Aged over 50 T::::fllz:‘k;ireff Ra:l::n:’fv:c:ff
30EmAT 30-50 5% 818505 IR =
Number of staff RREXEIRT BTRAE
turnover Male
24 71 41 136
RRET B 127%
/0
Female
2
i 3 3 0 2
Development and Training R REI

Zhengye International treats its employees as strategic partners. Taking
into account departmental development and job function requirements,
the human resources department of the plants conduct annual analysis on
the training needs of employees, formulate annual training plans; and the
relevant departments make arrangements for conducting various training
activities, covering aspects like national laws and regulations, industry
standards, project management, product technology and internal Audit.
The plants also arrange for employees to participate in external training on
a need basis. For instance, Hung Hing has an entrusted training system in
place for selecting employees to participate in learning activities in other
institutions. The plants conduct annual performance appraisal. At
Zhongshan Yong Fa plant, for example, staff appraisal exercises are
classified based on administrative duties and technical levels, and
department heads assess the character and conduct, work performance
and future career development potential of the employees. The results will
be considered for career advancement and salary adjustment, and serve as
the basis for human resources development and planning.
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THIREMEBER - MERFEEREZ - Ud X
BRI BENE T EZIRITHBE LR MERE D
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Overview of the Development and Training Performance Indicators of the Two Plants

MEFERRENEREERE

Total number of
Management | Managerial staff | General staff oeamgrc:?le:; © Total
EEE REAE —-RET 7
EEE REAB RE [ Byz
Mal
EEa’ N 40 53 892 96% of the employees
Number of employees trained L2 . -
YA Fornal received training
i ;‘;e 14 45 172 96% 8 T ZI&H
Number and‘p.ercentage of I\E/Ilaale 2 70 81 1272 94% of the employees
employees receiving performance BK eceived performance
and career development review and ca:eer eview
on a regular basis S b
E%%gkﬁﬁﬁﬁ Fige 1 15 168 94% B THEEEME
RN AR LD AR
Labour Standards % T XA

Zhengye International fully understands that child labour and forced labour
violate fundamental human rights and international labour conventions.
The Group prohibits using child labour, and the plants will validate the
actual age of the job applicants in the recruitment process and check the
identity documents of those selected for employment. Entering into,
alteration, performance and discharge of labour contracts are on a
voluntary basis, and adhere to the principles of equality and reaching a
consensus only after consultation between the employer and the
employees. The plants will never use any unlawful or unfair means to set
constraints on the employment relationship between the employees and
the enterprise. If employees are required to work overtime or work on rest
days due to special circumstances, the plants must obtain prior consent
from the employees and pay overtime wages or arrange for compensation
leave to protect labour rights. During the reporting period, the two plants
were not aware of any cases of child labour or forced labour.

FXEBRBRFEDBARE MR HIS TERERAENR
BETRH - EEZIMFAET  BMEERERETS
HEBEETERTRNEDS  REERENSHER
X BHARMEIN B F - BITMERE NS EE
FrEER - HE—RARA - BESTHAEATE
AR BREETECENERBER - mAKKE
MMEZE TNMKERER LI BEXEBELEEE
ETRAE  MeXMMIITER LB UWRELT
T - EAREHA - MATHRE I 3R 8 T okos Hl 45
THEZ -

The International Labour Organization is a special agency of the United
Nations for promulgating labour standards in the form of international
labour conventions and recommendations, thus improving the working
and living standards of different places in the world. China is a founding
member of the International Labour Organization and its permanent
member.
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Operational Management

Supply Chain Management

Zhongshan Yong Fa and Hung Hing have respectively formulated the
Administrative Measures for Supplier Assessment and Administrative
Procedures for External Supplier, and suppliers are jointly managed by
departments including the purchasing department, quality control
department and production department. If the existing suppliers do not
meet the procurement requirements, the plants will identify at least two to
three potential suppliers, review information including product descriptions
and operation compliance, and conduct a preliminary evaluation through
plant inspections. The plants will request those that have passed the
preliminary evaluation to provide samples for testing and trial use, and only
those that have passed the trial use can become qualified suppliers of the
plants. The plants will review collaborative suppliers annually and poor
performers will be disqualified.

The corrugated medium paper products of the plants use waste paper as
the main raw materials. During the reporting period, the waste paper raw
materials of the plants came domestically from China. If it is necessary to
purchase imported waste paper raw materials, the plants also have
additional management requirements to ensure compliance with the
Administrative Provisions on Environmental Protection Concerning Solid
Wastes with Import Restrictions that Can be Used as Raw Materials. The
Group also encourages the purchasing department to take the initiative to
collect information on suppliers regarding quality and environmental
protection, so as to select raw materials that are of better quality and more
environment-friendly.

“EEE
HEREE
Lok B B 53 Bl 5 (g Wﬁ%% B3R R (5
BpT EIRIRF) - IRMEES  EEH - A EHH I

Rl &R ER - %iﬁﬁ{%@%ﬂiﬁé%ﬁ%%i BEE
BAELPME=ZRBAEMRER BELERHH K286

RUEFER  UREEEBERRETININE - BER
RN EEZDERERAAR  REARBRE
REDAKRSBENERET  -BESHAFHERS
FHETEE  RAREESHAURARHETER -

BEH B CREMGABRRBEREME - EARE

R BENERRMORETEER - nAHERE
EOBERRE BETRBBINEERTE  BRTE
(BRI QAR AT B RB BB EYIRIRREEIERE) -

SETZBREFFITHREHEREHLEENRER
ENER  BETEE MRROBRME

The corrugated medium paper products of the plants use waste paper
as the main raw materials, with the majority coming from Zhongshan
City, Guangdong Province, where the plants are located to help shorten
transport distance and promote local resource recycling. The respective
percentages of waste paper raw materials coming from the following
locations are:

o Zhongshan, Zhuhai, Foshan and Jiangmen: 72.0%

o Hainan: 5.7%

o Shenzhen: 11.3%

o Overseas and other province: 11.0%

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
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Product Responsibility

Zhengye International attaches importance to the quality and safety of
products. The plants have Substandard Product Control Procedures
relevant administrative procedures for rectification measures in place,
which clearly describe the handling criteria when the inspection results of
raw materials and finished products do not conform to national or the
Group's quality standards. For example, if it is found that the hazardous
materials mixed with the waste paper raw material exceed national
standards, the plants will give a warning to the supplier and make a request
to reject the item. The plant will also commission a third-party inspection
agency annually to carry out compliance inspection under the European
Union’s Restriction of Hazardous Substances Directive (RoHS) and
Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation and Restriction of Chemicals
(REACH) Regulation to determine whether the heavy metal and chemicals
contents comply with the standards.

Zhengye International is also very stringent in terms of after-sales
management. The plants will implement the Administrative Procedures for
Customer-related Processes and distribute the Customer Satisfaction
Survey Questionnaire to major customers of the Group, conduct analysis
after understanding their recommendations and aspirations, and carry out
investigation and improvement in accordance with the Procedures for
Rectification and Preventive Measures. The two plants received forty three
complaints, twenty nine rejects and twenty seven customer claims during
the reporting period. After verification, ninety nine cases were found to be
due to product quality problems, which were handled during the year in
accordance with the procedures; and the plant will further strengthen its
analysis of the causes of product quality problems and formulate targeted
preventive measures to avoid the occurrence of similar cases. During the
reporting period, the two plants were not aware of any cases related to
breach of product responsibility.

Anti-corruption

Based on the Group’s Eight Provisions on Integrity and Self-discipline, the
anti-corruption policies of Zhongshan Yong Fa and Hung Hing cover
stringent enforcement of established procedures for screening, obtaining
quotations and tendering when selecting suppliers, contractors and
collaborators with prohibition on accepting benefits and gifts from
collaborative partners; prohibition on abuse of power for the benefit of
relatives, carrying out related party transactions and embezzlement of
corporate funds and corporate property. Employees can report to the
human resources department if they are aware of the above conduct. If
found to be true after investigation, the plants will impose on the employee
in breach of regulations penalties such as giving a warning, lowering the
salary, removing from office, dismissal and termination of labour relations.
Those who violate the law will be referred to the judiciary for handling. The
Group complies with the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China
and other relevant laws. During the reporting period, the two plants were
not aware of any cases of corruption, breach of regulations or litigation
involving the Group and its employees.
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Community Investment

There has been growing awareness of corporate social responsibility in the
market, resulting in the emergence of the concept of “Social Licence to
Operate” which places emphasis on the idea that instead of pursuing
short-term financial results and returns for its shareholders as its goals, an
enterprise should have regard to the long-term interests of society as a
whole. Although Zhengye International has yet to establish an overall policy
on community investment, the plants have currently taken the initiative to
carry out community participation initiatives through various means. In
2019, Hung Hing donated RMB240,000 to Shaxi Town Charity Association
and RMB10,000 to Shaxi Town Elderly Association, Zhongshan Yong Fa
donated RMB200,000 to Zhong Shan Charity Association (Huangpu Town),
RMB10,000 to Zhong Shan Huangpu Town Red Cross and RMB50,000 to
Yaoping County Zhangxi Town Committees to support the needs from
communities. In future, the Group will make additional improvements to its
community policies and plans to further strengthen the links between the
Group and the communities where it operates.
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Directors

Executive Directors
Mr. Hu Zheng (#A1E),
and one of the founders. Furthermore, Mr. Hu Zheng is the chairman of the

aged 57, he is the Chairman and executive Director

nomination committee and members of the remuneration committee, risk
management committee and budget management committee. Mr. Hu
Zheng is responsible for overseeing the overall corporate management,
operation and development planning and had over 20 years of experience
in the paper-making and packaging industries. Prior to founding our
Group, Mr. Hu Zheng worked as a technician and as assistant engineer at a
then state-owned paper factory since 1983 then he was a director of a PRC
paper and packaging products manufacturing factory, responsible for the
management of daily operation and strategic planning from 1990 to 2003.
In October 1981, Mr. Hu Zheng graduated from Guangdong Foshan
Vocational College (E & f 1L B % & fit 2 Ft) (formerly known as
Guangdong Foshan Region Agricultural Mechanical College (& % % f# L
I8 B L ERT)) and completed a Master of Business Administration
at the Macau University of Science and Technology in August 2001. Mr. Hu
Zheng is the brother of Mr. Hu Hancheng (an executive Director and a
substantial shareholder of the Company through his interests in Golden
Century Assets Limited) and Mr. Hu Hanchao (an executive Director and a
substantial Shareholder of the Company through his interests in Leading
Innovation Worldwide Corporation).

Mr. Hu Hancheng (&8 2 #2), aged 60, has been appointed an executive
Director since 4 March 2011. He is also the Co-Chairman of the Company,
and also a member of budget management committee . He is responsible
for the comprehensive operation management of the Group. He joined the
Group in 2003 and has been the legal representative of Zheng Ye
Packaging (Zhongshan) Company Limited, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, between December 2007 and January 2017.
Mr. Hu Hancheng is in charge of the management and operation of the
packaging business division of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Hu Hancheng was the general manager of a PRC packaging products
manufacturing factory from 1997 to 2003 responsible for the overall
operational management of the business. Mr. Hu Hancheng is currently the
vice president of Zhongshan Association of Packaging Industry. In January
1995, Mr. Hu Hancheng completed an economic management program at
the Guangdong Polytechnic College (B & & T2 B Z = iT2Ft) formerly
known as Guangdong Province Adult Technology University (& 5 4 A% A
L K 2). Mr. Hu Hancheng is brother of Mr. Hu Hanchao (an executive
Director) and Mr. Hu Zheng (an executive Director and a controlling
Shareholder of the Company through his interests in Gorgeous Rich
Development Limited).
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Mr. Hu Hanchao (#8/%£%3
committee of the Company. He joined our Group in 2003 and he was

), aged 62, the chairman of budget management

appointed as a Director in September 2010 then was designated as an
executive Director in March 2011 and appointed as Vice Chairman from
November 2012 to March 2016; and appointed as Chairman of the
Company between April 2016 and August 2018. Mr. Hu Hanchao is
responsible for the budget management of the Group and assist to
supervise the comprehensive operation management in corrugated
medium paper division. He has been involved in corporate management
for more than 28 years. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Hu Hanchao was the
deputy general manager at Zhongshan City Zhong Fa Equipment Rental
Company Limited from 2000 to 2003 responsible for the overall operational
management of the business and before that he was the assistant manager
of Xinhua Bookshop from 1985 to 1994. In August 1985, Mr. Hu Hanchao
graduated from Zhongshan Municipal Communist Party Cadre School (#

m % # 2 ). Mr. Hu Hanchao is the brother of Mr. Hu Zheng (an
executive Director) and Mr. Hu Hancheng (an executive Director).

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chen Riyue (Bf B A), aged 41, joined our Group in 31 May 2019. He is
served as Guangdong Industry Polytechnic and is currently an associate
professor. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering from Wuhan
University of Technology in 2001. He also obtained a master’s degree in
engineering from China University of Geosciences (Wuhan) in 2012. Mr.
Chan is a niece-in-law of Mr. Hu Hanchao (an Executive Director), Mr. Hu
Hancheng (an Executive Director) and Mr. Hu Zheng (an Executive
Director).
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chung Kwok Mo John (& Bl I), aged 51, joined the Company on 4
March 2011 as an independent non-executive Director. He is also the
Chairman of audit committee and members of remuneration committee,
risk management committee and nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Chung graduated from Macquarie University, Australia in 1992 with a
Bachelor of Economics degree, then became a member of CPA Australia in
1995 and that of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
1996. Mr. Chung has over 20 years of experience in auditing, financial
management and corporate finance. Mr. Chung was an auditor in Arthur
Andersen (an international accounting firm) from 1992 to 1999. From 2000,
Mr. Chung had held several senior management positions, including chief
financial officer, executive director and independent non-executive
director, in a number of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Chung is
presently a vice president of Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company
Limited (a listed company on the Stock Exchange; stock code: 3608). Mr.
Chung is also an independent non-executive Directors of BYD Electronic
(International) Company Limited (a listed company on the Stock Exchange;
stock code: 285), YTO Express (International) Holdings Limited (a listed
company on the Stock Exchange; stock code: 6123), B & S International
Holdings Limited (a listed company on the Stock Exchange; stock code:
1705) and Tokyo Chuo Auction Holdings Limited (a listed company on the
Stock Exchange; stock code: 1939) since June 2013, December 2017,
February and September 2018 respectively.

Mr. Liew Fui Kiang (£1£%%), aged 53, joined the Company on 31 May 2019
as an independent non-executive Director. He is also the Chairman of risk
management committee and members of audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Liew is a
solicitor of England and Wales as well as Hong Kong. He obtained a
Bachelor of Laws (Tetley & Lupton Scholar) from the University of Leeds in
1989. He also obtained a master’s degree in business administration
(investment and finance) from the University of Hull Business School in the
United Kingdom and a Master of Business Administration from the Hull
University Business School in the United Kingdom. He is a fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Liew currently serves as independent
non-executive director or China Apex Group Limited (a listed company on
the Stock Exchange; stock code: 2011) and Zhongchang International
Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 859) respectively. Mr. Liew was the
chairman of the board of directors and an executive director of PacRay
International Holdings Limited (a listed company on the Stock Exchange;
stock code: 1010) from August 2017 to January 2019 and he was a non-
executive director of China Cloud Copper Company Limited (a listed
company on the Stock Exchange; stock code: 33) in December 2019. Mr.
Liew served as an independent director of Baoshan Iron & Steel Company
Limited (& L 8 # 3% 15 B PR 2 ], a Fortune Global 500 company (a listed
company on the Shanghai Stock Exchange; stock code: 600019.CH) from
2000 to 2006.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Shin Yick Fabian (%%), aged 51, joined the Company on 31 May 2019
as an independent non-executive Director. He is also the Chairman of
remuneration committee and members of audit committee, risk
management committee and nomination committee of the Company. Mr.
Shin graduated from the University of Birmingham in England with a
bachelor's degree in commerce. After graduation, he worked in the audit
department of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. He had also worked in a listed
company in Hong Kong as group financial controller and company
secretary. He is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, The
Chartered Governance Instituted (formerly Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators) and the Hong Kong Institute of Company
Secretaries. Mr. Shin is a non-executive Director of Pak Tak International
Limited (a listed company on the Stock Exchange; stock code: 2668) since
February 2017. Mr. Shin is also an independent non-executive Directors of
Lisi Group Holdings Limited (a listed company on the Stock Exchange;
stock code: 526), Newton Resources Limited (a listed company on the Stock
Exchange; stock code: 1231) and China Tianrui Automotive Interiors
Company Limited (a listed company on the Stock Exchange; stock code:
6162) since January 2013, August 2015, and December 2018 respectively.
Mr. Shin was an independent non-executive Directors of China Shun Ke
Long Holdings Limited (a listed company on the Stock Exchange; stock
code: 974) from August 2015 to October 2018, Huabang Financial Holdings
Limited (Formerly Goldenmars Technology Holdings Limited) (a listed
company on the Stock Exchange; stock code: 3638) from September 2016
to October 2018.

Senior Management

Mr. Hu Jianpeng (8 & §§), aged 33, joined the Group in 2014. Mr. Hu
Jianpeng is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group. Mr. Hu Jianpeng held
the post of the Group’s general manager in procurement between 2014
and 2017, was responsible for the supply chain management and
procurement strategy formulation in the Group. In 2018, Mr. Hu Jianpeng
served as the chief operating officer of the Group and responsible for the
overall operation and management in sales, raw materials and procurement
of the Group. Mr. Hu Jianpeng obtained double Master degrees in finance
and marketing awarded by the University of Sydney in 2013. Mr. Hu
Jianpeng is a son of Mr. Hu Zheng (an Executive Director). Also, Mr. Hu
Jianpeng is a nephew of Mr. Hu Hanchao (an Executive Director) and Mr.
Hu Hancheng (an Executive Director).
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Mr. Hu Jianjun (#Af2%), aged 35, joined the Group in 2010. Mr. Hu Jianjun
is the vice president of the Group and is responsible for the operations,
strategic planning in sales and raw paper procurement in packaging
division and maintain customers relationships. Mr. Hu Jianjun obtained the
undergraduate programme in design awarded by the Wuchang Shouyi
University (former known as Huazhong University of Science and
Technology (Wuchang campus)) in 2008. Mr. Hu Jianjun is a son of Mr. Hu
Hancheng (an Executive Director). Also, Mr. Hu Jianjun is a nephew of Mr.
Hu Hanchao (an Executive Director) and Mr. Hu Zheng (an Executive
Director).

Mr. Tan Xijian (E#5f2), aged 35, joined the Group in 2014. Mr. Tan is the
vice president of the Group and is responsible for the sales and raw
materials operation management. Mr. Tan was the general manager in raw
materials from 2014 to 2017 and was responsible for the formulation of raw
materials management and procurement strategies of the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, he had five years of project planning. Mr. Tan obtained
a degree in Business Administration from Guangdong University of
Technology in 2016. Mr. Tan Xijian is a son-in-law of Mr. Hu Hanchao (an
Executive Director). Also, Mr. Tan is a niece-in-law of Mr. Hu Hancheng (an
Executive Director) and Mr. Hu Zheng (an Executive Director).

Ms. Chen Wei (FRE(), aged 44, joined our Group in 2007. Ms. Chen is the
vice president of the Group and responsible for the management
operations in finance, human resources, legal, internal audit, information
systems and Hong Kong head quarter of the Group comprehensively. Ms.
Chen has over 15 years of experience in financial management and tax
services. She served as financial supervisor in several papermaking
enterprises and group companies during the period from 1995 to 2001 and
was in charge of accounting and financial management matters. Prior to
joining our Group, Ms. Chen served as account manager and tax consultant
in Zhongshan large-scale tax agent from 2005 to 2007. Ms. Chen completed
the accounting course of Jinan University in December 2005 and obtained
a undergraduate diploma. Thereafter, she was awarded the Master of
Business Administration degree from the University of Wales in April 2011,
and obtained the title of senior accountant awarded by Human Resources
Bureau of Guangdong Province (B ® & A % EE) in December 2008. In
September 2009, Ms. Chen obtained professional qualification as a senior
international finance manager awarded by International Financial
Management Association. She is the member of International Financial
Management Association.
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Mr. Zhou Wenchang (JEI3X &), aged 55, joined the Group in 2015. Mr. Zhou
is the vice president of the Group, and is responsible for the overall
operation, production, coordination and management planning in a
production base of paper division in Yongfa. Mr. Zhou has over 33 years of
experience in the technical, production and management skills in paper
industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou worked as production
supervisor at Jiangxi Fuzhou Paper Mill (JT 78 #& )1 i& 4K &%) from 1987 to
1998. He was responsible for the production line management. From 1998
to 2014, Mr. Zhou was the factory manager in one of subsidiary of Nine
Dragons Paper (Holdings) Limited and was responsible for the overall
production management. He served as general manager in Hebei Changtai
Paper Company Limited* (A1t & 4K E AR5 B R 2 R]) between 2014 and
2015, responsible for comprehensive production management. Mr. Zhou
graduated in 1987 from Jiangxi College of Light Industry (T FE 8¢ T 2142),
majoring in pulp paper craft (technical diploma).

Mr. Fu Guofa (f#B1)%), aged 47, joined the Group in 2017. Mr. Fu is the vice
president of the Group, and is responsible for the overall product
operation, coordination and management planning in a production base of
paper division in Hung Hing. Mr. Fu has over 23 years of experience in the
technical, production and management skills in paper industry. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Fu worked as deputy general manager in one of
subsidiary of Nine Dragons Paper (Holdings) Limited from 2010 to 2016 and
was responsible for the overall production management. Mr. Fu obtained
an undergraduate qualification majoring in pulp paper craft from Nanjing
Forestry University in 1997.

Mr. Zhou Dafu (JE#EF), aged 39, joined the Group in 2016. Mr. Zhuo is the
vice president of the Group, and is responsible for the overall product
operation, coordination and management planning in a production base of
paper division in Zhengyi. Mr. Zhou has over 16 years of experience in the
technical, production and management skills in paper industry. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Zhou worked at a numbers of paper manufacturers
enterprises and was responsible for production and management. Mr.
Zhou obtained a degree majoring in light chemical engineering from
Tianjin University of Science and Technology in 2003.

Mr. Li Jun (2 1&), aged 57, joined our Group in 2003. Mr. Li is the vice
president of the Group, and is responsible for the overall management and
its strategies of the Zhongshan base of packaging division of the Group.
Mr. Li has been involved in paper-making process technologies and sales
management of packaging products since graduation. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Li worked for Chenzhou Honggji Paper Factory (#8/1 AT i3& 4% RR)
from 1982 to 1993 and was responsible for the production technology and
subsequently at Chenzhou Honggi Number Two Paper Factory (#f/N 25 =
#E #L ) as assistant plant manager till 1996. Mr. Li was the head of the
transportation department at a PRC packaging products manufacturing
factory from 1999 to 2003 responsible for the inventory and logistics
management of the business. Mr. Li graduated from Hunan Vocational
College for Light Industry (j#f& 8 TH#HRZ42) in July 1982, majoring
in paper-making processes, and obtained professional qualification as an
engineer (LF2fM) awarded by Human Resources Bureau of Hunan Province

(A AEEE) in July 1992.
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Mr. Zhang Xiaoming (58 B BH), aged 58, joined our Group in 2003. Mr.
Zhang is the vice president of the Group, and is responsible for the overall
management and its strategies of the Zhuhai base of packaging division of
the Group. Before that, Mr. Zhang was an executive Director of the
Company from January to December 2015. Mr. Zhang has been involved in
the papermaking and packaging industry for over 30 years with a strong
edge in administration having spent years in a management capacity. Prior
to joining our Group, Mr. Zhang worked for Guangdong Zhongshan Paper
Factory and was the deputy general manager of a PRC packaging products
manufacturing factory from 1995 to 2003 responsible for the overall sales
management of the business. Mr. Zhang graduated in July 1985 from
Guangzhou College of Light Industry (J& M & T 2 2 17) administered by
the Ministry of Light Industry, majoring in pulp paper making.

Mr. Liu Haibo (278 %), aged 49, joined our Group in 2018. Mr. Liu is the
vice president of the Group, and is in charge of the sales of corrugated
medium paper and raw material management. Mr. Liu has over 25 years of
experience in paper products sales and participated in the marketing of
paper products in various paper products enterprises. He graduated
tertiary level in international trade and marketing at Shandong TV University
and awarded the title of assistant economist.

Mr. Zhu Xinliang (%1 #T 52), aged 38, joined our Group in 2019. Mr. Zhu is
the vice president of the Group, and is in charge of project development
and the management of technical centre. Mr. Zhu has over 15 year in
technology, production and management of papermaking industry. He has
worked as an engineer in several paper mills in responsible of production
management and technology reform. Mr. Zhu graduated at Guangxi
University in major of light chemical engineering.

Company Secretary

Mr. Kersen Chan (B8 £E 71), aged 41, was appointed as the Company
Secretary and the Authorized Representative of the Company in March
2015. Mr. Chan joined the Group as Finance Manager in December 2011.
He has over 10 years of professional experience in accounting, auditing
and handling the corporate secretarial duties for listed companies in Hong
Kong. He has worked for various international accounting firms and listed
companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor’s degree in
accounting. He is a member of CPA Australia.

*  For identification purpose only
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Directors’ Report
SETWE

The Directors are pleased to present to the shareholders their report

.|||n|

together with audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of
the Group are manufacturing and sale of paper, paperboard and paper-
based packaging products. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are
set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group's affairs as at that date are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 78 to 181 of this annual
report.

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of RMB3.00
cents (equivalent to HKD3.246 cents) per share to the shareholders on the
register of members on 3 July 2020, amounting to approximately
RMB15,000,000 and the retention of the profit for the year approximately
RMB67,184,000.

The dividend will be payable in HK$. The exchange rate will be based on
the opening indicative counter exchange rate (Buying TT for RMB) as on 27
March 2020 (the date of unaudited annual results’ board meeting of the
Company) disclosed by The Hong Kong Association of Banks.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
for the financial year under review are set out in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves
Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2019, calculated

in accordance with the provision of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
amounted to RMB18,479,000.

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the latest five financial years is set out on page 182 of this annual report.
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Reserves
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities of
the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities shares during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no pre-emptive under the Company Bye-laws, or the laws in
Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year ended and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. HU Zheng (Chairman) (Mr. HU Jianpeng as his alternate)

Mr. HU Hancheng (Co-Chairman) (Mr. HU Jianjun as his alternate)
Mr. HU Hanchao (Mr. TAN Xijian as his alternate)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. CHEN Riyue (appointed on 31 May 2019)
Mr. HU Hanxiang (retired on 31 May 2019)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. CHUNG Kwok Mo John

Mr. LIEW Fui Kiang (appointed on 31 May 2019)
Mr. SHIN Yick Fabian (appointed on 31 May 2019)
Mr. WU Youjin (retired on 31 May 2019)

Prof. ZHU Hongwei (retired on 31 May 2019)

The Company confirms that it has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of their independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), and it still considers that the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

Pursuant to Bye-Law 108 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, one-third of the
Directors shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting
of the Company. Mr. Hu Hancheng, Mr. Hu Hanchao, Mr. Chen Riyue, Mr.
Chung Kwok Mo John, Mr. Liew Fui Kiang and Mr. Shin Yick Fabian shall
retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible,
offer themselves was for re-election as Directors at the AGM.
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Directors and Senior Management
The biographical details of Directors and Senior Management are set and
on page 53 to 59 of this annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The executive Directors namely, Mr. Hu Zheng, Mr. Hu Hancheng and Mr.
Hu Hanchao have renewed their service contracts with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from 1 January 2018. Both are subject to
termination by either party giving not less than three months’ written notice
to the other.

The non-executive Director, Mr. Chen Riyue and each of the independent
non-executive Directors namely, Mr. Liew Fui Kiang and Mr. Shin Yick
Fabian have been appointed for a term of one year commencing from 31
May 2019; while the independent non-executive Director, Mr. Chung Kwok
Mo John has been appointed for a term of one year commencing from 1
January 2019. Both are subject to termination by either party giving not less
than three months’ written notice to the other.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Emolument Policy

The emolument policies of the Directors and other employees are
formulated based on individual experience, qualification and over market
situation and are reviewed regularly, while the bonus is related to the
financial performance of the Group and the individual performance. The
Directors’ remunerations are subject to shareholders’ approval at general

EEREREEE
EFRERERENREFERNAFRESBENE -

EEHE& = IIIJ

MITEE —HERL  HEREREERBERALEEHCDE
RRREHATLREEH Q:ﬁ—)\i—ﬂ—ﬁiﬁ
RE=%F - ARERN —STRHETELTPR=EAK
EEBA T AL -

FERITEERAAEERBUFRTERNRIEREEE
LESRENEHRE—F BT NAFRA=1—
B MEFITESERRSENTEHAM—F -
BE-T-NhF—- A B - Ea—HaRAHhELT
DPR=(ARAMEEBE T AR -

BREERRBFASG LERE
AREER —FRKIEMBASEEOCXEMHER
RIEEHK o

FNER
ERERAMETHHFWEE DS E BB INERRE
B R AR o AT SR R B 0B 2 A R EBIR
B - ERFMOBEAE L REHLE -

EEMEEHE LA
<51 HY

meetings.
The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for REBZE—_Z—hE+_-_A=+—HB I LFELHFHMARE
the year ended 31 December 2019 was set out below: DR EREBAEFIMHIINAT :

Number of
Remuneration band (RMB) individuals
AR (AR AB
0-500,000 0-500,000 14
500,001-1,000,000 500,001-1,000,000 15
1,000,001 or above 1,000,001 8% A 2

Details of the Directors’ emolument and emoluments of the five highest
paid individuals in the Group are set at the notes 13 and 14 to consolidated
financial statements.
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Director’s Interest In Contracts of Significance

Save as disclosed in the section headed “"Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this report and note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements, no Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year under review.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed under the sections headed "Directors’ and Chief
Executive's Interests in the Securities of the Company or its Associated
Corporations”, and “Share Option Scheme”, at no time during the year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their respective
spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or
was the Company, its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in the
Securities of the Company or Its Associated
Corporations

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance the
("SFO")) as recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise as required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the
Listing Rules were as follows:
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Approximate

Name of Group member/ Number and class of percentage
Name of Directors associated corporation Capacity/ Nature of interest  securities (Note 1) of shareholding
EEMR AEMRERR, HEEEER 5%,/ RamtE EHHERER (M) REBVB L
Mr. Hu Zheng The Company Interest of controlled 191,250,000 ordinary shares of 38.25%
corporation (Note 2) HK$0.10 each
HIERE Z/NS SEHAEES (ME2) 191,250,000 ¢ & i E 1
0. 10/%755’] LR
Gorgeous Rich Development Beneficial owner 1 ordinary share of US$1.00 100%
Limited ("Gorgeous Rich”)
Gorgeous Rich Development EaRBAA 1 IREE 1.00 € TR L A%
Limited ([ Gorgeous Rich |)
Mr. Hu Hancheng The Company Interest of controlled 93,750,000 ordinary shares of 18.75%
corporation (Note 3) HK$0.10 each
HERELE Z/NS SEHAEES (MFE3) 93,750,000 & i (&
0. 10/%755’] CRAR
Golden Century Assets Limited Beneficial owner 1 ordinary share of US$1.00 100%
("Golden Century”)
Golden Century Assets Limited EaRBAA 1 IREE 1.00 € TR L A%
([Golden Century )
Mr. Hu Hanchao The Company Interest of controlled 75,000,000 ordinary shares of 15%
corporation (Note 4) HK$0.10 each
HEREE Z/NS SEHAEES (M) 75,000,000 i & i I {E
0. 10/%755’] CRAR
Leading Innovation Worldwide Beneficial owner 1 ordinary share of US$1.00 100%
Corporation
("Leading Innovation”)
Leading Innovation Worldwide ~ Ezm#EA A 1 BREIE 1.00 £ A i A%
Corporation
([Leading Innovation |)
Notes: B 5T
1. All the interests stated above represent long positions. The percentage shown was 1. METERRERTRE - RASHABEBEESHEETR

the number of shares the relevant directors or chief executive was interested in

expressed as a percentage of the number of issued shares as at 31 December 2019.

2. These shares were held by Gorgeous Rich, which was wholly owned by Mr. Hu 2.
Zheng. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Hu Zheng was deemed to be interested in the

shares held by Gorgeous Rich.

3 These shares were held by Golden Century, which was wholly owned by Mr. Hu 3.

Hancheng. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Hu Hancheng was deemed to be interested in
the shares held by Golden Century.

4. These shares were held by Leading Innovation, which was wholly owned by Mr. Hu 4.
Hanchao. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Hu Hanchao was deemed to be interested in the

shares held by Leading Innovation.

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
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)\E%*ﬁ‘ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ’]ﬂﬂ BE AMEZE-AF+-A=1+—H

BEITRHBEBALER -

Gorgeous Rich#f A #% & & 7 -
Gorgeous Rich « 1R 15 E % & &

Gorgeous Rich FT#5 A Mk {7 5 7 ﬁ °

Golden Century B i £ & 15

Golden Century ° RIEFE % K& HIE {5001 -
7 Golden Century FT#5 8 8V IR (D B 14 o

Leading Innovation #§ & i & % (7
Leading Innovation ©

il Eﬁ EEEZ2EHEA
CEEEERRAR

MPEREEZTEHRS
HEREERRA

CMBAERAEERBEESR
RIEE S R AEEB -

HRZEH SRR

A1 Leading Innovation FTH5 B K IR (5 HE A s ©
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Share Options to subscribe for the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the
Company were granted to, among others, certain Directors pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 3 June 2011.
Information in relation to these Share Options was shown in the following
section under the heading “Share Option Scheme”.

Save as disclosed above and in the paragraph headed “Share Option
Scheme” below, no other interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the Securities of
the Company

As at 31 December 2019, so far as are known to any Director or chief
executive of the Company, the persons (other than the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company) were recorded in the register kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company, as leasing directly or indirectly interested or deemed to the
interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company.

BERARRR T ——FRXA=ZBRANBREE
ETARRIEFERTREE  URBARRSREE
010 TTH BB ) - AR SRBENER - AR
T R ERT S BT -

B DA B Pt Ko 7 [ BB MR AT 8 | —ERPRARER SN - AR B
BRARR R EBBOEE 2R - HEARMOHES I
FLERIA AR R R AR 78 o I B E 1611 36 352 IR RS AR R
AIfTFEERM -

FERRRAQFRSFHER

REZZB-NF+-_A=+—H BE@MEFHALQAE
BITRABRA > TIALCGFESRARREEITHRA
B)RARIEEF L HEEIE 336 ELHER AR EMIFE
BRMA REMRRNG AR EEXREEES
HARR DA AR B D BITIAS% A LA

Number and class of shares
held in the Company

Approximate
shareholding

Name of Shareholder Capacity/ Nature of interest percentage (Note 1) percentage
A ARROEE R IRIER A

BRREA B RHRME Al (M) Bl

Gorgeous Rich (Note 2) Beneficial owner 191,250,000 ordinary shares of 38.25%
HK$0.10 each

Gorgeous Rich (FI7E2) BB A 191,250,000 J% 3 J% EE
0.108 ) ik

Ms. Li Lifen (Note 2) Interest of spouse 191,250,000 ordinary shares of 38.25%
HK$0.10 each

FRALL (M5E2) Bt 191,250,000 & & A& EIE
0.108 A & ik

Golden Century (Note 3) Beneficial owner 93,750,000 ordinary shares of 18.75%
HK$0.10 each

Golden Century (Fif7£3) BB A 93,750,000 & & AR E 1B
0.10 8 A & iR

Ms. Li Siyuan (Note 3) Interest of spouse 93,750,000 ordinary shares of 18.75%
HK$0.10 each

FRELL (H5E3) Bt 93,750,000 f& & fR &
0.108 A & iR

Leading Innovation (Note 4) Beneficial owner 75,000,000 ordinary shares of 15.00%
HK$0.10 each

Leading Innovation (7 4) BB A 75,000,000 B¢ & AR E 1B
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Number and class of shares Approximate
held in the Company shareholding
Name of Shareholder Capacity/ Nature of interest percentage (Note 1) percentage
FREFEARARROHE R IR AEREA
IRER I F 513/ REME A (M) Bkl
Ms. He Lijuan (Note 4) Interest of spouse 75,000,000 ordinary shares of 15.00%
HK$0.10 each
EER L (FE4) [ 75,000,000 % & % E{E

RAYS Capital Partners Limited (Note 5)  Investment manager/Beneficial owner/

Interest of controlled corporation
RAYS Capital Partners Limited (FIzE5) &K "EmEB A ZIESEE

R

Mr. Ruan David Ching-chi (Note 6) Interest of controlled corporation
Ruan David Ching-chi (Ki7£6) RiEHEREE R
Asian Equity Special Opportunities Beneficial owner

Portfolio Master Fund Limited (Note 5)
Asian Equity Special Opportunities BE=EAA

Portfolio Master Fund Limited (Fiz£5)
Notes:
1. All the interests stated above represent long positions. The percentage shown was

the number of shares in the Company that the relevant shareholder(s) was/were
interested in expressed as a percentage of the number of issued shares in the
Company as at 31 December 2019.

2. Gorgeous Rich is wholly-owned by Mr. Hu Zheng. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Hu
Zheng was deemed to be interested in the shares held by Gorgeous Rich. Ms. Li
Lifen is the spouse of Mr. Hu Zheng. Under the SFO, Ms. Li Lifen was taken to be
interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Hu Zheng was interested.

3. Golden Century is wholly-owned by Mr. Hu Hancheng. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Hu
Hancheng was deemed to be interested in the shares held by Golden Century. Ms.
Li Siyuan is the spouse of Mr. Hu Hancheng. Under the SFO, Ms. Li Siyuan was taken
to be interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Hu Hancheng was

interested.

4. Leading Innovation is wholly-owned by Mr. Hu Hanchao. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
Hu Hanchao was deemed to be interested in the shares held by Leading Innovation.
Ms. He Lijuan is the spouse of Mr. Hu Hanchao. Under the SFO, Ms. He Lijuan was
taken to be interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Hu Hanchao was

interested.

N

01078 LY 3@ AR

47,542,000 ordinary shares of 9.51%
HK$0.10 each

47,542,000 Ix B RR E A
0.1078 JLH) & 3B Ak

47,542,000 ordinary shares of 9.51%
HK$0.10 each

47,542,000 I G RR E A
0.1078 JLH) & 3B Ak

46,516,000 ordinary shares of 9,30%
HK$0.10 each

46,516,000 I =& HEE
0.108 7T AR

LMAE RS AR  FURE S L ARBREESEEN
ARFRGYE - ME=F—NF+-B=+—BARFE
FIRHKE EHLET -

HAIE £ 2 & B Gorgeous Rich ° RIEFEFH K EE 54 - #7
1E % A 3018 A1 Gorgeous Rich FTR A KR (D B iz - TR
BRETRPELRENRS - BREIHFRAERD - FBF X
THEERBELAEREEROBREE RDPHEER -

HEFR L E 2 B A Golden Century © RIEFEH M EAE EA] -
HZFR ST AW B Golden Century T B MR B A -
FREXTANEREENRS - BEIZHFRASKRD - F
BEZTHREENDERSEHEEEENEREE RH
B o

EZEH A2 A A Leading Innovation © IRIFFEFH M HIE &
Bl - AAEBA S A 1R AR Leading Innovation AT A KI5
AR MBRZTRIEALENRRE - REZFLHE
&0 - MIBIRZ T EFRAEREEEBEEOERAEE
M7 R A o
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5. Asian Equity Special Opportunities Portfolio Master Fund Limited (“Asian Equity”)
is wholly-owned by RAYS Capital Partners Limited. Therefore, RAYS Capital Partners
Limited is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Asian Equity.

6. The shares in RAYS Capital Partners Limited is held by Ruan David Ching-chi.
Therefore, he is deemed interested in all the Shares held by RAYS Capital Partners
Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no other interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares in the Company were recorded in the Register.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”), which was adopted on 3 June 2011 (the “Adoption Date").
Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the Share Option Scheme will
remain in force for 10 years from the Adoption Date. The major terms of
the Share Option Scheme are summarized as follows:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives or
rewards to selected eligible participants for their contribution to the Group.
Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors of the Company may grant
options to any Directors, employees, suppliers, customers, service
providers, shareholder, advisors of any member of the Group or any entity
in which any member of the Group holds an equity interest and any other
person whom the Directors consider, in its discretion, have contributed to
the Group.

The total number of share which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the share in issue as at the date of listing, unless
shareholders’ approval has been obtained, and in any event must not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the share of the Company in issue from time to
time. The total number of share issued and to be issued upon the exercise
of the options granted to or to be granted to each participant under the
Share Option Scheme in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
share of the Company in issue.

The exercise price for the shares under the Share Option Scheme shall be
such price as the Board may in its absolute discretion determine at the time
of grant of the option but the subscription price shall not be less than the
highest of the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of the Board approving the
grant of an option, which must be a business day ("Offer Date"); the
average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the Offer Date; and the nominal value of the Company's shares.
A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of
an option.
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5. Asian Equity Special Opportunities Portfolio Master Fund
Limited ([ Asian Equity]) 1 RAYS Capital Partners Limited &
AHAE ° EIt - RAYS Capital Partners Limited 18 A% 5 Asian
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6. Ruan David Ching-chi#¥ 5 RAYS Capital Partners Limited %
o Bt - HE1R A% A RAYS Capital Partners Limited FTHF
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and notified
by the Directors to each grantee, which period may commence from the
date of the offer for the grant of options is made, but shall end in any event
not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the option subject to the
provisions for early termination thereof. Unless otherwise determined by
the Directors and stated in the offer for the grant of options to a grantee,
there is no minimum period required under the Share Option Scheme for
the holding of an option before it can be exercised.

Share Award Scheme

The Company operates a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”), which was adopted on 23 April 2019 (the “Adoption Date”).
Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the Share Award Scheme will
remain in force for 10 years from the Adoption Date.

The Board may, from time to time and at its sole discretion, select any
eligible person to participate in the Share Award Scheme and determine
the number of Shares to be awarded and the terms and conditions of the
awards. Awards shall be satisfied by Shares acquired in the market at the
prevailing market price and no new Shares will be allotted and issued
under the Share Award Scheme. The trustee of the Share Award Scheme
(the “Trustee”) shall hold the awarded shares on trust for the award
holders until the awarded Shares are vested in the relevant award holders
according to the Share Award Scheme rules. Upon vesting, the Trustee
shall either transfer the vested awarded Shares at no cost to such award
holders or sell the vested awarded Shares at the then prevailing market
price by way of market order and remit the net proceeds to the award
holders in accordance with the direction given by such award holders.

The Trustee had purchased an aggregate of 4,214,000 Shares on the
market during the year to hold on trust for the selected participants
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the rules of the Share Award
Scheme and the trust deed.

The Board had granted 4,214,000 Awarded Shares to 101 selected
participants during the year. Please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 26 June 2019 for details.

The Board will constantly review and determine at its absolute discretion
such number of Awarded Shares to be awarded to the selected persons
under the Share Award Plan with such vesting conditions as the Board may
deem appropriate

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
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Connected Transactions

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements also constituted connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, and are required to be disclosed in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The following transactions between
certain connected parties (as defined in the Listing Rules) and the Company
have been entered into and/or are ongoing for which relevant disclosure
had been made by the Company in the announcement dated 28 December
2016.

One-off Connected Transactions

In December 2019, Zhongshan Rengo Hung Hing Paper Manufacturing
Company Limited (“"Hung Hing"”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and Shanghai Rengo Packaging Decoration Company Limited*
(L5 4 B % E B RRQ A (“Shanghai Rengo”), a limited company
established in the PRC, and Wuxi Rengo Packaging Company Limited* (#&
58 A B2 B R A A]) (“Wuxi Rengo”), a limited company established in
the PRC and owned as to 91% and 9% by Shanghai Rengo and Rengo
Company Limited* (L > J — % H & #t —#k s\ & 11). Shanghai Rengo and
Wuxi Rengo provided an extension of financial guarantees to Hung Hing to
secure the banking facilities with an aggregate amount of RMB18,480,000.

Continuing Connected Transactions

The following transactions fall under the de minimis provision set forth in
Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules and is therefore exempt from reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval.

Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
The following transaction between member of our Group constitute non-
exempt continuing connected transaction of our Company under Rule
14A.33 of the Listing Rules by reason of any of the applicable percentage
ratios (other than the profits ratio) being greater than 5% on an annual
basis or the annual consideration being greater than HK$1,000,000.

Leasing of Premises

Zheng Ye Packaging (Zhongshan) Company Limited (“Zheng Ye Packaging
(Zhongshan)”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Zheng Ye
Leasing entered into three tenancy agreements made between Zheng Ye
Leasing as landlord and Zheng Ye Packaging (Zhongshan) as tenant in
respect of the letting of the premises as summarized below:

o Date and subject matter of each tenancy agreement:

—  Tenancy agreement dated 28 December 2016 (the “First
Tenancy Agreement”) in relation to the letting of premises
located at Dongcheng Road, Dongshen Town, Zhongshan City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC for use as our production site
with a total gross floor area of approximately 36,475 sq.m..

For identification purpose only
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—  Tenancy agreement dated 28 December 2016 (the “Second —
Tenancy Agreement”) in relation to the letting of premises
located at No. 126 Dongcheng Road, Dongshen Town,
Zhongshan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC for use as our
production site with a total gross floor area of approximately
7,844 sq.m..

—  Tenancy agreement dated 28 December 2016 (the “Third —
Tenancy Agreement”) in relation to the letting of premises
located at Nos. 119 and 126 Dongcheng Road, Dongshen
Town, Zhongshan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC for use
as our workshop and canteen respective site with total gross
floor areas of approximately 2,622 sq.m. and 304 sqg.m.
respectively.

. Period: o EARR -

—  The First Tenancy Agreement: for a term of three years from 1 —
January 2017 to 31 December 2019 with an option on the part
of Zheng Ye Packaging (Zhongshan) to renew for a further term
of one year by serving not less than 30 days’ written notice on
Zheng Ye Leasing at the then market rent.

—  The Second Tenancy Agreement: for a term of three years from —
1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019 with an option on the
part of Zheng Ye Packaging (Zhongshan) to renew for a further
term of one year by serving not less than 30 days’ written notice
on Zheng Ye Leasing at the then market rent.

—  The Third Tenancy Agreement: for a term of three years from 1 —
January 2017 to 31 December 2019 with an option on the part
of Zheng Ye Packaging (Zhongshan) to renew for a further term
of one year by serving not less than 30 days’ written notice on
Zheng Ye Leasing at the then market rent.

—  The First Tenancy Agreement is in amount of RMB459,605. —
—  The Second Tenancy Agreement is in amount of RMB98,833. —
—  The Third Tenancy Agreement is in amount of RMB36,867. —

—  The monthly rent payable for the renewal term under each of —
the Tenancy Agreements will be the then market rent provided
that any upward adjustment to the monthly rent will be subject
to a cap of not more than 10% of the monthly rent payable
immediately prior to the expiration of the original term.
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o Rental deposit paid:
—  The First Tenancy Agreement in amount of RMB300,000.
—  The Second Tenancy Agreement in amount of RMB100,000.
—  The Third Tenancy Agreement in amount of RMB50,000.

During the year, the rental and management fee of the premises from
Zheng Ye Leasing amounted to VAT inclusive of RMB7,143,660 (2018:
RMB6,803,496).

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions of the Company and have confirmed
that these transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i)  on normal commercial terms; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have reported to the Directors that during
the financial year:

() the above continuing connected transactions have been approved
by the board of Directors;

(i) the above continuing connected transactions have been entered into
in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions; and

(iiiy  the respective cap amounts set out in the relevant agreements
referred to above have not been exceeded.

Corporate Governance
Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set at in the
Corporate Governance Report of the annual report.

Mode Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules. All the Directors of the Company have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, 27.58% of the Group's revenue was attributable to
the Group's five largest customers and sales to the Group's largest
customer accounted for 10.71% of the Group's revenue for the year. 39.62%
of the Group's total purchases was attributable to the Group's five largest
supplier and purchases from the Group's largest supplier accounted for
13.92% of the Group is total purchases

None of the Directors, their associates or shareholders, who to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital, had an interest in these major customers or suppliers.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

During the year, no Directors of the Company or their respective associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) were considered to have an interest in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group, other than those businesses of
which the Directors were authorised to represent the interests of the
Company and/or the Group.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float during the year and up to the date of this report under the
Listing Rules.

Event after Reporting Period
Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period are set out
in note 47 to the consolidated financial statement.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the AGM.

By order of the Board

Hu Zheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 April 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B Az BN e RS

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ZHENGYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
EXEBREZERERAR

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhengye
International Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 78 to
181, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter
HEENEE

FRREITEE (8

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESEBTNEEMRENSEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets

ERRERENEE 2 BETH

We identified the impairment assessment of trade receivables not
backed by bank bills (“trade receivables”) and contract assets as a
key audit matter due to the management'’s judgement and
estimates involved in the determining provision for expected credit
losses.

MR ER B R REE RN E T BB Ry # B & kst - Bl
1S MMERITRIBR E R YR ([ B B BWERIE ) e EERE
FHAHETE BT IR -

As disclosed in notes 4 and 41 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management uses provision matrix to estimate
expected credit losses for trade receivable and contract assets,
which is assessed individually for each significant trade debtors and
contract assets, and collectively for others by grouping of various
trade debtors and contract assets that have similar loss patterns as
reflected in the debtor’s and contract assets’ ageing profiles. The
provision rates applied in the provision matrix is estimated using
the historical observed default rates of the debtors and contract
assets taking into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonably and supportably available to the directors of the
Company without undue costs or effort, and are updated if
considered to be required.

WMINARE TS MR M4 41 PR Ee - BB E ARG
SRBFIERAHNEENTEREEFE  USSREAEHEBHA
REHEED HIEHRHE - WREMASEFEEREE SEBAM
SREE  HEEARXBUREBANESREENZIBERN - BE
EEREANEBXDEREFARSNEENELBEEOEM
e WEBHARAEFTSERAIXFHHAEEER - BEAXM
THENKARER » WEEHMINRERRELTH o

As disclosed in notes 23 & 25 to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying amount of trade receivables and contract
assets as at 31 December 2019, are RMB429,804,000 (net of
allowance for credit losses of RMB1,912,000) and RMB16,957,000
(net of provision for credit losses of RMB Nil).

WMANER S IR M T 23 R 25 PR ER - R E—hF+-A=+—
B BZREFIARAKEERREEMS AR 429,804,000 7T (H
BRIEEREBREARE1,912,0007T) kAR 16,957,0007T CRFE =
BERAEFESFHE)

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of the
trade receivables and contract assets included:

BMABESRUGARA WEEREFGENIERF 81

o Obtaining an understanding of management process in
assessing the estimated provision for expected credit
losses for trade receivables and contract assets;

e  HENEBEZHEUKIEMaNEENTRAEEERMLER
T TREERR

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the groupings of trade
receivables and contract assets according to their
similarities in historical loss patterns;

e REELBEAEEULTHESRKAMENEEDE
AN

o Assessing the reasonableness of loss allowance estimates
by the management by examining the historical observed
default rates of the trade receivables and contract assets
and evaluating the reasonableness of the forward-looking
information considered by the management;

e EREREAREEIRUFERANEENELENER
AEEEEZEMNAMEEERNGEN  FEBRLXEES
BETE R

o Testing the accuracy of the ageing analysis of the trade
receivables and contract assets, on a sample basis, to the
supporting delivery documents and contract assets
recognition supporting documents; and

o DB AABREFHEBFIEMENEENRERDNTAE
MM AR R BN E 4 & ERR X

o Checking the accuracy of management’s calculation of
expected credit losses for trade receivables and contract
assets under provision matrix.

. REERERBERARAGFEEZREFIANSHEEN
THE BRI -
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Other Information
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Wong Yan Wah.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 April 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

,i—,/_\ —a N\ / AN N\ 7/
ireEm A E WS
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_T-NE+-A=+—HILEE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
B =E AR®T T ARET T
Revenue g A 5 2,367,151 2,848,016
Cost of sales $HE AN (1,918,338) (2,338,314)
Gross profit EF 448,813 509,702
Other income HAn i A 7 14,028 9,435
Impairment losses, net of reversal BB E B LR E 8 (40) (350)
Other gains and losses Hiplhzs K EE 9 (932) (1,842)
Distribution and selling expenses S REEE A (72,994) (74,472)
Administrative expenses THRY (137,858) (143,656)
Finance costs B & AR AN 10 (45,835) (46,295)
Other expenses HMEL (1,032) (3,269)
Research and development costs e (84,970) (95,239)
Profit before tax i 75 BT S5 A 12 119,180 154,014
Income tax expense ey e 11 (18,152) (23,301)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 4 3% F| 2 2 E W25 4258 101,028 130,713
Profit and total comprehensive income for FEREEEKESLEEE
the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZ =N 82,184 109,358
Non-controlling interests IR = 18,844 21,355
101,028 130,713
Earnings per share BRER
Basic (RMB) HAER(AREE) 16 0.16 0.22

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

wre IR

At 31 December 2019
RZT—NF+-A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NF —N\&F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
B =E ARBT T ARETTT
Non-current Assets IFRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BENEE 17 892,291 891,169
Right of use assets EREEE 18 216,194 -
Prepaid lease payments B ERIE 19 - 153,858
Other intangible assets Hipm A& = 20 - 338
Deferred tax assets IRIEFIRE B 33 6,475 4,070
Deposits for acquisition of a subsidiary WWEEI B A TS 21 5,000 -
Deposits for acquisition of property, BEYE MEL
plant and equipment HiEine 6,785 2,771
1,126,745 1,052,206
Current Assets REEE
Inventories 7(? 22 137,275 161,778
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H b fE UG Fh1E 23 771,974 951,153
Contract assets BREE 25 16,957 19,257
Prepaid lease payments B HEERIE 19 - 4,720
Tax recoverable aJ [a Yg F5 18 607 818
Pledged bank deposits EIEFRBRITIFE 26 139,904 108,910
Bank balances and cash RITEB LIRS 26 231,089 258,981
1,297,806 1,505,617
Current Liabilities TEIAEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & E M pE N Fa 27 307,580 473,686
Tax liabilities HEaE 6,452 7,749
Bank borrowings RITRER 28 777,488 904,345
Other borrowings HipE=x 28 39,105 47,340
Lease liabilities fﬂ&:féji 29 17,277 -
Obligation under a finance lease A ERE IR 30 - 394
Contract liabilities k= 31 2,215 2,644
Amounts due to directors FERNEZEE IR 32 354 2,181
1,150,471 1,438,339
Net Current Assets REBEEFEE 147,335 67,278
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities EEAERREEE 1,274,080 1,119,484
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

wra IR

At 31 December 2019
RZZE-hFE+-ZA=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NF —N\F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
B =E AR®T T ARET T
Capital and Reserves BN #E
Share capital A& X 34 41,655 41,655
Share premium and reserves REAH B R FHE 884,254 852,070
Equity attributable to owners of the Company NNTIEG AE(EREZS 925,909 893,725
Non-controlling interests FEIE RS FERS 198,498 179,654
Total Equity ERBE 1,124,407 1,073,379
Non-current Liabilities FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIAAE 33 5,629 7,525
Bank borrowings RITEIR 28 33,250 -
Other borrowings BEW R = E 28 23,469 5,786
Lease liabilities HEAE 29 48,407 -
Obligation under a finance lease BEHEERENIE 30 - 7,052
Deferred income IEFEY A 36 38,918 25,742
149,673 46,105
1,274,080 1,119,484
The consolidated financial statements on pages 78 to 181 were approved BEGR -ZE-ZHIMF -+ H Ttt)&&ﬁié%ﬁé%’m

and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 April 2020 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Hu Zheng
HAIE
DIRECTOR
EE

Hu Hancheng

wER

DIRECTOR

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

l\‘/T\

HEe N 7
1; / N ml:m\

b P

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_T-NE+-A=+—HILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EREHEE RS
Non-
Share Share  Statutory Other  Retained controlling

capital  premium reserve reserve profits ~ Sub-total interests Total

BE  BRARE EAERE HtRE #@FER Nt FERER #zct

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETT ARETR

(note a) (note b)
(GEZV )

At 1 January 2018 —E-\5—-f—-H 41,655 92,968 121,111 (23,389) 606,822 839,167 158,299 997,466
Profit and total comprehensive ERENR2ERS

income for the year Faks) = = = = 109,358 109,358 21,355 130,713

Dividend paid (note 15) BAIAR 2 (FiEE15) = = = = (54,800) (54,800) - (54,800)

Transfer to statutory reserve EREL TG - - 8,370 - (8,370) = = =

At 31 December 2018 - \&+-R=+—H 41,655 92,968 129,481 (23,389) 653,010 893,725 179,654 1,073,379
Profit and total comprehensive ERENR2EKS

income for the year k) - - - - 82,184 82,184 18,844 101,028

Dividend paid (note 15) BARE (7 15) - - - - (50,000) (50,000) - (50,000)

Transfer to statutory reserve BRI RE - - 5,693 - (5,693) - - -

At 31 December 2019 “E-NF+ZA=1—H 41,655 92,968 135,174 (23,389) 679,501 925,909 198,498 1,124,407

Notes: I EE -

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the Peoples’ Republic of
China (the “PRC"), the subsidiaries established in the PRC are required to provide
for the PRC statutory reserve, by way of appropriations from their respective
statutory net profit (based on the subsidiaries’ PRC statutory financial statements)
but before dividend distributions.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of certain subsidiaries established in
the PRC, those subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation
to the statutory reserve.

Certain subsidiaries’ appropriations to the funds are made at the discretion of the
subsidiaries’ board of directors. The board of directors shall decide on the amounts

to be appropriated based on the profitability of each subsidiary each year.

The amount mainly relates to reserve arising from group reorganisation carried out
by the Group in preparation for the public listing of the Company’s shares on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in 2011.

Annual Report 2019
T -NEFFR

(a)

REBEFEARLNE (THE ) BREERER - RPBERKIIE
MBARABBRNEESBMEEMAN (ERZMERRN
T BLEE B TSRER) s S 2 Ik BT AV R BUAE A R B o

RIBRPBEKTE THERRANEMEZAA -
REVABEBRBIRE M 10% TIEE i -

S B

& T MR B E S w0 B Rk MY
HoBEE
S

ARANEEERFE
AR TS E QB0 AR N HEE R T BN

AEENRFEERIBZRBEEEAREARFARMONR =
——FEEEMARIMERATEMLETER
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HeEReRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\&F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES VT F 3.
Profit before tax i 75 BT S5 A 119,180 154,014
Adjustments for: AT RIEEH F7% -
Finance costs B 45,835 46,295
Interest income K2 U A (6,224) (2,388)
Impairment losses recognised on trade and O R E 5 & H b fE U 8
other receivables REEE 40 350
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M BENEEITE 80,964 75,985
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREEEITE 20,206 =
Impairment losses on property, plant and s - BENFERBEER
equipment 546
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments A FE & FRIE 5y - 4,720
Amortisation of other intangible assets H s & B 5 338 368
(Gain) loss on disposals of property, HeEE - BEKEE (K
plant and equipment, net B8 %A (546) 248
Exchange (gain) loss on borrowings ERELERIEN (k) B8 (163) 604
Amortisation of government grant relating to BERAFERHEEZ
non-current assets 15 T 4 BG4 £ (3,325) (2,138)
Operating cash flows before movements BEABEHPIKERESRE
in working capital 256,851 278,058
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERD (3Em) 24,503 (14,760)
Decrease in trade and other receivables 2 5 N H A e W ZIE e > 178,407 63,568
(Decrease) increase in borrowings relating to EHCIREWERE 2
discounted bills receivables B2 Gl ) 20 (64,857) 173,734
Decrease in contract assets S HEERD 2,300 308
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 N H b fE A~ FRIE ) > (166,073) (115,157)
Decrease in contract liabilities adaEm (429) (6,122)
(Decrease) increase in amounts due to directors FEREE A CR ) 180 (1,827) 341
Cash generated from operations IR IR TSI S 228,875 379,970
Income tax paid TS (23,539) (33,858)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES s 2 IR AR B 3E 4 TR AR 205,336 346,112

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

,T\Afﬁi/ﬁiﬁi

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+T-_RA=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —N\&F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEK
Interest received 2 U5 B 6,085 2,388
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and HEWE « BENKZEEHIE

equipment 1,974 935
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEYXE  MEKREE (86,052) (54,991)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, EEYE  MENLEEES

plant and equipment (6,785) (2,771)
Earnest money received 2 =S - 20,000
Refund of earnest money 2R E S - (20,000)
Deposit paid for acquisition of a subsidiary WWEIT B A RIES (5,000) =
Placement of pledged bank deposits FEADEEETER (302,977) (233,520)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits BRI ER 271,983 239,219
Receipt of government grant relating to WEL B B IEm BN & = 2 BUN A AL

non-current assets 16,501 7,348
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEEHAES SE (104,271) (41,392)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES e 3
Interest paid 255 & (45,835) (45,817)
Dividend paid B E (50,000) (54,800)
Repayment of bank borrowings BiBRTER (592,199) (670,630)
Repayment of obligation under a finance lease EEmEHEERENIE - (850)
Repayments of other borrowings BiEEMER (35,452) (36,673)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHEAG (13,983) -
New other borrowings raised RS EME 44,900 =
New bank borrowings raised FEVSIRITE 563,612 572,763
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES e 2. Rt (128,957) (236,007)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ~ B4 K B & ZEY ()

EQUIVALENTS 1 4B 58 (27,892) 68,713
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY NR—B—BNRERRESEEY 258,981 190,268
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER R+=HB=+—BWELR

represented by bank balances and cash BEZEEY

BIRITAERR IR & 231,089 258,981

Annual Report 2019 Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT EHRRMIET

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_T-NE+-A=+—HILEE

General

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
The address of the registered office of the Company is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and its principal
place of business is located in the PRC.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Mr. Hu Zheng,
Mr. Hu Hancheng, Mr. Hu Hanchao and Mr. Hu Hanxiang, who
collectively own 75% of the Company's share in aggregate and act in
concert, are regarded as the controlling shareholders of the
Company.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are mainly engaged in
manufacture and sale of paper, paperboard and paper-based
packaging products. The Company and its subsidiaries are
hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"), the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the principal subsidiaries of the Company operate (the “functional
currency”).

Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective of the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first time in the current year.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Except as described below, in the opinion of the Company's
directors, the application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the Group's
performance and financial positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

—RER
RARIRBREZIMRINERRER AR - R
MR Em e AAAZMFSEMIER
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda ' E F Z & EM BRI AHEH -

RARRB—RIREERAT - BEAESLE - HHER
A RERRERPEF LR HRRAEREAR
B75% R ERA—BITEET  RAS/ARRIE
HIRER o

RRRNEMB AR EEMFEERFHER - HR
NGB EEER o NAF REKB QRN T X5HE
RIAREE] -

HEMBRRDUAARBTARBDIE Z&
BTHHEBEDARARARNEIEHNBAREE
PR = REFIRIR -

eI REEITNEBUBREEN(E
BUBRERED ] KNER

AT RARIETHEBUBREER(E
PRG3R 5 22 A 1) B9 FE
REBRAFECEREANUTHEEGHEAA
B2 3T RASET AR BB 1 R A A -

BEMBREEN16 HE
BE(BBEMBRE FEHEENTHETEE

2EZE®)

—2E23

ERMBRELD HHEHEFEZ AN
(1&3TA) BE

HEGEIAER19 FrEIEET - R E
(1&3TA)

HEGR4ER 28 REBERESETZL
(1&3TA) KA

B I ISR A A BB IR R F =

(IE5TA) H—8 (—F—REF
EF—LFRER)

BRI XS ARABEERE  RAFERAIE
REFTANBT R B RE LTS HANEERE
KBEFE 2 FEMABRR R, IHNZEHE
MBHRIBEBEREATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+T-_RA=+—HILFE

Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the current year.
HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases ("HKAS 17"), and the related
interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to
contracts that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17
and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease and not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the Group has
not reassessed contracts which already existed prior to the date of
initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 January 2019, the
Group applies the definition of a lease in accordance with the
requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract
contains a lease.

As a lessee
The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the cumulative
effect recognised at the date of initial application, 1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets at amounts equal to the related lease
liabilities adjusted by any prepaid or accrued lease payments by
applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any difference at the date of
initial application is recognised in the opening retained profits and
comparative information has not been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach under HKFRS 16
at transition, the Group applied the following practical expedients to
leases previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, on
lease-by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the respective lease
contracts:

relied on the assessment of whether leases are onerous by
applying HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets as an alternative of impairment review;

ii. elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for leases with lease term ends within 12 months of the date of
initial application;

iii.  excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use
assets at the date of initial application;

e REBETNERMBRELEN(E
EMBHEERDBNER @

BEVBREEA16HE
AEERAFEERERBEMEREEL16 -
FRMBHREEINORBFEGHEM7HE(E
BEIFERN7]) RAERE -

HEZESR

AEBTEENTEEDE  SLERMEREE SR
EAT REE(BRMBHRERERZES) 2B
[EEZHRERREEE| B AHEENEHNER
BB R E AR 16 - I SR I R B R A
BREREENANEAZER - At AREYEE
HaHE R ERERBHAIEFENSL

BRZZB—NF—H—BHZ BT LHEHRNA
HmE  ARERFEAOREESHERRES
BUBREEN 16 ENREERAEENERE -

ERAERA
AEECEATEVBRE L6 RAFERN
BRERBBM(ZZE-—NAF—H—H)®R -

R-ZT—NF—A—H AEBEBEAEETE
HREZERI 16 55 C8(b)(ii) B E A ERBEINAEAE
heRAERABAERE(CEMABEMARETAER
BRAZ)ARZBBEEREEE - 8 X EABHN
ERIZER VB EaffER R ESHILEE
o

REEEERE BB HE ER 168 THEIER]
EBWER - ARBRZAHEREENLEARES
BEAEAFIU7OERKEHEAREHEESD
HESESEBIATRTERE A

BREERBEGFERIVEE  HAREE
RBABE| ERBEZMNERTE &
HHETEREEE

i EETHEHNERERBBET @A
NERMNEEEREREEEREERE

i. RERERBHGEEMEEERMIRYIS
BERA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT-_A=+—HILFE

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

iv. applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with a
similar remaining terms for similar class of underlying assets in
similar economic environment. Specifically, discount rate for
certain leases of properties, machinery and equipment in the
PRC and Hong Kong was determined on a portfolio basis; and

V. used hindsight based on facts and circumstances as at date of
initial application in determining the lease term for the Group's
leases with extension and termination options.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously classified
as operating leases, the Group has applied incremental borrowing
rates of the relevant group entities at the date of initial application.
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied by the
relevant group entities range from 5.70% to 6.12%.

e REBETNERMBRELEN(E
EMBHEERDBNER @

BEVBREEA16HEE ()
EREBA(E)
iv.  BURISRAEHIARAT 2 OB IR B A B AR B
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%@é%ﬁﬁ FERE - LHE
CHETURPERBEBZMERE - #
%& REITIRETRAEEEET &

v. REREXERBHNZERBINERE
EASESAEHERRIEREZENEENH
Hy o

RS EAKCENEr HERREEAEN -
AEECREAEEEEERENEXERB HAE
EERFE - HEEEERIRANMEFSIEEE

TR A 5.70% % 6.12% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT-_A=+—HILFE

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong 2.
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

e REBETNERMBRELEN(E
S B 3R 2 28 ) BB (1)

BEMBHRELEN16HE ()

As a lessee (Continued) ERABEA (E)
At 1 January
2019
R-B-I%F
—RA—H
Note RMB’000
LiEss AREFT
Operating lease commitments disclosed RZE—N\F+ZA=1T—HBHEDN
as at 31 December 2018 A A E R 60,034
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant incremental LB EGERARTR2EEGRE
borrowing rates 44,004
Add: Extension options reasonably certain o AEREEITENERRERE
to be exercised 18,787
Less: Recognition exemption — short-term leases B ERER — EHEE 703
Practical expedient — leases with lease term B AITHEE & — RURIER B BAEST
ending within 12 months from the date TERAEERERNTEE
of initial application 2,297
Lease liabilities relating to operating leases FEABBEREER 16 HHERK
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 KEHSHEANEERE 59,791
Add: Obligations under finance leases recognised m:R—E-N\F+ZA=+—HH
at 31 December 2018 BLE M S R RIA (b) 7,446
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 RZE-—NF—A—HHEEEE 67,237
Analysed as: DT
Current k) 12,426
Non-current FEMED 54,811
67,237
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT-_A=+—HILFE

2.

Application of New and Amendments to Hong 2.
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

(Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use as at 1

January 2019 comprises the following:

e KRBT NERBMB®RE
EMBHEERDBNER @

BREVBREE
EREBA(E)
—NEF-A-BNEREEEREENT

ZR (&

A16HE (&)

Right-of-
use assets
EREEE
Notes RMB’000
FieE ARBTT
Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases FERE A REZER 16 KR
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 ERCE i 'ﬁﬁﬂﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬁﬁéé‘? 59,791
Reclassified from prepaid lease payments MIENESREEH D (a) 158,578
Amounts included in property, plant and equipment R =Z— \&F+— :+* HEt AMZE -
as at 31 December 2018 M E K&z 258
— Assets previously under finance leases — EAIRBEHE THEE (b) 4,730
Adjustments on rental deposits at 1 January 2019 —E-NF—A—HHE%REH (0) 871
223,970
Notes: Pt -
(@) Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the PRC for own used properties (@) RZF-N\F+t-A=+—HEFENERAAELH

were classified as prepaid lease payments as at 31 December 2018. Upon

application of HKFRS 16, the current and non-current portion of prepaid
lease payments amounting to RMB4,720,000 and RMB 153,858,000

respectively were reclassified to right-of-use assets.

(b) In relation to assets previously under finance leases, the Group recategorised

the carrying amounts of the relevant assets which were still under lease as at
1 January 2019 amounting to RMB4,730,000 as right-of-use assets. In
addition, the Group reclassified the obligations under finance leases of
RMB394,000 and RMB7,052,000 to lease liabilities as current and non-current

liabilities respectively at 1 January 2019.

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
EXBEFEEARAT

2R EAENAERIE - EEAEBV KR
HAER 16K - FBNHEERIE S B A A R ¥ 4,720,000
TR AR # 153,858,000 7T Z 7 B K IER B & BB TYEEHT
DEEERREE -

(b) HERIAREMEBE T ZEEMS  AEEKR=
T-NE—A—BANIRBEETZAEBEE  REE
BARMA4730000T  ENRELATAEEE It
Sh - REBR ZF—NF—A—Hi§ AR 394,000
TR ARK7,052,000T 2 gt EHEREDREFHHLE
RARERIERBEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT-_A=+—HILFE

2.

Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

(c)

Before the application of HKFRS 16, the Group considered refundable rental
deposits paid as rights and obligations under leases to which HKAS 17
applied under other receivables. Based on the definition of lease payments
under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right to use
of the underlying assets and were adjusted to reflect the discounting effect
at transition. Accordingly, RMB871,000 was adjusted to refundable rental
deposits paid and right-of-use assets.

The Group acts as a seller-lessee.

In accordance with the transition provisions of HKFRS 16, sale and leaseback
transactions entered into before the date of initial application were not
reassessed. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group applies the
requirements of HKFRS 15 to assess whether sales and leaseback transaction
constitutes a sale. During the year, the Group entered into sale and
leaseback transactions in relation to certain machinery and the transactions
do not satisfy the requirements as sale. Accordingly, the Group accounts for
the transfer proceeds of RMB44,900,000 as borrowing within the scope of
HKFRS 9.

The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at 1 January 2019.
Line items that were not affected by the changes have not been
included

e KRBT NERBMB®RE
EMBHEERDBNER @

BREVBREE
fERFEBA(E)
@ EREEMBHRELAN6H  AERERBELGE
A7 REN 2 AR R EERENEFNREE - RE
ERUBHMEEO THEFRZ ER  ZEREeW
SR AR A ER A B RAIA - CRBRE 2R
RYEEHRBE - At AROAERS RERER
EAAIEFAEE AR5 871,000 7T °

ZR (&

A16HE ()

d AEEAEEFFAEA

REBEFEFHEREEN16HBIERTE - WRA ST
HEERERBRRZAERNEREERS - EEA
ERMBHELER6K AEBRAEBUBREE
AMSHER - FIHEREEAR SRR %ﬁkﬁ% =
N ARBEBE THEBET T EREERS - BZR
ST MRRBIHENER - B Kﬁgﬁﬁxﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁ
&5 2E R # §6 [E ] A% 88 B T 15 50 8 A R 44,900,000
TEANRESK

—NWE-A-BHFEAMBERRNRPERLN
SREFLUATHAR - KX ABERFENRBY
BEERBENA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT-_A=+—HILFE

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong 2. FITRLBIETHNEBUMBEREEL(E
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") ,ﬁ,ji]’%i&%i%ﬂﬂj) MFER (&)
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) BEMBHRELEN16HE ()
As a lessee (Continued) fERFABEA ()
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 16
31 December at 1 January
2018 Adjustments 2019
REEBHK
R=ZB—N\F wmE16 R
+=-B=+—H —ZE-NEF
B EREE #HWE —A—BREE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®ETTT AREBTFT AREBTT
Non-current Assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment  #72% - HiE K& & (b) 891,169 (4,730) 886,439
Right-of-use assets EREEE - 223,970 223,970
Prepaid lease payments FEHFR EF0E (a) 153,858 (153,858) =
Current Assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H A FEUGRIA (c) 951,153 (871) 950,282
Prepaid lease payments TBRHEERIE (@) 4,720 (4,720) =
Current Liabilities REIAE
Obligation under a finance lease @& 1 & fE 1 A (b) 394 (394) -
Lease liabilities HEEE (b) - 12,426 12,426
Non-current Liabilities FREEE
Obligation under a finance lease @& 1 & S A (b) 7,052 (7,052) -
Lease liabilities HEBE (b) - 54,811 54,811
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= AL AT £ o

AR e RS RaR M 5t
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2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material*
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform?*
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

a Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs, a revised
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting was issued in 2018. Its
consequential amendments, the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards, will be effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

The directors of the Company anticipate the application of other new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

e REBETNERMBRELEN(E
EMBHEERDBNER @

C JE MM e R AE AV 5T RIS RT V&S
iR & 2R

7 55 [ 30 45 B2 A1 AR DA TR B ARG ME 2 R AE BB BT
FIRERT BB M T MEER

ERP B MEER 17 REREA)

ERPHREER3 B2 EE?
CHEN),

EREUHREERNIOR KEFHABENAHL
BB a5 ERI28 BELEZMEE
CHEN), HEFLRAS

FREHEA & BAZESE!

B EFERI8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+T-_RA=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis at the end of each reporting period, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1 January 2019) or HKAS 17 (before
application of HKFRS 16), and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 Inventories, or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial assets takes into account
a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+T-_RA=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specially, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+T-_RA=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group's equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any) are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary attribute to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit of loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of business are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised , and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively.

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments (as defined in HKFRS
16) as if the acquired leases were new leases at the acquisition
date, except for leases for which (a) the lease term ends within
12 months of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is
of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to
reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease when
compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If,
after reassessment, the net of the acquisition- date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree's identifiable net assets or at fair
value. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods
or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the Group
performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset that

the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same contract
are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on input method, which is to recognise
revenue on the basis of the Group's efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total expected
inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation, that best
depict the Group's performance in transferring control of goods or
services.

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance
with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components, including
contract for acquisition of ownership interests of a property which
includes both leasehold land and non-lease building components,
unless such allocation cannot be made reliably.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate non-lease
components from lease component, and instead account for the
lease component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of machinery and equipment and properties that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption
for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling
and removing the underlying assets, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date to the end of the
useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments. The Group remeasures lease
liabilities (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related
right-of-use assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the
related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the date of
reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the
related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the lease term of
the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using
a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.
When the modified contract contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group as lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group
at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated statement of
financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group's general policy on borrowing costs (see
the accounting policy below).

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held
under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (prior to 1 January 2019) (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the entire property
is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire
consideration (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Sale and leaseback transactions (upon application of HKFRS 16
since 1 January 2019)

The Group applies the requirements of HKFRS 15 to assess whether
sale and leaseback transaction constitutes a sale by the Group.

The Group as a seller-lessee

For a transfer that does not satisfy the requirements as a sale, the
Group as a seller-lessee accounts for the transfer proceeds as
borrowings within the scope of HKFRS 9.

Sale and leaseback transactions (prior to 1 January 2019)

The accounting treatment of a sale and leaseback transaction
depends on the type of lease involved. The leaseback may be a
finance lease if it meets the condition that substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership remain with the lessee, or it may be an
operating lease (in which case, some significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the purchaser).

The Group as a seller-lessee

For sale and leaseback transactions which are in substance a
financing arrangement under HKFRS 9, the Group accounts for the
sales proceeds as borrowing within the scope of HKFRS 9.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the general
borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become

receivable.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans/state-
managed retirement benefit schemes/the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

A liability for a termination benefits is recognised at the earlier of
when the Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the
termination benefit and when it recognises any related restructuring
cost.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits
the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any
amount already paid.

Share-based payments

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions

For cash-settled share-based payments, a liability is recognised for
the goods or services acquired, measured initially at the fair value of
the liability. The fair value of the cash-settled share-based payments
is determined without taking into consideration all non-market
vesting conditions.

At the end of each reporting period until the liability is settled, and at
the date of settlement, the liability is remeasured to fair value. For
cash-settled share-based payments that are already vested, any
changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss for the year. For
cash-settled share-based payments which are still subject to non-
market vesting conditions, the effects of vesting and non-vesting
conditions are accounted on the same basis as equity-settled share-
based payments.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the related
lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes
requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets
over the lease payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities
resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments, the Group
considers whether it is probable that the relevant tax authority will
accept the uncertain tax treatment used, or proposed to be use by
individual group entities in their income tax filings. If it is probable,
the current and deferred taxes are determined consistently with the
tax treatment in the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the
relevant taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the most likely
amount or the expected value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than construction in progress as described below)
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Buildings and machinery in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment (other than construction in progress) less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when there
is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end
of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease
term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
o how the intangible asset will generate probable future

economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure (Continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the assets, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, (if
any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, and intangible assets are estimated individually. When it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication that
corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or a cash-generating unit for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-
generating unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that
group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount of the
group of cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount
of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of inventories are determined on a weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary
to make the sale.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15
since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss ("ECL") model on financial assets (including trade and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank balance) and contract
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are
done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for contract assets and
trade receivables. Customers are assessed for ECL categorising into
receivables fully backed by bank bills and not backed by bank bills.
The ECL on contract assets and trade receivables not backed by
bank bills are assessed individually for debtors and contract assets
with significant balances and/or collectively using a provision matrix
with appropriate groupings based primarily on the debtors’ ageing
profiles. The ECL for debtors with trade receivables backed by bank
bills are assessed individually taking into consideration of credit
rating and reputation of the banks issuing the bills.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 90 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

0]

(i)

(iii)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over two years past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases
where evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet
be available, the financial instruments are grouped on the
below basis:

. Nature of financial instruments;

o Ageing status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure

the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on
amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables and contract
assets where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it
may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, amounts
due to directors and bank and other borrowings) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.
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Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)
Provision of ECL for trade receivables and contract
assets

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the trade
receivables not backed by bank bills and contract assets, which is
assessed individually for each significant trade debtors and contract
assets and collectively for others by grouping of various trade
debtors and contract assets that have similar loss patterns as
reflected in the ageing profiles.

The provision rates applied in the provision matrix is estimated based
on the historical observed default rates of the debtors taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort. At the end of
each reporting period, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and updated if required after considering the forward-
looking information that available to the directors of the Company.
The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have
substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables not
backed by bank bills for the same types of contracts. The Group has
therefore estimated the expected loss rates for the trade receivables
not backed by bank bills and the contract assets on the same basis.
In determining the impairment allowance, the directors of the
Company also consider the credit enhancement under insurance
coverage.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group's trade receivables and
contract assets are disclosed in note 41.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant and equipment
with respect to depreciation, management estimates the useful lives
of various categories of property, plant and equipment according to
the industrial experiences over the usage of property, plant and
equipment and also by reference to the relevant industrial norm. If
the actual or expected useful lives of property, plant and equipment
is less than the original estimate useful lives or revision of estimated
useful lives due to changes in commercial and technological
environment, such difference will impact the depreciation charge for
the remaining period. At 31 December 2019, the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment was RMB892,291,000 (2018:
RMB891,169,000).
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT-_A=+—HILFE

5. Revenue
For the year ended 31 December 2019

(a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

L PN

BE_Z-NF+-A=1+—HLEFE
(a) RAFFENHWADHT

Corrugated
medium  Paper-based
paper packaging Total
FAB R HREE st
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBT T ARBT T
Types of goods or service ER=SREER
Sales of corrugated medium THE RSN E M
paper products
Corrugated medium paper AA grade AA 25 FLAS AR 1,559,861 - 1,559,861
Sales of paper-based packaging products  §4€ 4% &6 2 &£ T
Brown Box MBEE 4K 58 - 495,384 495,384
Colour Box T EHE - 139,221 139,221
Honeycomb Paper & = ATl o - 172,685 172,685
- 807,290 807,290
Total A=t 1,559,861 807,290 2,367,151
Timing of revenue recognition WA 2 B
A point in time — (EB5 RS2 1,559,861 - 1,559,861
Over time — BRI RNER - 807,290 807,290
1,559,861 807,290 2,367,151
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE-ZT—

NET-A=+—HILFE

5. Revenue (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

5. WA
BE-Z—NE+=-H=+—RHILEE®H)
(a) REABFANNBADHN(E)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from LT HEHEEEEARARA RS =8
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in the R ER S ZE R EER -
segment information.
Adjustment
Segment and
revenue elimination Consolidated
2 ERBA TR R K N
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBT T ARBT T
Sales of corrugated medium SHE IS AR E o
paper products 1,693,124 (133,263) 1,559,861
Sales of paper-based packaging products  $4€ 45 &6 2 & T 807,290 - 807,290
Revenue from contracts with customers 3 B & B & #4H g A 2,500,414 (133,263) 2,367,151

Performance obligations for contracts with customers

(1) Sales of corrugated medium paper (revenue recognised
at a point in time)
For sales of corrugated medium paper products, revenue
is recognised when control of goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to the
customer’s specific location. The normal credit term is 30
days.

The Group requires certain customers to provide
deposits. When the Group receives a deposit before
delivery of goods, this will give rise to contract liabilities
at the start of a contract, until the revenue recognised on
the specific contract exceeds the amount of the deposit.

(2)  Sales of paper-based packaging (revenue recognised

over time)

The Group's contracts with customers for the manufacture
and sale of paper-based packaging products are tailor-
made based on customers’ specification with no
alternative use to the Group. Taking into account the
contract terms, the legal and regulatory environment in
PRC, some of the contracts provide the Group enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date and
revenue is recognised over time based on the stage of
completion of the contract using input method.

Please refer to note 25 for the detail on recognition of

contract assets.

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT-_A=+—HILFE
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Revenue (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued)

(c)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance

obligation for contracts with customers

The performance obligation under the contract for the sales of
corrugated medium paper and paper-based packaging
products has original expected duration of less than one year BA S SR A 22 BI| 15 fE5F
and as permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price

allocated to these unsatisfied contract is not disclosed.

For the year ended 31 December 2018

(a)

5 WA

BE-ZE-—NEFE+-A=1+t—HLEEEW®)
(0 XBEXRIBEREFETARANASED

&%

EBRSHRMAUBRERFEESONEOE
BREBAFESHIN—F  MREEE
DEREZERER -

BN HERILAKE -

BE_Z-/\F+-A=+—HLFE

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers (a) REFFAHNHWADH
Corrugated
medium Paper-based
paper packaging Total
FLAB AR MEIBE HEEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETTT ARKETTT ARET T
Types of goods or service BRI REER
Sales of corrugated medium HE B GRE®
paper products
Corrugated medium paper AA grade  AA A& FLIE 4% 1,842,803 = 1,842,803
Sales of paper-based packaging products  §4€ 4% &6 2E &£ T
Brown Box MBEE 4K 58 - 627,663 627,663
Colour Box Pk v - 149,165 149,165
Honeycomb Paper & = ATl o = 228,385 228,385
- 1,005,213 1,005,213
Total A=t 1,842,803 1,005,213 2,848,016
Timing of revenue recognition WA 2 B
A point in time — (& B 24 1,842,803 1,842,803
Over time — BB fE N - 1,005,213 1,005,213
1,842,803 1,005,213 2,848,016

Annual Report 2019
—ThEFHR

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited

EXEFEEARAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+T-_RA=+—HILFE

5. Revenue (Continued) 5. WA
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued) Eﬁi_g—)\i—l—:}% =Et+—HILEEE®)
(a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers (a) REEFEHANBADH(E)

(Continued)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in the
segment information.

RTFIHmRETF A R EARDFER

HRIRERN S EAHER o
Adjustment
Segment and
revenue elimination  Consolidated
A EUA AR KBS e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT ARBET T

Sales of corrugated medium SHE IS AR E o
paper products 1,999,169 (156,366) 1,842,803
Sales of paper-based packaging products  $4€ 45 &6 2 & T 1,005,213 - 1,005,213
Revenue from contracts with customers 3 B & B & #4H g A 3,004,382 (156,366) 2,848,016
(b) Performance obligations for contracts with customers (b) EFAANEBHEE
(1) Sales of corrugated medium paper (revenue recognised (1) R HED S E (WA TE—(ERE T2,

at a point in time)

For sales of corrugated medium paper products, revenue
is recognised when control of goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to the
customer’s specific location. The normal credit term is 30
days.

The Group requires certain customers to provide
deposits. When the Group receives a deposit before
delivery of goods, this will give rise to contract liabilities
at the start of a contract, until the revenue recognised on
the specific contract exceeds the amount of the deposit.

(2)  Sales of paper-based packaging (revenue recognised

over time)

The Group's contracts with customers for the manufacture
and sale of paper-based packaging products are tailor-
made based on customers’ specification with no
alternative use to the Group. Taking into account the
contract terms, the legal and regulatory environment in
PRC, some of the contracts provide the Group enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date and
revenue is recognised over time based on the stage of
completion of the contract using input method.

Please refer to note 25 for the detail on recognition of
contract assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE

“EAFTA=T—RIFE

Revenue (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued)

(c) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligation for contracts with customers
The performance obligation under the contract for the sales of
corrugated medium paper and paper-based packaging
products has original expected duration of less than one year
and as permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contract is not disclosed.

Segment Information
The Group is principally engaged in supply of corrugated medium
paper and paper-based packaging products.

The Group determines its operating segments based on internal
reports about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the chief operating decision maker (i.e. the executive directors of
the Company) in order to allocate resources to the segment and to
assess its performance.

The Group is organised into business units based on their products,
based on which information is prepared and reported to the Group's
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of performance. The Group's reportable
segments under HKFRS 8 are identified as two main operations:

1. Corrugated medium paper: this segment produces and sells
corrugated medium paper.

2. Paper-based packaging: this segment produces and sells
paper-based packaging products.

WA (@)
EZ-NE+ZA=t—-HLEFE®)

() REERIBERRFHETSRNFBED
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EBESHRMEHEBREREE
BREBAFESHIN—F  MREEE
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o ERE R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT-_A=+—HILFE

6. TEER(B)

a) ZEBARFEE
AR R B AT S MBI H PO A B
EHWT -

6. Segment Information (Continued)
(a) Segment revenue and results
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results

—

by reportable and operating segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_Z—NF+=-A=1+—HLEE

Corrugated
medium  Paper-based
paper packaging Total
RAB S HHEE st
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR®T T AR®T T

REVENUE WA

External sales ShabiH & 1,559,861 807,290 2,367,151

Inter-segment sales DEPEHE 133,263 - 133,263
Segment revenue S EBUA 1,693,124 807,290 2,500,414
Eliminations 8 (133,263)
Group revenue EFW A 2,367,151

Segment profit 2R F 104,570 18,661 123,231

Eliminations #HEH 82

Unallocated corporate expenses, net KO Al S %58 (4,133)
Profit before tax P& F A1 Yo ) 119,180

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited @ Annual Report 2019
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT-_A=+—HILFE

6. Segment Information (Continued) 6.

(a) Segment revenue and results (Continued)
Other segment information included in the measurement of
segment results:

2 HIH ()

(a) 7 &R L )\EZ%» (4
@%E/\"hﬁﬁi‘tzqu%E’J,HJﬂ"*Bé?H

Corrugated
medium  Paper-based
paper packaging Total
FAB R HREE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBT T ARBT T
Depreciation on property, M BENREITE
plant and equipment 59,189 21,775 80,964
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEERE 7,780 12,426 20,206
Amortisation HH 338 - 338
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories & : FERE RN X8 (44,668) - (44,668)
Less: Amount recognised in cost of sales Jg : B #E:R 2 $HE A NS 28 - (17,874) (17,874)
Total depreciation and amortisation 78 & #5448t 22,639 16,327 38,966
Impairment losses recognised (reversed) = g2 ([0 #) B 5 & E h
on trade and other receivables JE Wi = T R 104 (64) 40

Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT-_A=+—HILFE

6. Segment Information (Continued)
(a) Segment revenue and results (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

6.

2 EIH ()
(a) AEMBWARFE

BE-Z— )\ﬂi'l'—ﬁ —'I'— HIEFE

Corrugated
medium Paper-based
paper packaging Total
RS AR MBI HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AR¥ETTT AREFTT
REVENUE WA

External sales SNEREHE 1,842,803 1,005,213 2,848,016
Inter-segment sales S EREISHE 156,366 — 156,366
Segment revenue D EPUA 1,999,169 1,005,213 3,004,382
Eliminations K5 (156,366)
Group revenue EBF U A 2,848,016
Segment profit 55 BB A 92,323 62,237 154,560
Eliminations i 1,277
155,837
Unallocated corporate expenses, net kAt X F5E (1,823)
Profit before tax [ B BT S ) 154,014

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT-_A=+—HILFE

6. Segment Information (Continued) 6.

(a) Segment revenue and results (Continued)
Other segment information included in the measurement of
segment results:

7 EREFL ()
(@) DEWAREEE)
BRERAMBEEZFTENEMDELER
Corrugated
medium Paper-based
paper packaging Total
FLAB AR REBE 5
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT AR¥ETT

Depreciation e 52,673 23,312 75,985
Amortisation g 4,922 166 5,088
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories & : FERE RN X8 (42,503) = (42,503)
Less: Amount recognised in cost of sales Jg : B #E:R 2 $HE A NS 28 - (17,789) (17,789)
Total depreciation and amortisation — #&E &N E 15,092 5,689 20,781
Impairment losses recognised on ERERE S REM

trade and other receivables FE U IR B - 350 350

The accounting policies of the reporting and operating
segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment results represented the profit
earned by each segment without allocation of legal and
professional fee, bank interest income and other corporate
income and expenses.

No reconciliation of reportable and operating segment
revenues is provided as the total revenues for reportable and
operating segments excluded inter-segment revenue is the
same as the Group's revenue.

(b) Information about products
The following is analysis of the Group's revenue from its major

(b)

BEDHN ST RRENEIMALERES
AR MAR » 2 B R AR B 0 &P IR A 4
M RIBREERBEER - RITHEBHBA
AREMPRBARFR

A B ¥R BB AV AR A (SIER 2 BRI MR A ) £2
AREE AR - B IR HR] B R D 7R
WA BB o

FHEREHR
HINAEEMEZERBADN :

products:
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Corrugated medium paper AA grade AA B LS 48 1,559,861 1,842,803
Brown Box MOEE 4K 58 495,384 627,663
Colour Box A=Y v 139,221 149,165
Honeycomb Paper B = A U ) 172,685 228,385
2,367,151 2,848,016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT-_A=+—HILFE

6. Segment Information (Continued)
(c) Geographic information
The Group's operations are all located in the P

(d) Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years over 10%

6. DEER ()
() HEEHE
RC. REBM LB ARE o

(d) FEEXEEFNESR

HEFENREFPERNNBAGEREER

of the total revenue of the Group is as follows: WA 10%ET ¢

2019 2018
=E-hEF E— N5
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T ARET T
Customer A’ Z B 253,424 376,038

g Revenue from paper-based packaging. ! REBHEENRA -

(e) Segment assets and liabilities (e) ’“‘Bﬁ? REfE

Information of the reporting and operating segments of the == Rﬁ%ﬂfﬁﬁﬂﬁaﬁﬁfﬂﬁﬁz

Group reported to the chief operating decision maker for the 5] E’]$% 58 9 #0 & K uf)\ffﬁﬁ%
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment RaE- Al WEEIHHEERARE
does not include any assets and liabilities. Accordingly, no
segment assets and liabilities are presented.
7. Other Income 7. HMkA
2019 2018
—e-nE TN\
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
Interest income from bank deposits PBITEION B A 6,085 2,388
Interest income from rental deposits HELS T 2 A 139 -
Management fee income EEEWA 73 149
Sales of scrap materials HERER 806 548
Government grants related to income (note) N A D) 1,937 3,962
Government grants amortised from R A 2E T A 28 5 MY R T 4 B
deferred income (note 36) (FMfsE36) 3,325 2,138
Sundry income I A 1,663 250
Total 4B=t 14,028 9,435

Note: Government grants received by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries as financial

incentives for local economic and environmental development contributions.

No other conditions are attached to the financial incentives.

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT-_A=+—HILFE

8. Impairment Losses, Net of Reversal 8. WEFEROFE
2019 2018
—®-nE —TNF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®T T ARBET T

Impairment losses recognised on trade EERE S R EMEKIE 2 REEE
and other receivables (40) (350)
9. Other Gains and Losses 9. HttzmREE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Exchange loss, net FE o B8 E5E (932) (1,594)
Gain (loss) on disposals of property, HEME - BENMEREWE (EE) F5E
plant and equipment, net 546 (248)
Impairment losses recognised on property, B - ME REEZBEEE
plant and equipment (546) -
(932) (1,842)
10. Finance Costs 10. BEKAK
2019 2018
—EB-NF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREEF T
Interest on: LATNIEEMFIE -
Bank borrowings PITE 37,965 41,142
Other borrowings HAuE R 4,062 4,675
Finance lease MmEHEE - 478
Lease liabilities HEAE 3,808 -

45,835 46,295
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+T-_RA=+—HILFE

11. Income Tax Expense 1. IEHAX

2019 2018
=E-hEF —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT

PRC Enterprise Income Tax: B ERER
Current tax ENEABLIR 16,468 18,126
(Over) under provision in prior years ARTEE GBE) N E (1,303) 914
15,165 19,040
Withholding Tax BIFTEH 7,288 7,542
Deferred tax (note 33): EERE (M 5E33) ¢ (4,301) (3,281)
18,152 23,301

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The
Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which
introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed
into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of
profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Accordingly, the Hong Kong profit tax is calculated at 8.25% on the
first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on
the estimated assessable profit above HK$ 2 million.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group
has no assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years. Certain PRC subsidiaries
approved as advanced-technology enterprises by the relevant
government authorities are subject to a preferential rate of 15%.
During the year, four PRC subsidiaries were approved as “small and
low-profit enterprises” by the relevant government authorities are
subject to a two-tiered preferential rate. The first RMB1 million of
taxable profit of the qualifying group entities will be taxed at 5%, and
taxable profit above RMB1 million will be taxed at 10%.

RZZT—N\F=A=-+—H FELLERE-ZF
—EFHEUERT) (BL5) EAER(1EHE
R)|)  H3| ARBRHIFIEHESE - FKHIERN=
TE—NFZA-+N\BEEREEZEZLREHT
BEWR - BERAHFEHENE  EREEE
BN EM A BSTm i 8%8.25% MF REF - M
FRIER B BB T Hm A % 16.5% AR REFR » I
A AR IR S5 = 5 E AR E S A5 g
BIE16.5% K& — B = HE

FHit  HBFEHREEREENNEMEE8T
1532 8.25% =1 & - MiBBM B &8 LA bt E R
S BIIR 16.5% HETE -

AEBRMEFEHEEREELRRTUEHN - 8
I I E B RS BE LA -

BHEAREMBECEMGEE(EERERE]
MEERIEHRE @ PENB AR EMEFE
5 25% o & T BB A 715 2 AR RE BT 2R P HE
HERRMEMEE  EEHER15% RAFR -
VUK FfT B A B AR BB BUR SR P BEE & [/ B SR 4
2| YZEMRHER - AERNEBRAS  H
BARKE —AEITEMBFSFIEIRT ERo%1HE -
miEa A A R — 8 & 7w FE AT AT S FE AR B 2
10%5ME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_ZT-NF+_A=T—HILFE

11.

Income Tax Expense (Continued)

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made as the
Group's income neither arises in, nor is derived from, Hong Kong.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before tax
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

11. FIE8iEXX &)

Hp A ZEERELNRANRELNEZEER
BRAZREGE -

BHRARENRARTEES - B AREEE - &
I I E B RIS BE LA -

AEEHRARY GGRABREREME2AKRERA
BR A A g A S BR 0 T -

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Profit before tax R 758 31T 2 ) 119,180 154,014
PRC Enterprise Income Tax at 25% BT R 25% 29,795 38,504
Tax effect of income tax credit granted to A1 f B A T3 BRI EE B AN PR S
subsidiaries for research and development costs e TR e (13,520) (17,168)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose Ft R IE i & A~ A] FOKL B 2 B9 R 78 oo 22 814 3,306
Effect of tax exemption on concessionary rates THIBIR R H R BB A ER
granted to the PRC subsidiaries BEM RN E (6,310) (4,740)
Tax effect of tax losses/deductible temporary RERRIGER A H RS ZE
differences not recognised TR 3,176 _
Utilisation of tax losses/deductible temporary LRI ARER 2 BiGEE
differences previously not recognised AR E R - (4,788)
(Over) under provision in respect of prior years NABTEERECEE) T2 (1,303) 914
Decrease in opening deferred tax assets resulting & AT R & E A EY)
from an decrease in applicable tax rate RIEFIBEERD - 773
Withholding tax on undistributed profits A B B B 2 B A] 951 Sk A Y
of the PRC subsidiaries (note) FEFR (FIEE) 5,500 6,500
Tax charge for the year NEFEFFIER 18,152 23,301

Note: In accordance with the PRC tax circular (Guoshuihan [2008] 112) effective
from 1 January 2008, the PRC withholding income tax at the rate of 10% is
applicable to dividends to “non-resident” investors who do not have an

establishment or place of business in the PRC. The withholding income tax

represents the withholding income tax provided on the profits arisen during NAHE

the year ended 31 December 2019 of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company
which was available for distribution amounting to RMB55,000,000 (2018:

RMB65,000,000).

Mizk : RER=ZZF
4 £1[2008] 55 112557 ) » Bi 2% 73 10% &Y B FE 1 P 15
BRAREMEER] (HERBI &R ﬂ%%dz%@
2 HEERRE o ZBEEE AR R & BB

T NFE+ZA=t+—BUEFEMELR

FMmBEOENMESHR EAHIREARE

55,000,000 7 (=&

)\i—ﬁ—ﬁi?&ﬁ’]*l%}ﬁ“%_u(l

—\F : AR#65,000,0007T) °
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_ZT-NF+_A=T—HILFE

12. Profit for The Year 12. XFEEHF
Profit before tax for the year has been arrived at after charging RAFEEBRT DS M (GEA) TF&IE :
(crediting):
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment WM RERZEITE 80,964 75,985
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 20,206 =
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hib & =3ty 338 368
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments ?Eﬁfﬂg\mlﬁ}%ﬁfﬁ - 4,720
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories W FENERN e EE (44,668) (42,503)
Less: Amount recognised in cost of sales B BIERZEEKRASRE (17,874) (17,789)
Total depreciation and amortisation rE N EsE 38,966 20,781
Auditor’s remuneration ZEREN N & 1,748 1,714
Cost of inventories recognised as expense BRERZ EF7AAYT H 1,777,080 2,197,435
Staff costs BT
— directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments — EENRTHEHEMNS (M3E13)
(note 13) 3,831 7,642
— salaries and other benefits costs — ¥4 R EHMEF A A 220,224 233,353
— retirement benefits scheme contribution — SRR FET 2 3R 15,856 20,927
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories W FENERNELEEE (42,317) (45,259)
Less: Amount recognised in cost of sales W R ZEEKRANSRE (77,768) (82,763)
Total staff costs B TRk AR 458 119,826 133,900

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT-_A=+—HILFE

13. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 13. EERTHRAZMNS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 10 (2018: 7) directors BENHENTRES(ZT—N\F: £8) RITH
and the chief executive were as follows: BREHME T

Retirement
Performance benefits
related scheme
Fee Salary bonus contributions Total
EIRER
e ¢ ®ERSE BE 37 @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT AR®TR AR¥Trn ARBTr ARETxR

For the year ended BE_E-hE

31 December 2019 +-B=+—HitEE
Executive directors HITES
— Hu Zheng — #HIE - 1,000 - - 1,000
— Hu Hanchao — HEH - 1,000 - - 1,000
— Hu Hancheng — IERE - 1,033 - 5 1,038
Non-executive directors ERTES
— Hu Hanxiang — g - 150 - - 150
— Chen Riyue — A A 210 - - - 210

Independent non-executive directors B IEHITEE

— W Youjun — SR 35 - - . 35
— Zhu Hongwei — kR 35 - _ - 35
— Chung Kwok Mo John — SR 177 - - - 177
— Shin Yick Fabian — %5 93 - - - 93
— Liew Fui Kiang — B=gE 93 - - - 93

643 3,183 - 5 3,831
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B SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_ZT-NF+_A=T—HILFE

13. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments

(Continued)

13. EERITHERME ®

Retirement
Performance benefits
related scheme
Fee Salary bonus  contributions Total
B
e e FRES TR et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®ETT ARETR ARETT ARET:T
For the year ended BE-2-)\&F
31 December 2018 +=-H=+—-HILLEE
Executive directors HITES
— Hu Zheng — #HIE - 2,500 - 14 2,514
— Hu Hanchao — HEH = 2,200 - - 2,200
— Hu Hancheng — ER - 2,200 - 27 2,227
Non-executive director ERTES
— Hu Hanxiang — g 360 = = - 360
Independent non-executive directors B IEHTEE
— Wu Youjun —RRIE 85 - - - 85
— Zhu Hongwei — KRB 85 = = = 85
— Chung Kwok Mo John — BRI 171 = = - 171
701 6,900 - 41 7,642
Note: B EE
Mr. Hu Hancheng and Mr. Hu Zheng are also the Chief Executives of the Company HEREERMELERKAERAGTEZITIAL @ ML

and their emolument disclosed above include those for services rendered by them

as the Chief Executives. The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for

their services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and
the Group. The emoluments of non-executive director and independent non-
executive directors shown above were for their services as the directors of the

Company.

Mr. Hu Hanxiang retired as a Non-executive director of the Company on 31 May
2019, Mr. Chen Riyue appointed as a non-executive director of the Company on 31
May 2019 . Mr. Wu Youjun and Mr. Zhu Hongwei resigned as independent non-
executive directors of the Company on 31 May 2019, Mr. Liew Fui Kiang and Mr.
Shin Yick Fabian appointed as independent non-executive directors of the Company
on 31 May 2019.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived any
emoluments during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
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SR REDEEMMEREEETRASRKKE - bt
HITEZECHEHEA TRA/RARRAKEEE FHEM MR
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MHEFAER —E-NFAA=T—AREARRI ATE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT-_A=+—HILFE

14. Five Highest Paid Employees 14. EEEEFEET

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year FR AEEREERFHNEERE =22 (&
included three directors (2018: three directors), details of whose EEeTBRAE) (ZE—N\F: =225 (8K
remuneration are set out in note 13 above. Details of the BITHAR)) BENMEFIBEHN L XXHFE
remunerations for the year of remaining two (2018: two) highest paid 13 EBRMB(ZZE—N\F: MB)WIIARTE
employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of the EFRETHRAENGEFNEENBSFRD

Company are as follows: T
2019 2018
=E-hEF —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBT T

Salaries e 1,692 1,229
Performance related bonus EARIRES 910 1,915
Retirement benefits scheme RINGEFETE 15 21

2,617 3,165
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BN N T 528 R

Number of employees

BT A
2019 2018
—EB-NF —E-N\F
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 78 1,000,001 7T % #5 1,500,000 7T 1 -
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 751,500,001 7 £ 4 5 2,000,000 7T 1 2
2 2
During the year, no emoluments of the five highest paid individuals FAN AAGRTHAT(BRESREMES)
(including directors and other employees) were incurred as 3 4 A AT B <2 15 3 A0 A 7R 5= [ A 22 ) ok B 5

inducement to join the Group or compensation for loss of office. g -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_ZT-NF+_A=T—HILFE

15. Dividend 15. RE
Dividend for ordinary shareholders of the Company recognised as REEBRAED K TR LB ER Z S
distribution during the year:
2019 2018
S —N\%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
2018 Final — RMB0.10 (2018: 2017 final —N\EEKXRHH — E5KRAEKI10.005
— RMBO0.1096) per share —N\FE: —FE—++FERE—
BRARE10965) 50,000 54,800
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in RIPLEEKRIL » AAFIEEESERNEE—"ZT— 1
respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 of RMB0.03 (2018: final F+—A=+—H I FEERBAREETIRARE 300
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 of RMBO0.10) D —E—NE: —E—\F+-_BA=+—HIt&E
per ordinary share, in an aggregate amount of RMB 15,000,000 (2018: B KRHEEEBEARKI10009) Azt ARK
RMB50,000,000), has been proposed by the directors of the Company 15,000,000 ( — & — )\ & : A E ¥50,000,000
and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming IT) ¢ MEBIERR R ATE IR EEE NS o
general meeting.
16. Earnings Per Share 16. BREF

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following

AAREE ARG S RER RSB TH
Pt

data:
2019 2018
—EB-NF —N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Earnings B
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the ALUGtEGRRERRFEIZA AT
Company for the purposes of basic A AFE(RERFE
earnings per share 82,184 109,358
Number of shares BB
Number of ordinary shares for the purposes of ARt E GREEL AR Z | /9 3@ IR A% 2
basic earnings per share 500,000,000 500,000,000
No diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2019 BHE_ZT—NErR-_ZFT—)N\E+-_A=+—8I1
and 2018 were presented as there were no potential ordinary shares Efyi/xﬁé’)‘éﬁ,g WA WEE —E—NER

in issue for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT-_A=+—HILFE

17. Property, Plant and Equipment 17. Y% - BERXE

Furniture Plant
Leasehold and Motor and  Construction
Buildings ~ improvements fixtures vehicles machinery  in progress Total
Br HEENEEE HARETRE AE  HERHS HRIR &3t
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETR  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETR  AR¥TR  ARETR
CosT HA
At 1 January 2018 RZF-\E-A-A 186,684 9,885 22993 18,85 1,061,076 PAVAR 1,322,705
Additions NE 1426 20 1893 2,864 1338 68,443 75984
Disposals HE (118) - (528) (602) (3874) - (5122)
Transfer from construction in progress mEETRER 1,018 1404 5,525 - 71,783 (79,730) -
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+ZA=1+-H 189,010 11,309 29883 2,116 1130323 11,926 1,393,567
Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 16 ERZRHBHREEA 16 (R ELHE = = = = (11,028) - (11,028)
At 1 January 2019 restated) R=2-NF-A-A(EE) 189010 1,309 288 A6 111925 0o 138059
Additions NE - - 775 1,080 149 86,786 88,790
Disposals HE = - (347) (1,243) (2809 (177) (457¢)
Transfer from construction in progress mERTRER 45 - 11,295 - 44834 (56,589) -
Transfer to construction in progress BETRETR - - - - (17,659) 16,083 (1,576)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-AE+-A=1-H 189,466 11,309 41,606 20,953 1,143,810 58,033 1465177
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT HERHE
At 1 January 2018 RZF-\E-A-A 75203 7219 16,534 14,403 316993 - 430,352
Provided for the year g 8,793 1,241 1879 2,369 61,703 - 75985
Eliminated on disposals MERHH (105) - (464) (538) 2832 - (3939)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+ZA=1+-H 838N 8,460 17,949 16,234 375,864 - 502,398
Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 16 BB HREEA 16 (4 fELHE = = = = (6.299) - (6,299)
At January 2019 restatec) R-B-f\%- A~ (EE5) B! 8440 17949 16234 39,566 - 196,100
Provided for the year g 9,065 1079 2,174 2410 66,236 - 80,964
Eliminated on disposals i ER R - - (312 (108 (1793 = (3148
Transfer to construction in progress ERREETR = = = = (1,576) = (1,576)
Impaiment oss recognised in profitorloss BB & BRI EFE = = = - 546 - 546
AL31 December 2019 R=2-E+=A=+-A 9295 95% 1981 nan B - s
CARRYING VALUES KEE
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NF+=A=1-A 96,510 1770 2,795 332 710,831 98,033 ol
At 31 December 2018 RZF-\E+ZA=1-H 105,119 2,849 11,934 4,882 754,459 11,926 891,169

Annual Report 2019
—ThEFHR

(=)

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited

EXEFEEARAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

/\‘/T\

BB HRRN

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+T-_RA=+—HILFE

17.

18.

Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 17. Y% - BERRZE @
The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for W BEREZE(EEIRRIN BB FE &
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis over sHERER - LEGER G IE R F AL N5l F
their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their B REHRITE -
estimated residual value at the following rates per annum:
Buildings 4.50%-18% EF 4.50%-18%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the term of the lease, HEMERE ERRE AL ER A
or 20%-50% 3% 20%-50%
Furniture and fixtures 11.25%-18% FEIEEETRESE 11.25%-18%
Motor vehicles 18% YRE 18%
Plant and machinery 4.50%-18% BB & ikes 4.50%-18%
The buildings are situated in the PRC and are held under medium BFEAPRAPE - LAREARLOES -
term lease.
Plant and machinery with carrying amounted to RMB4,730,000 were RZE—N\F+_A=+—H FEHEHNARK
held under a finance lease as at 31 December 2018. 4,730,000 T B E MR AR ERERERE ©
Details of property, plant and equipment pledged are set out in note DI  BE MRS E N FE39 -
39.
Right-of-Use Assets 8. ERAEEE
Leasehold Leased Machinery
lands properties and vehicles Total
AE i YMEEE R R E R et
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBTT AR¥EFTT AREFTT
As at 1 January 2019 R=ZB—NF—H—H
Carrying Amount BEEE 176,236 37,945 9,789 223,970
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE—hF
+=—BA=+—H
Carrying Amount A 170,504 37,321 8,369 216,194
For the year ended —ZE—NF
31 December 2019 +-—BA=+—HLFE
Depreciation charge rERTE 5,732 12,097 2,377 20,206
Expense relating to short-term (2 HAFA & K HH B A ¥ 46 FE AT
leases and other leases with EBE S HRE 2R
lease terms end within 16 BHI12 @ A A4 2
12 months of the date of initial ~ EAbFHE 2 1HEEFH
application of HKFRS 16 4,933
Total cash outflow for leases HEZHREmEE5 24,542
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+T-_RA=+—HILFE

18.

Right-of-Use Assets (Continued)

For both years, the Group leases various offices, warehouses,
machinery for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for
fixed term of 12 months to 22 years, but may have extension and
termination options as described below. Certain leases of equipment
were accounted for as finance leases during the year ended 31
December 2018 and carried interest at 6.12%. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings where its
manufacturing facilities are primarily located and office buildings.
The Group is the registered owner of these property interests,
including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire these property interests. The leasehold land
components of these owned properties are presented separately
only if the payments made can be allocated reliably.

Extension and termination options

The Group has extension in a number of leases for properties. These
are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the
assets used in the Group's operations. The majority of extension and
termination options held are exercisable only by the Group and not
by the respective lessors.

The Group assesses at lease commencement date whether it is
reasonably certain to exercise the extension options or not to
exercise the termination options.
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18. Right-of-Use Assets (Continued)

BB HRRN

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+T-_RA=+—HILFE

Extension and termination options (Continued)

8. FRAEEE®

AERAT A% IR R IBAE (48)

The following table summarised the additional lease liabilities TREOGETHE_ZE—NF+-_A=1+t—HIF
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2019 as a result of ERTECHEEEMERAEEELSEETE
exercising extension option that the Group was not reasonably TENREINMNEERE
certain to exercise:
Extension Termination
option option
exercisable exercisable
during the during the
year ended Extension year ended Termination
31 December option 31 December option
2019 exercised 2019 not exercised
AEEZE AEEZE
—E-hEF —E-hE
+=A=+—-R t+=A=+—-~H
LEFEERTHE EHRERE LtEERTE HIbRERE
LH R 217 HibEE2E i RATBE
No. of leases  No. of leases  No. of leases  No. of leases
HEHE HEHE HEegs HEHE
Properties 3 3 3 nil & nil £
Additional lease liabilities BHE_T—NF
recognised during the year TZA=+T—RILFE
ended 31 December 2019 ERHEIINEEEE
(RMB’000) (AR®TT) 18,787 nil &
In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to UESh - BB A TR e ARG EE RS
exercise an extension option, upon the occurrence of either a ?f@iéﬁ e - AEBEEHGES @i‘ﬂﬁﬁ
significant event or a significant change in circumstances that is EITREHERE -BE T NF+TZA=1—
within the control of the lessee. During the year ended 31 December HIEFE - SIEERAERZEF -
2019, there is no such triggering event.
Sale and leaseback transactions — seller-lessee ERERRSE —EBHFAMEA

To better manage the Group's capital structure and financing needs,

the Group sometimes enters into sale and leaseback arrangements

in relation to machinery leases. These legal transfer does not satisfy

the requirements of HKFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale of the

machinery. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has

raised RMB44,900,000 borrowings in respect of such sale and

leaseback arrangements.

Details of the lease maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in

notes 29 and 41.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT-_A=+—HILFE

19. Prepaid Lease Payments . AAHEERE
2018
—\F
RMB’000
ARET T
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MMEB N LTAT :

Current asset mENEE 4,720
Non-current asset IEREEE 153,858
158,578

Leasehold land in the PRC FERERFEMEE T
Medium term lease R HEAFR 49 158,578

The balance represented prepayment of rentals for land use rights
situated in the PRC for a period of 38 to 50 years under operating

leases.

Details of land use rights pledged are set out in note 39.
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AR e RS RaR M 5t
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_S-NFT-A=t—HLER

20. Other Intangible Assets

20. HtWEFEE

Development

costs
BB A
RMB’000
AREFIT
cosT A
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 and RZZBE—N\F—H—H ZZE—N\F
31 December 2019 +—A=t+—HER=_ZE—hE+=-_B=+—H 8,563
AMORTISATION #haH
At 1 January 2018 —E-N\F—H—H 7,857
Charge for the year FE AN 368
At 31 December 2018 - )\F+=—A=+—H 8,225
Charge for the year FE R 338
At 31 December 2019 —E-hAF+=-_A=+—H 8,563
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2019 —E-hE+=—B=1+—H -
At 31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H 338

Development costs are internally generated.

The above intangible asset has finite useful lives. Such intangible

asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over 5 years.

21. Deposits for Acquisition of A Subsidiary

At 10 December 2019, the Group enter into a Letter of Intent with
Jiangxi Shengjing Technology Company Limited for the acquisition
of 80% of equity interest in Yudu County Zhengyi Paper Products and
Paper Industry Company Limited. Deposits amounted to
RMB2,000,000 and RMB3,000,000 were paid on 4 December 2019

and 12 December 2019, respectively.

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
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21. WEMBARES
R-B-AE+-A+H  AEERTHEKNESER
BRARGI LW TEHZEEEMEEFRAA
80%HE - WHRIEE—NFTZAMNAR=F
—WF+=ZA+=H5 I AR 2,000,000
K AR ¥ 3,000,000 T ARE °

Annual Report 2019
ZE-NFFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_ZT-NF+_A=T—HILFE

22. Inventories 22. 78

2019 2018

—2-nE N

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T

Raw material and consumables AT R E FE R 110,811 146,990
Finished goods I3 26,464 14,788
137,275 161,778

Details of inventories pledged are set out in note 39. B FEFBEENMIFEI9
23. Trade and other Receivables 23. B R EHMEWEE

2019 2018

—e-nE TN\

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T AREEF T

Trade receivables 2B 5 e Ia 431,716 504,144
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEERE (1,912) (1,872)
429,804 502,272

Trade receivables backed by bank bills DSRITEE AR ERNE 5 EWRFIE 298,640 423,006
728,444 925,278

Advances to suppliers AT {H fE g B 25,693 5,721
Prepayments TE IR 5,304 6,271
Other receivables H i fE U 1B 12,533 13,883
43,530 25,875

Total trade and other receivables B 5N EHMER R IBARE 771,974 951,153
As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, gross amount of —hE+ZA=+—RBKk= /\¢+_
trade receivables from contracts with customers amounted to ﬂ ‘|‘ B Eﬁ%ﬁm/\%@ﬁiiu&f’i%ﬁ% BRI

RMB730,356,000 and RMB927,150,000 respectively.

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 120 days from the
invoice date to its trade customers except for the customers newly
accepted of which payment is made when goods are delivered. For
customers with good credit quality, the Group also allows them to
provide bank bills before the due date of trade receivables. Those
bills have maturity ranging from 60 to 180 days guaranteed by bank.

R AR 730,356,000 7T Rk A R HE 927,1 50,000 7 ©

AEEMBEZRAARYESE MEZEPREMH
307?11203%’]1%?%%@ HEAZRNEPAREMRRX
AR - FREBERFNEF  AKETRAFE
R E ZERFEH B AR ERTRE - ELRE

FEIHIE A60ZE 180K © HERTTHEMR
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23.

Trade and other Receivables (Continued) 23. EZREMBRREE)

As at 31 December 2019, total bills received amounting to RIZE—NF+-_A=+—8 AEEFERKLE
RMB298,640,000 (31 December 2018: RMB423,006,000) are held by E B2 5 e IE M BR @ 42 58 A A R 5 298,640,000
the Group for future settlement of trade receivables, of which certain T(ZE2E—-—NFE+_A=1+—H8B: AR
bills were further discounted/endorsed by the Group. The Group 423,006,0007T) * HPHEFRIF#E—SAE R
continues to recognise their full carrying amounts at the end of the AEE - AEERBREHREEEZESIHRMA
reporting period and details are disclosed in note 24. All bills B FRBHNAWE24 - AEBEWRIWFTERE
received by the Group are with a maturity period of less than one NEEBEHTRE—5F -

year.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables not backed by FIFERNBREARRBEREXBHREEZTH
bank bills presented based on dates of delivery of goods, at the end B SN RIBRNZIRITEE Y IENERR DT -

of the reporting period:

2019 2018
—g-nE —TNE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBET T

0-60 days 0-60K 307,211 390,587

61-90 days 61-90 X 40,519 60,685

91-180 days 91-180K 59,461 47,342

Over 180 days 180 KM 22,613 3,658

429,804 502,272

The aged analysis of trade receivables backed by bank bills based on FIE R ERRILBE M X H s E 5 R R

dates of delivery of goods or recognition date of the gross trade THBFERER B LA RIT R 20 RIEE K
receivables, at the end of the reporting period are analysed as BRER DTN T :

follows:

2019 2018

—B-NEF —T-)N\F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®T T AR®ETT

0-60 days 0-60 % 65,413 38,190
61-90 days 61-90 % 35,514 89,297
91-180 days 91-180 % 148,813 202,622
Over 180 days 180 KA k 48,900 92,897
Total Wt 298,640 423,006

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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23.

“EAFTA=T—RIFE

Trade and other Receivables(Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, included in the Group's trade receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
RMB103,049,000 (2018: RMB100,410,000) which are past due as at the
reporting date. Out of the past due balances, RMB28,460,000 (2018:
RMB12,754,000) has been past due 90 days or more and is not
considered as in default after taking into account the repayment
histories and financial position of debtors. For trade receivables in
which customers have provided bank bills for settlement are not
considered as past due nor in default. Other than bills received, the
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer.

As at 31 December 2019, in determining the recoverability of a trade
receivable, the Group considers any change in the credit quality of
the trade receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to
the reporting date. The customers with balances that are neither past
due nor impaired have good repayment histories and no impairment
is considered necessary.

Details of trade receivables and bills receivables pledged as set out
in note 39.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables for
the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 41.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group discounted
bills receivable of external customers with recourse in aggregated
amounts of RMB608,488,000 (2018: RMB674,349,000) to banks for
short term financing of which the associated borrowings amounting
to RMB521,048,000 (2018: RMB663,617,000) and the relevant cash
flows relating to external customers are presented as operating cash
flows in the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended as the management considers the cash flows are, in substance,
the receipts from trade debtors.

Annual Report 2019
T -NEFFR

23.

B 5 RHthEWFRIE (@)
R=Z—AF+=A=+—8  FRENE SRR

B EIEAEEEAR 103,049,000 T (=F
— )\ : AR¥100,410,00070) EBHA @ RS
HEIEEIH] - AR EiAEarh - AR 28,460,000
T(ZTB—N\F: AR%12754,0007T) 2 #HI90
R L WHEEREIHREHRENGEE  BEF
£ REBANIBEARRE TR BEL - HREF
RSB RTEEMNE 5 EUEIE + TR B sk
EH) o BRIREINZIRSN - NEEW R Z S A BT
BRI o

HAZEMHELH - ARBELHEEETPNE
REEREEEPERAMRE -

—hFE+ZA=+—H  EETEZHRER
HRAA TREE - AREZEERTAREBERE
HREERSAH FIHAEEZREFIENEREE
MEMEE - TFEHE RIFENRCE - XEBHT
ERE - FIRBELREZEER -

EHEME 5 RUGIR & B KRE IR BENESY -

BE-F-NAT+-A=+-RLFENEHR

HAth FEU IR 2 BB R FH B BN M 5E 41
BE_ZT-NFT-_A=t—HLFEHR &&

li%ﬂaﬁl\aligﬁmﬁﬁmL%ﬁéza,ﬂﬁﬁm&zm
EeEA AR 608,488,000 (—E—\F : AR
& 674,349,000 7T) T iRITIE AR EiR & A BB (B B
SR AARE521,048000 T (ZT—NF : ARK
663,617,0007t) * RIEEAR SR/ EEE=ZA 1L
FEEARERERTHEER ST - EEEZ R
ZHERER ERNE S EKA BRI
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24.

Transfers of Financial Assets

The following were the Group's bills receivables as at 31 December
2019 and 2018 that were transferred to banks or suppliers by
discounting on a full recourse basis. As the Group has not transferred
the significant risks and rewards relating to these receivables, it
continues to recognise the full carrying amount of the receivables
and the related trade payables and has recognised the cash received
from banks on the transfer as a secured borrowings (see note 28).

Bills receivables of external customers are carried at amortised cost.
Bills receivables arising from intra-group transactions in which the
relevant group entities discounted or transferred the bills to banks or
suppliers, such bills receivables and related intra-group payables
have been eliminated in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position.

As at 31 December 2019

24. HETMEE

NER —E—NER-_ZT—N\F+-_A=+—H1
$$.iﬂ§§m%Wmﬁ§ﬂ&£ELﬁgﬁ
BEIRZ S W R IB MR T IR1TE MR - mRA
SEVESRHEZEENZEAENEARR K
O  He# SRS mRARNRENERE T2
HRELHBENESESEERBEE (RN
28) °

SMNERRER S B R IR IR AN 3 - MBI RREL
MEKRERS  RiRSEEENREC RN

BRERTREER  ZREEBEREREEAN
N RIAEEAREE NG A M B RKR AL -

R-B—AE+=A=+—8

Bills
receivables
discounted to
banks with

Bills
receivables
endorsed to
suppliers with

full recourse full recourse Total
ZHEREZ
2HEREZ EEEHR
FEURBRIR Z B HEEZEE st
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR®T R AR¥T R
Carrying amount of bills receivables FEWEEREE 296,278 10,482 306,760
— external customers — IR 213,978 10,482 224,460
— intra-group customers — EBRIBER 82,300 - 82,300
Carrying amount of trade payables E S EMNZEREE - (10,482) (10,482)
Carrying amount of bank loans fETTfE HEREE (296,278) - (296,278)
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE—NEFE+=-HB=+—H
Bills Bills
receivables receivables
discounted to endorsed to
banks with  suppliers with
full recourse full recourse Total
FHEREZ
ZHEBREZ BEEER
FEUTARIR =5 HERNEE 5T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT ARBTIT
Carrying amount of bills receivables FEWEEREEE 361,135 105,754 466,889
— external customers — SN 353,728 72,040 425,768
— intra-group customers — EHRNIREE 7,407 33,714 41,121
Carrying amount of trade payables Z S EMNZERTEE = (105,754) (105,754)
Carrying amount of bank loans RITIEFRARE B (361,135) — (361,135)

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited

EXBEFEEARAT
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25. Contract Assets

BHEE

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
—e-nEF T )\&F
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-8
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBET T

Made-to-order paper-based packaging products %] 8 A EM K ELE

Em 16,957 19,257

Current = A

16,957 19,257

As at 1 January 2018 contract assets amounted to RMB19,565,000.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the rights
are conditioned on the Group's future performance. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional.

Contract assets, that are not expected to be settled within the
Group’s normal operating cycle, are classified as current and non-
current based on expected settlement dates.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
assets recognised are as follows:

Made-to-order paper-based packaging products

The Group typically does not requires a deposit on acceptance of
order. The consideration is payable on the earlier of the delivery and
acceptance of the finished goods by customers or notice from the
customer to cancel the order. If the customer cancels the order then
the Group is entitled to receive payment for work done to date
pursuant to legal and regulatory environment in the PRC. The Group
typically issue bills to customers when the finished goods are
delivered to customers and acknowledged by customers. The credit
term is ranging from 30 to 120 days.

Details of the impairment assessment are set out in note 41.

BRNEENR-_T-/\E—A-BNEERAR®E
19,565,000 7 °

AHNEEFTEHANERZRTHKMIEFRE 2R
B ARAZSEFNUREBARRETRAGKE - &
ERK AEGEER  GHNEEEBBREE S EIGR
I8 o

AHNEERMTSEASENER2EBHAE
5 SRENSEEAMOBRAREBRIERD -

FECHERANEESRNARNRERWT

BRI EEENRREBEER

AEEBRFEZERTEREGS - AEBEER
P RS A 2R G 2 B3k R F BUH 1 58 AY 38 AN R
it o tnREFEUHFTE - RSB G RERER R
R AR MEEIRITMENES B IEFTFER TER T
H e BRMRAGEEIBIHEFHRAE A%
EREemEF RS - ERHAANE120K -

RERHEFISENH T4 -
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26. Pledged Bank Deposits and Bank Balances and

27.

Cash

Bank balances carry interest at market rates within range from 0.01%
to 0.35% (2018: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum. The pledged deposits
carry interest rates which range from 0.30% to 1.65% (2018: 0.35% to

2.75%) per annum.

Pledged bank deposits represent deposit pledged to banks to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group. Deposits amounting
to RMB139,904,000 (31 December 2018: RMB108,910,000) have been
pledged to secure the short-term bank borrowings and bills payables
repayable within three to six months and are therefore classified as
current assets. The pledged bank deposits will be released upon the

settlement of relevant bank borrowings.

Trade and Other Payables

. CEFRTERRBITERRES
IRITHEBRM T TISEFENF001%E0.35% (=
ZT— \4F : 0.01% £ 0.35%) ° &K 17 F T 7 5 Fl

RN F030%E1.65%( = F — )\ F:035% =
275%) o BARIFIRITIF KASEEERBERITEER
EBDE] B ©

BIRBIRITF G FIRITHER  LERRAAR
EEFEIRITHE - BEARE 139,904,0007T (=
T-N\F+=ZA=+—H: ARK¥108,910,0007T)
NERBER=ZZNEAREENRITERLE
NERIELER - Bt2ERTEEE - EEMER
TERSEEERARITERERER -

27. EZREMENRER

2019 2018

—g-nE —NE

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARBTT

Trade payables B S RIR 156,003 205,383
Bills payables — secured ENEE — F5iKE 68,572 165,928
Other tax payables (note) H o FEAT R IE (M 5E) 30,800 47,052
Payroll and welfare payables }EH%M&TE%IJ% 30,901 34,170
Construction payables FEfT T2 3T 3,918 3,951
Others Hib 17,386 17,202
307,580 473,686

Note: Included in other tax payables is RMB28,880,000 (2018: RMB43,384,000)

provision of value-added tax.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based
on the dates of receipt of goods at the end of the reporting period.

BRE B fth B AR TE AR A S (B B B A (A R 28,880,000 7T
—ZT—\F : AR¥43,384,0007T) °

FINBEMRERER BB AZINNE S E
NRIBREE AT

2019 2018

—E-AF —\&F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®ET T ARBTT

0-60 days 0-60K 131,759 140,238
61-90 days 61-90 K 11,822 17,670
91-180 days 91-180k 4,181 35,279
Over 180 days 180 KA 8,241 12,196
156,003 205,383

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
EXBEFEEARAT
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27.

28.

Trade and Other Payables (Continued)
The aged analysis of bills payables based on the dates of receipt of
goods at the end of the reporting period are analysed as follows:

27.

B REMENREE

FIENHREMRIZREREE A A2 REE

HERER D ATAOT :
2019 2018
—E-hF —E—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREEFTT
0-60 days 0-60K 20,538 40,597
61-90 days 61-90 K 13,744 20,064
91-180 days 91-180 k& 34,290 17,167
Over 180 days 180 KA _E - 88,100
68,572 165,928

The credit period on purchase of material is 30 to 120 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to monitor the

settlement.

Bank and Other Borrowings

Bank Borrowings

BURBRR

%.ﬂﬁ&ﬁmﬁm

Eﬁéﬁﬁﬂrm%’ﬂ*)ﬂﬂﬂﬁ%%oini o REMER
EEBRIASIREERBNR o

IRITEN
2019 2018
—ZE-AEF —Z=—)\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFT
Secured BEM 758,918 881,202
Unsecured AR 51,820 23,143
810,738 904,345
Carrying amount repayable: AR T EEEENREE :
Within one year —F R 777,488 891,202
Within in a period of more than one year but not ~ —%F LA BT BB E
exceeding two years 19,000 -
Within in a period of more than two years butnot  FREELA H{ETBE A F
exceeding five years 14,250 -
810,738 891,202
Carrying amount of bank loans that contain a EBREEESREX—FANEEHEE
repayment on demand repayable:
Within one year RITIE AR - 13,143
810,738 904,345
Less: Amounts due within one year shown W VERBAEE TN 2 —FAEERIE
under current liabilities (777,488) (904,345)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities ERBBET ZEERIE 33,250 -
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Bank and Other Borrowings (Continued)
Bank Borrowings (Continued)

28. RITRH ﬂiﬂﬁ NCD
RATERR ()

The Group's borrowings that are denominated in the following REBURBAERBIEESUIINEETENES
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant entities AT ¢
are set out below:
2019 2018
—2-nE —NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
HKD BT 51,820 13,143

Bank borrowings as at year end were secured by the pledge of assets
as set out in note 39.

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) on the Group's borrowings are as follows:

FLANPH TE 39 R - FRIBITERIA B ERFIER
o

AEBEENERMNX(ZTMBESNRCTHMNE)

REELT
2019 2018
—ZE-hE —N\F

Effective interest rate:
BERRA =

Fixed rate borrowings
ZEER

Variable rate borrowings
FRIETK

Benchmark interest rate is quoted by the People’s Bank of China.

At 31 December 2019, variable-rate bank borrowings are amounting
to RMB289,471,000 (2018: RMB293,721,000). The borrowings are
arranged at the interest rate based on benchmark interest rate from
the People’s Bank of China (“Benchmark Rate"”) plus, if applicable, a
premium and expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. At 31
December 2019, fixed rate bank borrowings are amounting to
RMB521,267,000 (2018: RMB610,624,000).

As at 31 December 2019, secured bank borrowings include the
discounting of (i) bills receivables from external trade customers
amounting to RMB213,978,000 (2018: RMB353,728,000), and (ii) intra-
group bills receivables amounting to RMB82,300,000 (2018:
RMB7,407,000), to banks with recourse.

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
EXBBEZRER AR

2.50% to 5.44% per annum
FHRZE2.50% £ 5.44%
3.85% to 5.66% per annum
FHZ=3.85% & 5.66%

3.50% to 6.31% per annum
FFFE3.50% £ 6.31%
4.35% to 6.18% per annum
FRFE435% & 6.18%

HEM KB B ARBITRRHE ©

—NE+ZA=+—8  RITEEEREHE
Z%/\E%ZBQAN,OOOTE(f T—-—NF: AR¥
293,721,0007T) » EEF R THIRF B ARRITZH
EVEEE R ([BEFFIE]) - B E(ERA) -
HEMSASERBRASREFNERER -NZ=F
—NE+ZA=+T—8 ROTELEXEER/AR
#5521,267,000T(=ZZF— \F : AR 610,624,000
JT) e

—hE+=-A=1+—8 CRARTEREE
BRI EEIRRTEERE)INEEZREEKRE
ﬁﬁ%%AE%maWSWMH:%—AE'AE

#5353,728,0007T ) : R(NDHEEKEESRE A
AE%wsmpmﬁL;f \E : AR¥E7,407,000
JC) °

Annual Report 2019
—ThEEH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT-_A=+—HILFE

28. Bank and Other Borrowings (Continued) 28. SRITRHEMER G
Other Borrowings H &R
2019 2018
—®-nE —TNF
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBET T

Secured (note 1) SR (MIEE1) 44,094 26,306
Unsecured (note 2) A (Ff3E2) 18,480 26,820
62,574 53,126
Carrying amount repayable: AR THEEZMNEDE :
Within one year —F R 39,105 47,340
Within a period of more than one year —FE LA FETBRRE
but not exceeding two years 16,576 5,786
Within a period of more than two years MDA BB iR A
but not exceeding five years 6,893 -
62,574 53,126
Less: Amount due within one year shown W YERBAE N —FERERIB
under current liabilities (39,105) (47,340)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities IERBAaE N2 EERIA 23,469 5,786
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28. Bank and Other Borrowings (Continued)
Other Borrowings (Continued)

Notes:

M

In 2017, the Group entered into agreements (the “Agreements A”) with a
PRC financial institution (“Financial Institution A”) whereby the Group drew
down RMB43,599,000 from the Financial Institution A (included in other
borrowings) which are to be repayable within 3 years from the date of draw
down at variable rates based on Benchmark Rate plus a premium. The
effective interest rate of the borrowings as at 31 December 2019 are 9.24%
(2018: ranging from 9.24% to 9.41%).

In 2019, the Group entered into agreements (the “Agreements B”) with a
PRC financial institution (“Financial Institution B") whereby the Group drew
down RMB44,900,000 from the Financial Institution B(included in other
borrowings) which are to be repayable within 3 years from the date of draw
down at variable rates based on Benchmark Rate plus a premium. The
effective interest rate of the borrowings as at 31 December 2019 are ranging
from 11.71% to 11.72%.

As collaterals for the above financing, the Group transferred the ownership
title of the related machineries to the Financial Institution A and Financial
Institution B.

Upon discharging all the Group's obligations under the Agreements A and
Agreements B, the Financial Institution A and Financial Institution B will
return the ownership title of the machineries to the Group for nominal
amount of RMB100. Despite the Agreements involve a legal form of a lease,
the Group accounted for the Agreements A and Agreements B, as
collateralised borrowings at amortised cost using effective interest method
in accordance with the actual substance of the Agreements A and

Agreements B.

Loans of RMB18,480,000 (2018: RMB26,820,000) are included in other
borrowings in the consolidated statement of financial position at 31
December 2019, which are obtained from two companies (2018: two
companies) controlled by a non-controlling equity owner of a subsidiary. The
loans are arranged as entrusted loans through banks, which are to be
repayable within one year at fixed interest rate of 3.50% per annum (2018:
3.50%). During the year, loans of RMB8,340,000 has been repaid and the
repayment of remaining loans amount of RMB18,480,000 has been extended
for one year with interest rate revised to 3.50% per annum.

Zhengye International Holdings Company lelted Annual Report 2019
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28. BITR

HA R )

Hith 'fEI (')

Wi -

m

REZT—+F  AEEHR—FHPEREE (S
BRI (HER]) - B ABEAREER
A B £ RS LA R 43,599,000 TTE R (BIEH
R MZESHE=ZFTREE RZ2T—hLF
+ZA=1+—8 " HF SR FEEENRINEES
FENF924% (ZF—)\F : NF9.24% E9.41% 2 )
ST -

—NF AEERE-—MHRESEEE (S
Bz Dl ((HEZ ) - B AR EAASE
B 1] & & BhiiE 2 EELA R 44,900,000 T & 53k (B24E
HMER)  MZzESBE=FREE R_T—L&F
+ZA=+—8 - HFBNRF B EEFRINEET
ENTINTI%ENT2%1E -

ERERREZER  AEEESHEMESR 2 HEEE
EETZORBETRSRBES -

RERAEBER AT RIBAELTHEELR - S8
KERREMEB LK SREREARK100THZ
R EEERETASE - BEBHNEETAE
TEE  AEEDRGEFRGHRIEEAD &
FREBRFZER 3 T R i O F B ER AR R R
BEFRAL ©

R B A RIFE RS A AFTEHI M RR A
A(ZF—N\F : MR A]) AR 18,480,000 7T (=
T—\4F : AR#26,820,0007T) NERBEHEA—Z
—NF+ZA=+—AGEHHRRRT A EAMER
A ZBEREBRTRHNETER  MERHEEA
A — 4 AR E F I 3.50% (=T —\4 : 3.50%) &
B - RERNDEBERS,340,0007T ' B TERARK
18,480,000 LEIER —F + EFFIEK(EF]A3.50% °
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29. Lease Liabilities

29. HEEE

2019
—E-hF
RMB’000
ARBT T
Lease liabilities payable: ERNEERE
Within one year —FER 17,277
Within a period of more than one year but not more —F LA FETBBERE
than two years 16,495
Within a period of more than two years but not more MEL EEBETBARE
than five years 16,193
Within a period of more than five years RE 15,719
65,684
Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 months shown B oREBaEE~AET —_EARN
under current liabilities FE(E 3 NI 17,277
Amount due for settlement after 12 months shown under ERHaEERN T AR BREEERIE
non-current liabilities 48,407
Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies other than the THRAHBSEEEBNI R EEUINEEIIE
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below: 2 A
HKD
BT
RMB’000
ARBT T
As at 31 December 2019 —h&E+=B=+—~H 663
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30. Obligation Under a Finance Lease 30. MEHERMNRIE
2018
—N\&F
RMB’000
ARETTT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MMEB N LTAT :
Current liabilities mEBE 394
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 7,052
7,446
The Group had leased certain of its plant and machinery under a R-ZZE—N\F+-_A=1+—8  "&EEREHER
finance lease at fixed interest rate of 6.12% per annum as at 31 EUBETEFEME612%HAAE THE K ikss - FHE
December 2018. The lease term was 20 years. 7204 o
Present value
Minimum of minimum
lease lease
payments payments
&K BE
HemE HLRERE
2018 2018
— N\ —Z-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARKEFT ARET T
Obligation under a finance lease payable: MEHETEARE
Within one year —F R 850 394
Within a period of more than one year but not —F LA ETBBRRFE
exceeding two years 850 418
Within a period of more than two years but not MF A LB EBRF
more than five years 2,550 1,415
Within a period of more than five years RFERE 5,633 5,219
9,883 7,446
Less: future finance charges B RREEE (2,437) N/A
e
Present value of lease obligation HERMNRIELRE 7,446 7,446
Less: Amounts due for settlement within one year &t : ZER—FRNEEXREGIEREBERET)

(shown under current liabilities) (394)
Amounts due for settlement after one year BN — TR BB TE 7,052
The Group's obligation under a finance lease was secured by the HAARCHEEE  UERAEENREHERE
lessor's charge over the leased assets. R -
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HE_ZT-NF+_A=T—HILFE

31. Contract Liabilities EHAE

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-)N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARET T

Corrugated medium paper products S AR E M 2,215 2,644

Current =Bl 2,215 2,644

As at 1 January 2018 contract liabilities amounted RMB8,766,000. EHEER-_TE—/\F—A—HHNEEAARK
8,766,000 7T °

The amount of contract liabilities includes the revenue to be
recognised and the related value-added tax. The contract liabilities
balance varies in accordance with the number of contracts
outstanding at the end of reporting period. The following table
shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current year
relates to carried-forward contract liabilities and how much relates to
performance obligations that were satisfied in prior periods.

BHREASRERFERRAMBBEER - 640
BEHRERERSARRTKNERBEMEL
TERBRTAFERBNBATESZ L EEES
MEERR URENFBRERENENERES
REBIR -

Corrugated
medium paper
products
RAESHEER
RMB'000
ARETT
For the year ended 31 December 2019 ZE-AF+ZA=+—HLFE
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract FYERRBEEEREBERANEHE
liability balance at the beginning of the year 2,644
For the year ended 31 December 2018 —E-N\F+=-A=+—HLFE
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract FUEHEREEaREBERANTR
liability balance at the beginning of the year 7,492

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
liabilities recognised are as follows:

Sales of corrugated medium paper products

The Group requires a deposit on acceptance of orders from some of
the customers. When the Group receives a deposit before the
delivery of corrugated medium paper products, this will give rise to
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue
recognised on the relevant contract exceeds the amount of the
deposit.

TEOERANABSBRNRENRERET

BB EEFnu‘ié’%
REBEREZHDBEPHTERRTE - EAE
BEXMNEBCRERBKETEH - EEAHD
RIRELSNEE  EEFHENERN AR
BEREESIL
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_ZT-NF+_A=T—HILFE

32. Amounts Due to Directors 32. EREERIE
The amounts due to directors are unsecured, interest free and ENESREAEIE - B REENREE -
repayable on demand.

33. Deferred Taxation 33. EEELEBIIR
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of BERV 2R ETEERBEEERABEAGES
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been AR R AL - BIETMKE2HR A BEFRE
offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for EBROITT ¢

financial reporting purposes:

2019 2018
—g-nE  —TNE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBT T

Deferred tax assets R IE A (6,475) (4,070)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFTEA & 5,629 7,525
(846) 3,455
The following are the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities recognised NTRARAREERBEFELXEDHARLENRIA
and movements thereon during the current and prior years: (BE)/ABEREES :
Impairment Undistributed
Right of Lease Contract  Provision ~ Deferred on Depreciation profit of
use assets liabilities assets for inventory income  receivables differences subsidiaries Total
WEAR

ERERE HERE ANEE  GERE  BLUWA BUREEE  WEZE TU2EN szt
RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETL ARETL ARETL ARBTL ARBTL ARBTL ARETR

At1January 2018 R=ZE—-/\E—A—H - - 720 - (3,853) (198) 1,741 8,326 6,736
Creditfor the year ~ FRAI[EI% = = (56) (1,924) (782) (83) (167) (1,042) (4.054)
Effectof changein  BE& (L 7 ¥2

tax rate - - - - 773 - - - 773

At31 December  RZZE-N\F

2018 +=-A=1—H - - 664 (1,924) (3,862) (281) 1,574 7,284 3,455
Adjustments (note 2) 3% (Fiz2) 9,603 (9,603) = - - = - - -
AlJanuay 2019 R-B-AF—B-B 9603 (9,603 664 (1928 (3.862) (81) 1574 7284 3455
(Credit) charge R ([EE) R

forthe year (42) 1274 (154) ©@ 097 © e (178 (4300

At31 December  R=ZE-hE
2019 +=A=1+—H 8,177 (8,329) 510 (1,986) (5,839) (287) 1,408 5,500 (846)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_ZT-NF+_A=T—HILFE

33. Deferred Taxation (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses
of RMB3,789,000 (2018: RMB nil) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
unused tax losses of RMB3,789,000 (2018: RMB nil) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The unrecognised tax losses
at the end of reporting period will be expired in the following years:

33. IEEBIE )
EHRERRA > AEBABAHEBESARE
3,789,000 7 (=Z — )\ F : £ ) B 0] AR 85 R 2R
FE - AFERELSBEEERBEECHERAEBK - A
REETERERROBFIRIR - AEREHIEEE
AR A AREE3,789,0007T (=2 — )\ : ) -
%m&iaﬁxmﬂ@ ARG EIEBEUNTFEE

2019 2018

—E-NF — N\

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETIT

2024 — T4 3,789 -

Under the EIT law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on 10% of
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of the
PRC subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised was approximately RMB588,783,000 (2018:
RMB510,860,000). No deferred tax liabilities have been recognised in
respect of these difference because the Group is in a position to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that such difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

B MRS PUOERE » S BB D R AT REUA
FRERNKRESBIKA S 2+ REHK - B_FT
NNF— A — B A R R HERRR AE 5 TR & {8 RO Y
BRBIRD /)K@ﬂﬁ@@*h%%ﬁ EHORARK
588,783,0007T ( —Z — J\ 4 : A K # 510,860,000
T ARAKEREHEREZENERER - B
ZEERAER BRI NG EE M ERZE
EREARTEHREE

34. Share Capital 34. B
Number Nominal
of shares value
BEE ZHEE
HK$
/’%TE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SIRFEE0.10 78 o) E @Ak
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, and R-—T—N\—HA—H" —N\&F
31 December 2019 ‘f‘_ﬁ =+—H &_i 7L¢
+=-—A=+—~H 1,000,000,000 100,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAE :
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, and R-ZZE—N\—HA—H ZZ—/\F
31 December 2019 TZA=T—HR=ZZE—1F
+=—BA=+—8H 500,000,000 50,000,000
RMB'000
AREEFIT
Presented as at 31 December 2018 and 2019 2HAR "B N\ER-T—HE
+=—A=+—H 41,655

There were no changes in the Company'’s authorised, issued and fully
paid share capital during the both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE

35.

36.

“EAFTA=T—RIFE

Retirement Benefits Schemes

The Group operates a mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of a trustee. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to
the scheme, which contribution is matched by employees but subject
to a maximum amount of HK$1,500 per month (2018: HK$1,500 per
month) for each employee.

The employees of the Company'’s subsidiaries established in the PRC
are members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated
by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
certain percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefits
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the specific
contributions.

The total cost charged to income of RMB15,861,000 (2018:
RMB20,968,000) represents contributions payable to these schemes
by the Group in respect of the current accounting period.

Deferred Income

In 2019, the Group received government subsidies of RMB 16,501,000
(2018: RMB7,348,000) for the cost of constructions of its paper-based
package and corrugated medium paper plant and the replacement
of machineries. The amounts were treated as deferred income at 31
December 2019 and 2018. The amounts are transferred to income
over the useful lives of the relevant assets and the amounts
transferred to income during the current year is RMB3,325,000 (2018:
RMB2,138,000). As at 31 December 2019, an amount of
RMB38,918,000 (2018: RMB25,742,000) remains to be amortised.

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
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36.

EARERGE
AEBRMAEBASEERREEMABESE - &
BeFBIvEERARB Y EENH  BEEAL
HZESHER AEBRESHIZBABABNS%
mRfEEFTEIHK B ERATEZE A 1,500%8 T
(ZZT—N\F : 1,50087T) °

AREFENEAREEH R EERTRE R
ZBEZERENEIZKE - HEARERERH
EF T AN RERKENG B HRAETERRE
M o REBARKBAFE 2 T 2R BEER/RE
ZaT B EHK -

AU BRFNBR B B A A 49 A R #515,861,000 T (= F
—N\F : AR 20,968,0007T) JhH KA EE R A

S HRER DA ET EIE A KB AR o

IESE WA

R-ZF—NF  AEEREIBARERHER KRBT
AR RS A R ER B MM BUT R - 2BRAA

R # 16,501,000 (ZZ — )\ F : AR#¥7,348,000

L) WEBEE—T—NFR=_TE—N\F+=A
=+ —HE®RABETKRA - LSEHRBEEEE
FRFHRERZKA - L SERAHREEZ Bk
A EAARE3325000T(ZE—N\F: AR
#£2,138,000) e R=ZE—NEFE+=-_A=+—8 "
AN 5 A AR 38,918,000 L (=T — )\
£ AR¥25,742,0007C) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT-_A=+—HILFE

37.

38.

Operating Leases
The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments under operating leases during the year:

37. KgdHE

FEBFEREBEA
FREERETHRERS TR :

2018
—N\&F
RMB’000
ARET T
Factory and office premises S E N JES 20,158
Vehicles 8 1,664
21,822
The Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments AEFERESYEBETARMEKCLESNIHE
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: REBESHIBMOT :
2018
—F-N\F
RMB'000
ARETT
Within one year —F R 19,310
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFERF(HEMEREEAN) 22,464
Over five years RER 18,260
60,034
Capital Commitments 38. BEARAEHE
2019 2018
—2-nE —N&
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of Y RN R
property, plant and equipment contracted for B T4{B R R A B S SR R BB
but not provided in the consolidated financial §$%ﬁ§_i '
statements " 23,275 12,855
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BE

39.

40.

“EAFTA=T—RIFE

Pledge of Assets

The following assets were pledged to secure certain banking and
other facilities (including properties, plant and equipment under a
finance lease) granted to the Group at the end of the reporting

39. EEEKH

DAT?%HQ?&&%,HHEEK%E%EW%TE AERETAR
BETROMEMBENER(BERETHNY
% BB KR

period:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Buildings and construction in progress BEREETRR 61,361 68,197
Plant and machinery e kiR 134,378 132,018
Land use rights — prepaid lease payment T R — FBEERIE 106,269 154,554
Trade receivables 25 EWEIE 80,000 80,000
Bills receivables FEWE S 213,978 353,728
Pledged bank deposits 2R ITER 139,904 108,910
Inventories T8 53,657 38,970
789,547 936,377

In addition to the pledge of assets above, bank borrowings of
RMB82,300,000 (2018: RMB7,407,000) are secured by the discounted

intra-group bills receivables as at 31 December 2019.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged

from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which
includes bank borrowings and other borrowings as disclosed in note
28, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to

owners of the Company, comprising share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of the review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associates with the capital.
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through payment of dividends, new share issues as
well as the issue of the new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
EXBBEZRER AR

Based on

B ALEEERE R=_Z—NLF+=A
=+—H ' BEERITAREERRAGIRFRITE
R D HEENE RS E A AREES2,300,0007T(=
T—N\F : AR¥7,407,0007T) °

. EERRER

AEBEREES  BARAEEAZERENNUS
BRETAEE  RFBEEREHERAZEN
REFERSKRFINEADE - ARENEER
RS SR F MR E o

AEENEABREEER (BIEME 28 EEN
RITREMER)  HKRSRBRSFEY AR
AREHEA ARG (BERD RFEE) -

ARBEFEERRIERNREE - (ERRETE—&

CEEEFEARARERNABRR - AEEE
REEFHRERE  BBRKNRE - BITHR A
RBETHEBREEREAERTERBEAR
8o
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HE_Z-NFT-_A=+—HILFE

41.

Financial Instruments

a.

41. IR

Categories of financial instruments a. EWMIANER
2019 2018
—e-hE —F-N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBEFIT
Financial assets THEE
Amortised cost BESHRC A 1,111,971 1,304,318
Financial liabilities THEE
Amortised cost b 1D N 1,183,618 1,347,703
Financial risk management objectives and policies b. £REREEEEZERBEK

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, trade and other payables, amounts due to directors, bank
and other borrowings, lease liabilities and obligation under a
finance lease. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
The Group's activities expose primarily to the market risks of
changes in interest rates and currency rates.

There has been no significant change to the Group's exposure
to market risks or the manner in which it manages and
measures the risk.

AEENETZEHTEABIEEZE S MEMEK
RIE - BEBRITER  BOTEHRERS -
B MEMEMNKIE  BNESRIE - R]T7
FEMER  HEABEAKRERERETRK
IH - Al%E SR T AMNIEE R AR
WE o HZEem T AEFEBANEREEMS

R (B RFERR) - FERRERRRBE
‘:EH“”TK%W'JZZM—WH 2 %5 B g B
o Efiﬁﬁé@&?? ZERE - AR
&H—r BRI IREVE S FE 1 ©

5 E K
EEAFES E TR R R INESTE R B EH
miZER o

SEAZNMSERKEEERAEZFA
B DEMEEREE
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41. Financial Instruments (Continued) 41. €I HE %)
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. 2REKREEEEREXE)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) miZ Rk (5)
(i) Currency risk (i) EME

The Group collects most of its revenue and incurs most
of the expenditures in RMB.

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated
in foreign currencies, hence exposures to exchange rate
fluctuations arises. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposures and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets (mainly including bank
balances and cash, pledged bank deposits and trade and
other receivables) and monetary liabilities (mainly
including trade and other payable and bank borrowings)
at the reporting date are as follows:

B A BHRARBZHAARS
st -

REEEITE T UINEFENR S
B 1 7 52 B O B LB o A SR B 3R B
WEINELIRBER - AT - BIREE
BINERBRINEREZREE B L
BEARINERK

SENHEAHUINEHENERE
E(XZRERTEHLES  CEA
RITFEFTANE Z R EARIHIR) &
ERaBE(TEZRRES REMBEMNK
TALA KRR MBREEN T

2019 2018
—B-hEFE —T)\F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥T T AREBTIT
Assets EE
usD ETT 638 622
HKD BT 12,860 2,225
JPY Hit 83 74
Liabilities =
HKD I 51,849 14,895

Sensitivity analysis
The Group mainly exposes to the currency of USD, HKD
and JPY relative to RMB.
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41.

Financial Instruments (Continued)

41. €I HE %)
StREREEEERBEER (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b.

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

0]

Currency risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a
10% (2018: 10%) increase and decrease in RMB against
the relevant foreign currencies. 10% represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end of
the reporting period for a 10% (2018: 10%) change in
foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
trade and other payables, bank borrowings, trade and
other receivables as well as bank balances denominated
in foreign currencies. A positive number below indicates
an increase in post-tax profit and other equity where the
RMB strengthens 10% (2018: 10%) against the relevant
currency. For a 10% weakening of RMB against the
relevant currency, they would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit and other equity and balances
below would be negative.

miEEkE (8)

(i)

ERER ()
TRAFMANEEBE AR K ARBINE
P& = 1% A0 Ko gk D 10% ( — T — )\ 4 ¢
10%) FIBURETE © 10% BARBEEE
BEABREANIPINERR - WRE
EEEHERNSBEA BTG
BREESMERERITENINEE
EMIEE WAREHARAZRELL B
JA 2 BR P R 10%( — & — )\ §F ¢
10%) B &) - GRRE DT EIEAE T
ERRITEE RIRTTE - EERB
TR G0 - Ep AR S B S
BEFER FF10%(ZF—/\FE : 10%) °
fin A R B 5 48 B8 1 8 K (B =R 55
10% @ BB ADNGE F SRR EH AT
HE-

2019 2018
—E-hF —E—)N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREFTT
usD ET
Profit or loss s A2k B R (84) (53)
HKD BIT
Profit or loss v H| sk 5 18 3,230 1,049
JPY Ht
Profit or loss va A1 5k 518 (8) )

Annual Report 2019
—E-NEFFR

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
EXEFEEARAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

/\‘/T\

BE

41.

S
=
—=

BB HRRN

For the year ended 31 December 2019
NETZA=+—HILFE

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

b.

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due
to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate
on bank deposits, and bank and other borrowings which
carry at prevailing deposit interest rates and variable rate
based on the interest rates quoted by the People’s Bank
of China respectively.

The Group's fair value interest rate risk relates primarily
to its fixed rate pledged bank deposits, bank and other
borrowings. The Group currently does not use any
interest rate hedging policy to hedge its exposure to
interest rate risk. However, the management will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the
need arise.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note.

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis on bank balances is not presented as
the management considers that the Group's exposure to
interest rate fluctuation is insignificant.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for the variable-
rate bank and other borrowings at the end of the
reporting period and the stipulated change taking place
at the beginning of the financial year and held constant
throughout the year. A 50 basis points (2018: 50 basis
points) increase or decrease for variable bank and other
borrowings are used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represent
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates in respect of bank and other
borrowings.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2018: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variable were held
constant, the Group's: post-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2019 would have decreased/increased by
RMB1,457,000 (2018: RMB1,359,000).
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Financial Instruments (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amounts of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its
financial assets except that the credit risks associated with
trade receivables is partially mitigated because settlement of
certain trade receivables are backed by bank bills issued by
reputable financial institutions and the Group has purchased
insurance policy for covering certain percentage of credit loss
on its trade receivables arisen from its contracts with customers
for the sales of corrugated medium paper products and paper-
based packaging products.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals. Before accepting any new
customer, the Group uses an internal credit assessment system
to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are
reviewed regularly. The Group may require a deposit to be
received from certain customers of corrugated medium paper
products before acceptance of orders. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. The Group has also purchase
insurance to cover certain portion of the credit loss arisen from
the trade receivables. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9 on trade balances individually or based on provision
matrix. Customers are assessed for ECL by categorising into
receivables fully backed by bank bills and not backed by bank
bills. Debtors with trade receivables backed by bank bills are
assessed individually taking into consideration of the credit
rating and reputation of the banks issuing the bills. The Group
assessed the ECL on trade receivables not backed by bank bills
and contract assets individually for debtors and contract assets
with significant balance and/or collectively based on provision
matrix with appropriate groupings based primarily on the
debtors’ and contract assets’ ageing profiles. In determining
the amount of impairment allowance, the directors of the
Company may consider the credit enhancement under the
insurance coverage as mentioned above. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk
is significantly reduced.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_ZT-NF+_A=T—HILFE

41.

Financial Instruments (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are banks/financial institutions with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Other receivables are assessed individually and not included in
provision matrix. The credit quality of other receivables have
been assessed with reference to the historical information
about the past due information, default rate and the financial
position of counterparties. The directors of the Company
consider that the credit risk of other receivables is low in view
of the good collection history.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 34% (2018: 30%)
of total trade receivables represented amounts due from the
Group's largest three (2018: three) trade debtors as at 31
December 2019. The management is of the view that these
trade debtors of the Group have good trade record without
default history and consider that the trade receivable from
these customers is recoverable.

Other than those described above, the Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk.

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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41. Financial Instruments (Continued)
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's
financial assets and contract assets, which are subject to ECL

41. EMITA@®)

b. 2REKREEEERKE(H)

ERRRRBERE (8)
TRHANAEESREENANEENER
R - WAETEMEERRNG

assessment:
Internal 12-month
credit or lifetime
2019 Notes rating ECL Gross carrying amount
RBEE T-EAZKS
—B-hE iz FAR RHEERR HIREE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T R AR®T R
Pledged bank deposits BHIRRITIE R 26 (note i) 12-m ECL 139,904 139,904
(Pi3Ei) T EABEREEEE
Bank balances IRIT4E R 26 (note i) 12-m ECL 231,089 231,089
(=) TZEREHEEER
Other receivables H e EoE 23 (note ii) 12-m ECL 12,533 12,533
(i) ToEABREEESE
Trade receivables — BB EWFZIA — 23 (note iii) Lifetime ECL 728,584
goods and services & R RS (Bt axiii) (not credit-impaired)
KERBEEER
GEHEERME)
(note iii) Credit-impaired 1,772 730,356
(fizEiin)  EERE
Contract assets EHEBE 25 (note iii) Lifetime ECL 16,957 16,957
(B 5E i) (not credit-impaired)
KEREEEER
GHEERME)
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41.

B SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT-_A=+—HILFE

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

b.

. E@MI A
b. 2BEREEEERNEE)

ERRRRBERE (8)

Notes: B E

0} For the purpose of internal credit risk management, the Group has (i) HRARBEERBREENS  AEEE2EHEE
made reference to the external credit rating for its major bank BIRITHEBOINEDEERTAR ©
balances.

(ii) For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group uses (ii) RABEERREREMS @ ARERBANRE
past due information to assess whether credit risk has increased B BT RRREERBETEELM -
significantly since initial recognition. As at 31 December 2019, the REZZB-NE+-A=1t—H AEELEH
Group has no past due other receivables. HAHE th FE YR IE ©

(iii) For trade receivables not backed by bank bills and contract assets, (iii) PRERITERARENEZREFRRANE
the Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to EME  AEEERAEBUBHREERN
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with LA ER GTBHEREBEMIBRERE -
significant outstanding balances amounted to RMB187,993,000 or MRABERREMRTEN AR 187,993,0007T
credit-impaired, the Group determines the expected credit losses on SERRBENEB AN NREBRAD Ll
these items by using a provision matrix as mentioned above. BEREZERENEHREEESR -

Internal 12-month
credit or lifetime

2018 Notes  rating ECL Gross carrying amount

mEEE  +=EA _ﬁ? %

—E-N\EF fisx  AEAR BHEER HMEREE

RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®TT
Pledged bank deposits BIEBRITER 26 (note i) 12-m ECL 108,910 108,910
(B=E) T EAEHEEER
Bank balances RITHE R 26 (note i) 12-m ECL 231,089 231,089
(P5E) +t-EAREHEEER
Other receivables Hfth fE Y /IR 23 (note ii) 12-m ECL 11,149 11,149
(BT i) T-EABHEERS
Trade receivables — B 5 el e 23 (note iii) Lifetime ECL 925,278
goods and services — ERE R (B i) (not credit-impaired)
KEEBERER
(EHEERME)
(note iii) Credit-impaired 1,872 927,150
(Mfagii)  EERE
Contract assets BHEE 25 (note iii) Lifetime ECL 19,257 19,257
(B E i) (not credit-impaired)

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
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41.

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

b.

Notes:

(i)

For the purpose of internal credit risk management, the Group has
made reference to the external credit rating for its major bank

balances.

For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group uses
past due information to assess whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. As at 31 December 2018, the

Group has no past due other receivables.

For trade receivables not backed by bank bills and contract assets,
the Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with
significant outstanding balances amounted to RMB226,054,000 or
credit-impaired, the Group determines the expected credit losses on

these items by using a provision matrix as mentioned above.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical

observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors

and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is

available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly

reviewed by management to ensure relevant information about

specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, impairment
allowance of RMB40,000 (2018: RMB350,000) were made on
debtors with credit-impaired debtors.

. 2RI A

b.

TREREEBERBEKE)
ERRRRBERE (8)
fiE

() HABEERARERME  ARERSERE
BRITEBOINBERTE -

(ii) RADEERREENS AEBERAASE
EiMh BV S BEREEERRETEELN
RZZ—N\F+ZA=1+—8 FEELESR
HAH fth FEUGRIA -

iy HERTEBEARENEZERBFERENE
EMs  AEBECRABTEMBERELENIN
b AT 2R S TEREEBBIERERE -
R ABERREHRTEN AR 226,054,0007T
HEERMERNEBF AN - AEERR S
EEEZSEANEREEER -

HEHEAERRBEBABRRSHANESL
BRENEMGES  WREATEFHOREE
ERETRAE BEFEZONALTR &
BETHESHE  UBRREFGENEE
BARNMBEREES °

BHE_Z-NAE+-_A=+t—HIFE ¥
BEEEREGEEANGEBEAEDRERES
AR BLW0000T(ZZT—N\F: ARK
350,0007T) °
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41. Financial Instruments (Continued) 41. TRET R %)
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. 2REKREEEEREXE)

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that
has been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified

ERRRRBERE (8)
TﬁﬁéﬁmTﬁT}*?ﬂtﬁ/{:EﬁEu \H)E B IR
HENREFRREEER -

approach.

Life-time ECL
(credit-
impaired)
KRETEH
FEEE
(F8RE)
RMB'000
AREFT

As at 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 under RIBEBEBEFERIIRN_ZT—tF

HKAS 39 tZA=1t— E!&:Eff)\ifﬂfa 1,522
Changes due to financial instruments recognised as at —H—H®ERNSRITALZ

1 January:

— Impairment losses recognised — BERBEERE 350
As at 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F+=ZA=+—H 1,872
Changes due to financial instruments recognised as at —A—HERZNEMTAEE :

1 January:

— Impairment losses recognised — BEWRRERSRE 40
As at 31 December 2019 RZB-—NF+=ZA=+—H 1,912

For trade receivables backed by bank bills, no allowance for
impairment has made since the directors of the Company
consider the probability of default is negligible taking into
consideration of the credit rating and reputation of the banks
issuing the bills.

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade
receivables are over two years past due, whichever occurs
earlier. The Group has taken legal action against the debtors
to recover the amount due.

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_ZT-NF+_A=T—HILFE

41.

Financial Instruments (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings.

The following table details the Group's contractual maturity for
its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate at the year of the reporting
period.

. 2RI A

b.

TRESEE B SR RBCR (5)

MBE &Rk

EEERSESRBE  AEBEETERER
EEBR/RENASIREEEY  UB

REENLERHES - ]meﬁfﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
BHPE EREERERITEROEM -

TRFVNAEECRAGBNHSORHE - %
RIVBBEAEEENE E’JFEEIH%Z R Rl
ﬁ1$m*ﬁﬁiﬁiﬁﬁ/minfmi cALHREEA
//\?REIEE{IKMZ%E ATyt AR R
IR fEﬁ%ETﬁEﬁ%fﬂEﬁﬁZ
TR - ﬁ’rﬁl BB EZ B D HIREE
EZEEBERES -

HROENERASRETE - I 5T
W% - AR S RIS B T %
S

Annual Report 2019 Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
“E-NFFR EXEFEEARAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT-_A=+—HILFE

/\‘/T\

41.

Financial Instruments (Continued) . BRT A%
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. ZREREEHERBE &
(Continued)
Liquidity table REEESH
Weighted ~ On demand or Total
average less than 6 months Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 6 months to 1 year 1-5 years 5 years cash flows amounts
RER
MEREHE  RABREMA  ~fARE-F -21f BENE  RenBAR Kf
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR®TT NS ARETT NS
2019 i WY
Trade and other payables 25 RAMENTE NATER 244,268 - - - 244,268 244,268
Amounts due to directors ERESHE NATER 354 - - - 354 354
Bank borrowings Rl
— fixedrate — & 336,820 143,053 56,463 - 536,336 521,267
— variable interest rate —%8 162,250 134,527 - - 296,777 289,471
Lease liabilities HERRE 10,333 10,332 38,190 23,697 82,552 65,684
Other borrowings ittt
— fixedrate — & 321 18,807 - - 19,134 18,480
— variable interest rate —28 15,083 9,180 18,360 7,098 49,721 44,094
769,435 315,899 113,013 30,795 1,229,142 1,183,618
2018 “E-N\%
Trade and other payables BHREMERTE NATER 388,051 = = = 388,051 388,051
Amounts due to directors EES o NATER 2,181 = = = 2,181 2,181
Bank borrowings Rl
—fixed rate — R 363,745 258,003 - - 621,748 610624
— variable interest rate —38 159,547 141,372 - = 300919 23721
Obligation under a finance lease YA EREMZUE
—fixed rate -8 425 425 3400 5633 9,883 7,446
Other borrowings Hfrfast
—fixed rate — R 472 27,095 - - 27,161 26820
— variable interest rate —38 12220 974 5903 - 27 864 26,306
926,641 436,836 9,303 5633 1378413 1,355,149

The amounts included above for variable interest rate

instrument for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to

change if changes in variable interest rates defer to those

estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the

reporting period.

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_ZT-NF+_A=T—HILFE

41.

Financial Instruments (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity table (Continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
include in the “on demand or less than 6 months” time band in
the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2019, the
aggregate carrying amounts of these bank borrowings
amounted to RMB nil (2018: RMB13,143,000). Taking into
account the Group's financial position, the directors of the
Company do not believe that it is probable that the banks will
exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors of the Company believe that such
bank borrowings will be repaid 6 months after 31 December
2018 in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements.

Maturity analysis — bank borrowings with a repayment on

. 2RI A
b. £€REKREERERBER(E)
FEBELR(E)

P 5 8 2 S B 2 SRTT (B BUR _E i B HA
Botfst ATEREREFRK LR ANEA] 2
HE - RZE—NFF+ZA=+—HRALKE
ZBITERZBAEAENSAE(ZS
—\fF : AR#13,143,0007T) © & EE|IAE
BN - EREE - RITTAMEETT
FEWEE BERAEENFER - EFH
B ZBITBERER=_Z—NF+=A
=+—H%A~EAR  RIEERGZMEHZEE
TENHEESE -

KRAEDT — REBEEERGTENARE

demand clause based on scheduled repayments: SKIEBIERZIRITERAT ¢
Total
Less than 6 months Over  undiscounted Carrying
6 months to 1 year 1-5 years 5 years cash flows amounts
KR
SRAER  AERE-% -Z5% LENE  RERBER REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
N S AREFT AREFT N S N S N S
31 December 2019 “Z-AF+-f=1—H - - - - - -
31 December 2018 “E-\E+ZA=t-H 301 13,158 - - 13,459 13,143
Fair value c. ADR{E

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.
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42. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising From Financing
Activities
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

42.

REREEHELENAE

TRAMIEAEEHRMEEHEENEER
BREESNERSES - mﬂﬁé%ﬂ%iﬁ’]ﬁﬁama
BERBEXARBEREWSIBELAEB Z2EE
ReERnERAREZBME2HESRE

activities.
Lease
liabilities/
Obligation
Bank Other under a Interest Dividend
borrowings  borrowings finance lease payables payable Total
HEaE/
MERE
BITER Hitr g% ERE ERFE ERRE @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®FT  ARETT ARETT ARETE ARETT AR®ETR
At 1 January 2018 R-B—N\E—F—R 827,874 89,799 7818 - - 925,491
Financing cash flows REBSRE (97,867) (36,673) (850) (45,817) (54,800) (236,007)
Foreign exchange translation ONEE 5 4 604 - - - - 604
Interest expense FBSH = = 478 45817 = 46,295
Dividend fhds) = = - - 54,800 54,800
Gross amount of bills receivable  URERE9NEFR P HOM A5
from external customers BREZDHRA
discounted with recourse [N Z g @ 674,349 = = = = 674,349
Non-cash settlement of discounted 2 BEIREWREE 2
bills receivable FReHEE (500,615) - = = = (500,615)
At 31 December 2018 R-E—\E+-A=+-0 904345 53,126 7,446 - - 964,917
Adjustment upon application of ERE B SRS ER
HKFRS 16 16 2 4% - - 59,791 - - 59,791
As at 1 January 2019 RZZ-hF—-A—AR
(restated) (&&75) 904,345 53,126 67,237 - - 1,024,708
Financing cash flows REBSRE (28,587) 9,448 (13,983) (45,835) (50,000) (128,957)
Foreign exchange translation GRS (162) - - - - (162)
Interest expense FBSHE - - - 45,835 - 45,835
Dividend BE - - - - 50,000 50,000
Gross amount of bills receivable  URERESMNEFR P O A
from external customers BREZDHER
discounted with recourse RN Z g @ 608,488 - - - - 608,488
Non-cash settlement of discounted ZBERENZE 2
bills receivable FREHEE (673,346) - - - - (673,346)
Increase in lease liabilities HEEEEM - - 12,430 - - 12,430
At 31 December 2019 R-Z-hAF+-A=1+—H 810,738 62,574 65,684 - - 938,996
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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43. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(@) Name and relationship
Name
=1 B

(b)

(c)

(d)

BEALRS
(a) BHWKEEE

Relationship

Zhongshan City Zheng Ye Leasing Company Limited
("Zheng Ye Leasing”)
FIUMEXHEEARAR (EXER])

Controlled by the controlling shareholders of the Company

B AN AR AR AR SR FE )

Related parties transactions (b) BEALRZS
During the year, the Group entered into the following RER - REBEBEATFIZATRS -
transactions with related parties:
2019 2018
ZEB-NF —E-)N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Zheng Ye Leasing EXEHRE
— Rental expenses of property —EHeRX N/ATER 6,480
— Interest on lease liabilities —HEaERE 1,282 N/A i F
— Lease liabilities —HERE 18,787 N/A T
As at 31 December 2017, Zheng Ye Leasing also provided RZZE—+tF+-_A=+—H EX¥HER
financial guarantees to the Group to secure the banking RRANEBERE  NENZRFBEAARE
facilities with an aggregate amount of RMB149,060,000 149,060,000 7T 2 IR TIRAE 2 IS FELR ©
obtained by the Group. As at 31 December 2017, the amount RZZE—tF+_A=+—H BEATE
of utilised facilities was RMB149,060,000. During the year AR 149,060,000 T2 5 e RZE—/\
ended 31 December 2018, the financial guarantees was FHZA=1T—RHILFE  ZUBEREK
terminated and the guarantee fee charged to the Group for IE - MAKE X IFEZBEE AR 315000
the year by Zheng Ye Leasing was RMB315,000. TRAEBENERER -
Rental deposit of RMB450,000 (2018: RMB450,000) paid to (c) BEfEZEMEMARKA450,0007T(=ZZ—
Zheng Ye Leasing has been included in trade and other F: AR 450,0007T) HE TI%E%W\F\_
receivables in the consolidated statement of financial position T NFTZA=T—HREHBRLERP
at 31 December 2019. B E 5 KA i Y FRIE o
Related parties balances (d) BAEALAEER

Amounts due to directors are disclosed on note 32.

JEREERERME2HE -
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43. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (Continued) BEEALRS E)
(e) Compensation of key management personnel (e) FTEEEAESWNEM
The remuneration of directors and other members of key UTREERTEEEEEMKERFERN
management during the year was as follows: B
2019 2018
=E-hEF — )\
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 19,151 24,188
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BRIREFETEIE R 215 329
19,366 24,517
The remuneration of directors and key executives is BENTETRAENGIETFHNEZESK
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to ZEEARBRETSEBEREBET -
the performance of individuals and market trends.
In 2015 and 2017, Zheng Ye Packaging (Zhongshan) sold RZE-—RAFR-ZZT—tF EXBE(F
properties to key managements amounted to RMB1,516,000 W) EWE - @R BIAARE,516,000
and RMB500,000 respectively. The outstanding balance at 31 TR ARES0000TFEEEEAE - B

December 2019 amounted to RMB nil (2018:RMB250,000) which
had been included in trade and other receivables in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Cash-settled share-based payments

On 23 April 2019, an employees’ share award scheme (“the
Scheme”) was adopted by the Company. Pursuant to the Scheme,
the Company would subsidise some employees of the Group (the
“Selected Participants”) a portion of funds to purchase issued
shares of the Company by a trustee through on-market transactions.
Up to 26 June 2019, a total of 4,214,000 shares of the Company had
been purchased and vested to the Selected Participants. The Group
recognised the total expense of RMB1,467,000 for the year ended 31
December 2019 in relation to its contribution in the Scheme.

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
EXBEFEEARAT

E—hE+ - F=+—HZRAERKE
HE&FE(ZF— N\F : AR¥250,0007T) 15
uafiéﬁf’\ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁiﬂﬁﬂfﬂ E 5 & E e
IEA

44. LIBRHBZRARES
DHEEEENRDAEBRIR
R-ZZE—NFWA—+=H KARABENTEER
D EEEh T2 (T2t 8l)) - RIS AR R)wE
NEBHFLES ((REBRE ) —LHES
DHEZTABAMERSBEEARRNBEEHTR
ZE-HE_E-NENA-+AA BEEEA:
4,214,000 R AR Bl A0 0 55 B AN i 22 Ha 2 - B
E-T-AF+_A=1t—HIEE  KEEGE
M HRERE T H AR 1,467,000 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_ZT-NF+_A=T—HILFE

45. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY

45. XATHB A RNFHEE

Place of
incorporation/ Proportion ownership Proportion of
registration/ Paid up issued/ Class of interest held by voting power held
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital shares hold the Company by the Company Principal activities
R/ BARST/ RAAREMN FREBAEN
WEAREE B3 ZfRE BEROER FrEERi = FERRELE TEFHK
At 31 December
Mt=B=t+-H
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZB-NE “2-\§ ZB-NE —T)\F
TYAZ International Limited British Virgin Authorised  Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100%  Investment holding
("Zheng Ye (BVI)") Islands US$50,000 EiEk REZR
("the BVI") US$20,000 *
RERREE BT
50,0005 7T
2000070

Zheng Ye International Company Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited (“Zheng Ye International”) & 100008 E@ER RE&E

EXERARAR

Zheng Ye Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100%  Investment holding
("Zheng Ye Investments") B 18T EER REER

EERERRAR

Shing Yip (Hong Kong) Investment Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100%  Investment holding
Enterprises Limited B 10,0008 @M REER
(“Shing Yip (Hong Kong)")

HE (BB RAEXERAH

Zheng Ye Packaging (Zhongshan) the PRC HK$102,000,000 Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100% Manufacturing and operating
Company Limited H 102,000,000 L@k of paper-based packaging
(“Zheng Ye Packaging (Zhongshan)") products, packaging

FERE(RIL)ERAR related business and
(TEZ8E (Fl)]) printing of decorative

packaging products

EERBESHREER
BERBRBRRERR
ER & DR

Zhongshan Yong Fa Paper Industry the PRC HK$106,500,000 Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100% Manufacturing and sale of
Company Limited H 106,500,000 E&ER paper-and paperboard
("Zhongshan Yong Fa Paper”) AENHELNAR

P ERRBRAR ([RILKBEX])

Zhuhai Zheng Ye Packing the PRC HK$12,000,000 Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100% Manufacturing and sale of
Company Limited H 12,000,000/ Ei@& paper-based packaging
("Zheng Ye Packaging (Zhuhai)") products and related

HKEEXBEERAA packaging service
([Ex8% (3%8)]) EENHESRBRERR

BB ERS

Annual Report 2019
—ThEFHR

)

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
EXBRERBR AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

U:

B SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE_ZT-NAF+-A=+—RHIFE

45. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

45. XA TH B A RS (@)

COMPANY (Continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Proportion ownership Proportion of
registration/ Paid up issued/ Class of interest held by voting power held
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital shares hold the Company by the Company Principal activities
R /ER/ BABST/ AAABEMN FRREEN
WEARER B SRR FERHER FrERkERLE FERRELE TEXH
At 31 December
R+=A=1-H
2019 2018 2019 2018
—2-nf “T)\F ZB-AE “TN\F
Zhengzhou Zheng Ye Packaging the PRC RMB20,000,000 Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100% Manufacturing and sale of
Company Limited H (2018 EiEk paper-based packaging
("Zheng Ye Packaging (Zhengzhou)") RMB40,000,000) products and printing of
BNEXREERAF AR 20,000,0007C decorative packaging
([EZaE @M ]) (ZB-NF: products
AR 40,000,0007T) EENEEERORERR
BEREDRIRER
Shijiazhuang Zheng Ye Packaging the PRC RMB20,000,000 Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100% Manufacturing and sale of
Company Limited H ARE20,0000007 L@k paper-based packaging
(“Zheng Ye Packaging (Shijiazhuang)”) products and printing of
AREEXOEARAT decorative packaging
([ER%(Rx®)]) products
EENHERRERERR
BRERERIRER
Wuhan Zheng Ye Alliance Packaging the PRC RMB35,000,000 Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100% Manufacturing and sale of
Company Limited H AR®35000,0007 L@ paper-based packaging
(“Zheng Ye Packaging (Wuhan)") products and printing of
REFEBAORERAT decorative packaging
([E2a%(KE))) products
EENHERRBRERR
BERRDRRER
Zhongshan Rengo Hung Hing Paper the PRC USD53,660,000 Ordinary 58.7% 58.7% 58.7% 58.7% Manufacturing and sale of
Manufacturing Company Limited H 53,660,000 E@ER paper and paper board
("Hung Hing") HEMFELMLR
Pl A BEELMARAR (ER])
Zhongshan Lianfa Transportation the PRC RMB5,000,000 Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100% Transportation
Company Limited H ARES0000007T TER ek
BT ERERAR
Zhongshan Zhengye Transportation the PRC RMB3,000,000 Ordinary 100% 100% 100% 100% Transportation
Company Limited H ARE3000000 L@ k|
BT EXBRERAT

paid and indirectly held by the Company.

Except for Zheng Ye (BVI), the issued capital of all other companies is fully

All subsidiaries established in the PRC are wholly foreign owned

enterprises.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited

EXBEFEEARAT

* BRTYAZSM

WHARRRBERE -

PREEPBEKRIZ KB A

MAEEMARMBEETRATEHR -

R RINEBEEDRE -

RERLFRERER - HERRREEAREER

B E

Annual Report 2019
—ThEEH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT-_A=+—HILFE

46. DETAILS OF A NON-WHOLLY OWNED 46. EEBEARFERERZFZENED
SUBSIDIARY THAT HAS MATERIAL NON- GG
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Place of incorporation Proportion of ownership
and principal place interests held by Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary  of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
WEARER AR A AREBENEEESL X FEFIESED B 2R R

31/12/2019 31/12/2018  31/12/2019 31/12/2018  31/12/2019 31/12/2018
= i —TN\F “E-hEF —FN\F = i —FN\F
t=A=t-A +ZA=+-8 F=A=t-A +=-A=+-H +=R=t-R +-A=t+—-H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TR  ARMTRT  ARMTR = ARETR

Hung Hing Zhongshan, the PRC
B PERILT 41.3% 41.3% 18,844 21,355 198,498 179,654
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-)N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETTT
Current assets MENEE 226,040 284,608
Non-current assets JEMEBNEE 430,743 411,528
Current liabilities mEAE (118,189) (247,878)
Non-current liabilities FRBELE (57,969) (13,261)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZN/NCIEZ DNy 2 (282,127) (255,343)
Non-controlling interests of Hung Hing WG B2 FEVE Il A (198,498) (179,654)
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—E-NFFR EXBRERBR AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR M RE
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46. DETAILS OF A NON-WHOLLY OWNED 46. BEERFEREZZ2HZEME L

SUBSIDIARY THAT HAS MATERIAL NON- S
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

8z B=

—E-hEF —T— N\

+=A=+—-8 +=—A=+—H

fI=-3:-3 IHEE

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥®TT AR¥ETT

Revenue WA 712,035 908,982
Expenses M (666,407) (857,275)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year & Ay F| & %m0 W 2% 45,628 51,707
Profit and total comprehensive income AR AR ANEIE R &

attributable to owners of the Company ey L 26,784 30,352
Profit and total comprehensive income attributable 58 7 JE37 Hl| #e 75 FE (G Vi A1) N2

to the non-controlling interests of Hung Hing e Eay k| 18,844 21,355
Net cash inflows from operating activities REETEATS IR S H5R 98,020 76,734
Net cash used in investing activities KEEKTHRIR G F58 (39,291) (15,252)
Net cash used in financing activities BEXTEFTRAIR & F 5 (61,486) (40,733)
Net cash (outflows) inflows Omd) Fr838 & 558 (2,757) 20,749

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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r ended 31 December 2019
NE+—A=+—HIFE

47. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

(b)

Acquisition

Subsequent to 31 December 2019, the Group completed its
negotiations with Jiangxi Shengjing Technology Company
Limited and entered in an agreement for the acquisition of 80%
of equity interest in Yudu County Zhengyi Paper Products and
Paper Industry Company Limited at 3 January 2020. The
transaction was completed on 1 March 2020. Details of the
acquisition are set out in the Group's circular dated 3 January
2020.

The outbreak of coronavirus disease (“the
COVID-19")

The outbreak of COVID-19 and the subsequent quarantine
measures as well as the travel restrictions imposed by many
countries have had a severe negative impact on the operations
of the Group, as most of the Group's operations are located in
Mainland China. One of the subsidiary of the Group is in
Wuhan City. The Group had to stop its manufacturing activities
since late January 2020 due to mandatory government
quarantine measures in an effort to contain the spread of the
epidemic.

Even though the Group had resumed its manufacturing
activities since February and March except for the subsidiary in
Wuhan City, which is remain suspended until April. They are
still not operating at normal capacity.

In addition, the operations of certain of the Group's customers,
suppliers are also located in Wuhan or other cities in Mainland
China, the outbreak of COVID-19 is expected to have negative
effect to these counterparties in different aspects, which in
turn, may affect the recoverability of Group's trade receivables
and other financial assets that are subject to ECL assessment.

The Directors of the Company will continue to closely monitor
the development of the epidemic and work to mitigate the
adverse effects, and will adopt various measures to make up
for the production shortfall. As the situation remains fluid at the
date these financial statements are authorized for issue, the
directors of the Company considered that the financial effects
of the COVID-19 on the Group's consolidated financial
statements cannot be reasonably estimated. Nevertheless, the
COVID-19 outbreak is expected to affect the consolidated
results for the first half and full year of 2020.
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

48. A XA FHMRREK

COMPANY
2019 2018
—ZE-AEF —T—)\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Non-current Assets ERBEE
Unlisted investment in a subsidiary m— %#J:?Wﬁ% G0k 230,979 230,979
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note) e B B A m) F A (K RE) - -
230,979 230,979
Current Assets REEE
Bank balances and cash RITRIRE 4 nﬁ% 5,153 440
Other receivables E b R 354 128
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note) f‘HﬁZBﬁE I8 (ffzE) 28,633 58,739
34,140 59,307
Current Liabilities REEE
Other payables ﬁtﬁ‘ﬁm 215 253
Amounts due to subsidiaries f1TWJ§ KA (FaE) 14,215 =
Amount due to directors f1T§$m& 28 86
14,458 339
Net Current Assets mENE EFE 19,682 58,968
Total Assets less Current Liabilities BEAEBRABERE 250,661 289,947
Capital and Reserves BEXRR EE
Share capital R& 2 41,655 41,655
Share premium RAR (B 92,968 92,968
Reserves = 116,038 155,324
Total Equity 8RR 250,661 289,947

Note: The amounts due from subsidiaries shown as current and non-current assets

are based on the directors of the Company's expectation on the timing of

BYRE © FEURHT S A B0 e U

KR BB R IERBEETIRIE

ARABEEHEPREEERHORME

settlement at the respective period end date.

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
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BE-T- AT A= BLEE

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

48. ARDATMBEMRRE @)

COMPANY (Continued)
Movement in the Company'’s reserves RABEEZ2 BT
Share Merger Retained
premium reserves profits Total
IR A= {E AOHRE R EF et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
At 1 January 2018 R=E—N\FE—H—H 92,968 97,559 58,776 249,303
Profit and total comprehensive  4E A% Al & 2 E U 25
income for the year s - - 53,789 53,789
Dividend paid EfRIRE = - (54,800) (54,800)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—NF+_A=+—H 92,968 97,559 57,765 248,292
Profit and total comprehensive %% Kl & 2 E U &S
income for the year Fak] - - 10,714 10,714
Dividend paid BEIEE - - (50,000) (50,000)
At 31 December 2019 R-E—-—hF+-_A=1+—H 92,968 97,559 18,479 209,006
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Financial Summary
BRE

Consolidated results

mEXE

For the year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—-BLFE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—E-hF ZE—RFE ZT—+tF ZZE-NF ZB-AF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT AREFTT ARETT AR¥TR
Revenue WA 1,807,765 2,074,090 2414127 2,848,016 2,367,151
Profit before tax B %R B A 56,718 124,909 242,839 154,014 119,180
Income tax expense P8R~ (14,025) (15,911) (29,597) (23,301) (18,152)
Profit for the year F A Al 42,693 108,998 213,242 130,713 101,028
Attributable to: FEAS -
the owners of the Company iN/NETE Z =N 41,136 91,649 182,705 109,358 82,184
non-controlling interests JER | FE 1,557 17,349 30,537 21,355 18,844
42,693 108,998 213,242 130,713 101,028
Consolidated assets and liabilities GEEBEENEE
At 31 December
B+=—A=+—H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—TAF —T-ARF —T—tF —T-NF Z=B-AF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBETT ARETT AREBTT AR¥TR
Total assets BEE 2,499,010 2,425,965 2,561,870 2,557,823 2,424,551
Total liabilities BaE (1,799,870) (1,617,827) (1,567,990) (1,484,444) (1,300,144)
Net assets FEE 699,140 808,138 993,880 1,073,379 1,124,407

Note 1: The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 18 August 2010 as an exempted BdEE1

company with limited liability under the Bermuda Companies Act. Pursuant to a

reorganisation scheme to rationalise the structure of the Group in preparation for

the public listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Company became the holding company of

the companies now comprising the Group on 4 March 2011. The financial summary

has been presented on the basis that the Company had been the holding

company of the Group from the beginning of the earliest period presented.

Note 2: Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed MiE2 :

any of the Company's shares listed on the Stock Exchange during the period from

the date of the Listing (i.e. 3 June 2011) to 31 December 2019.

Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited
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